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In the opinion of Sherman & Howard L.L.C., Bond Counsel, assuming continuous compliance with certain covenants and representations described
herein, interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds is excluded from gross income under federal income tax laws pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended to the date of delivery of the 2013 Series B Bonds (the "Tax Code"), and interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds is excluded from minimum
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earnings" adjustment applicable to corporations for purposes of computing the alternative minimum taxable income of corporations as described herein. In
addition, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, the 2013 Series B Bonds and the income therefrom shall at all times be free from taxation by the State of Colorado
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The 2013 Series B Bonds shown above are being issued by the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority as fully registered bonds pursuant to a
Master Indenture of Trust and a 2013 Series B Indenture, each between the Authority and Zions First National Bank, Denver, Colorado, as Trustee. Proceeds
of the 2013 Series B Bonds, together with other available funds, will be (i) used by the Trustee to redeem and pay certain bonds outstanding under the Master
Indenture, the proceeds of which were used to acquire mortgage loans made to finance single family residences in the State of Colorado, and (ii) deposited to
certain funds and accounts established under the Indenture.

The 2013 Series B Bonds initially will bear interest at a weekly rate (the “Weekly Rate") determined prior to the date of delivery of the 2013 Series B
Bonds to be effective to and including the following Tuesday, and thereafter determined on each Tuesday by RBC Capital Markets, LLC in its capacity as
Remarketing Agent to be effective from and including each Wednesday to and including the following Tuesday. The interest rate on the 2013 Series B Bonds or any
portion thereof may be adjusted at any time at the election of the Authority to a different interest rate mode as described herein. While in a Weekly Mode, interest on
the 2013 Series B Bonds is payable on each May 1 and November 1, commencing on May 1, 2014, on any redemption date, on any mandatory purchase date and at
maturity. No 2013 Series B Bond (other than Bank Bonds) shall bear interest at an interest rate higher than the Maximum Rate, which pursuant to the Indenture shall
be the lesser of 10% per annum or the maximum rate of interest permitted by applicable law.

While any of the 2013 Series B Bonds are in a Weekly Mode, owners of any such 2013 Series B Bonds will have the right to tender their 2013 Series B
Bonds for purchase and will also be required to tender their 2013 Series B Bonds for purchase at the times and subject to the conditions set forth in the Indenture, as
described herein. Payment of the purchase price for the 2013 Series B Bonds tendered for purchase and not remarketed or for which remarketing proceeds are not
available will be supported by a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement (referred to herein as the *2013B Liquidity Facility") by and among the Authority, Zions First
National Bank, as Trustee and as Paying Agent, and ROYAL BANK OF CANADA, acting through a New York branch, as the standby bond purchaser (the "2013B
Liquidity Facility Provider"). Subject to certain limitations and conditions described in this Official Statement, an alternative liquidity facility may be substituted for
the 2013B Liquidity Facility. Coverage under the 2013B Liquidity Facility, unless extended or earlier terminated, is stated to expire on November 19, 2016. Under
certain circumstances described herein, the obligation of the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider under the 2013B Liquidity Facility to purchase 2013 Series B
Bonds tendered for purchase or subject to mandatory purchase may be terminated or suspended and, in some of such circumstances, the termination or
suspension of such obligation will be immediate and without notice to the owners of such 2013 Series B Bonds. In such event, sufficient funds may not be
available to purchase such 2013 Series B Bonds. Neither the Authority nor the Remarketing Agent is obligated to purchase 2013 Series B Bonds tendered by
the owners of such 2013 Series B Bonds or subject to mandatory purchase if remarketing proceeds and payments under the 2013B Liquidity Facility are
insufficient or unavailable to pay the purchase price of such 2013 Series B Bonds.

The 2013 Series B Bonds, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as holder of the 2013 Series B Bonds and nominee of The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. One fully registered bond equal to the principal amount of the 2013 Series B Bonds will be registered in
the name of Cede & Co. Individual purchases of 2013 Series B Bonds will be made in book-entry form only, and beneficial owners of the 2013 Series B
Bonds will not receive physical delivery of bond certificates representing their interest in the 2013 Series B Bonds, except as described herein. Upon receipt of
payments of principal and interest, DTC is to remit such payments to the DTC participants for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial owners of the 2013
Series B Bonds. Payments of prmmpal of and interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds will be made directly to DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., by the Paying
Agent, so long as DTC or Cede & Co. is the sole registered owner. Disbursement of such payments to DTC participants is the responsibility of DTC, and
disbursement of such payments to the beneficial owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds is the responsibility of the DTC participants and the indirect participants, as
more fully described herein.

The 2013 Series B Bonds are subject to special redemption and optional redemption prior to maturity as described herein.

The Master Indenture provides for four classes of Bonds or Auxiliary Obligations thereunder — Class I, Class 1, Class Il and Class 1V Obligations.
The 2013 Series B Bonds are being issued as Class Il Bonds which are special, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the revenues, assets
and moneys pledged under the Master Indenture as described herein on a subordinate basis to all Class | Obligations now or hereafter outstanding under the
Master Indenture and on an equal and ratable basis with all other Class Il Obligations now or hereafter outstanding under the Master Indenture. Additional
Bonds or Auxiliary Obligations may be issued or incurred by the Authority under the Master Indenture in each of the four Classes and as general obligations of
the Authority upon delivery of a Cash Flow Certificate and satisfaction of certain other conditions as set forth in the Master Indenture. In no event shall the
2013 Series B Bonds constitute an obligation or liability of the State of Colorado or any political subdivision thereof other than the Authority. The
Authority has no taxing power nor does it have the power to pledge the general credit or taxing power of the State of Colorado or any political
subcgv)isnon thereof (other than the general credit of the Authority, which general credit is not being pledged for the payment of the 2013 Series B
Bonds).

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of the 2013 Series B Bonds. Investors must read the entire
Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

The 2013 Series B Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and delivered, subject to the approval of legality by Sherman & Howard L.L.C.,
Denver, Colorado, Bond Counsel to the Authority, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Authority by Charles L.
Borgman, Esq., its General Counsel; and by Hogan Lovells US LLP, Denver, Colorado, Disclosure Counsel to the Authority. The Underwriter is being
represented in connection with its purchase of the 2013 Series B Bonds by its counsel, Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Denver, Colorado. Certain legal matters will
be passed on for the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider by its internal counsel, by Canadian counsel Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP and by Kutak Rock
LLP, Atlanta, Georgia. CSG Advisors Incorporated is serving as financial advisor to the Authority in connection with the offering of the 2013 Series B Bonds.
Subject to prevailing market conditions, the Underwriter intends, but is not obligated, to make a market in the 2013 Series B Bonds. For details of the
Underwriter's compensation, see "Part | - UNDERWRITING" herein. It is expected that the 2013 Series B Bonds will be delivered (through DTC) in New
York, New York on or about November 19, 2013.
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This Official Statement is dated November 13, 2013.

* Neither the Authority nor the Underwriter takes any responsibility for the accuracy of the CUSIP number, which is being provided solely for the convenience of the owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds.



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Colorado Housing and
Finance Authority or by the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations, other
than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. The
information in this Official Statement is subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this
Officia Statement nor any sale hereunder, under any circumstances, creates any implication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the Authority or otherwise since the date hereof. This Official Statement
does not congtitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the
2013 Series B Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make
such offer, solicitation or sale.

The information set forth in this Officia Statement has been furnished by the Authority and
obtained from other sources believed to be reliable. The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this
Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities under the federal securities laws
as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the
accuracy or completeness of such information, and it is not to be construed as the promise or guarantee of
the Underwriter. This Official Statement contains, in part, estimates and matters of opinion which are
not intended as statements of fact, and no representation or warranty is made as to the correctness of such
estimates and opinions, or that they will be realized.

All information for investors regarding the Authority and the 2013 Series B Bonds is contained in
this Official Statement. While the Authority maintains an Internet website for various purposes, none of
the information on this website is intended to assist investors in making any investment decision or to
provide any continuing information (except in the case of the limited information provided in the section
entitled "Bond Disclosures') with respect to the 2013 Series B Bonds, the Mortgage Loans, the 2013B
Liquidity Facility Provider or any other bonds or obligations of the Authority.

THE PRICE AT WHICH THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS ARE OFFERED TO THE PUBLIC BY
THE UNDERWRITER (AND THE YIELD RESULTING THEREFROM) MAY VARY FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING PRICE APPEARING ON THE FRONT COVER HEREOF. IN
ADDITION, THE UNDERWRITER MAY ALLOW CONCESSIONS OR DISCOUNTS FROM SUCH
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING PRICE TO DEALERS AND OTHERS. IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH
STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS AT A LEVEL
ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH
STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

The 2013 Series B Bonds have not been approved or disapproved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission or any state securities commission nor has the commission or any state securities
commission passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Official Statement. Any representation to the
contrary isacrimina offense.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
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COLORADO HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY
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PART |

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, which includes the front cover page, this Partl, Partll and the
Appendices hereto, provides certain information concerning the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority
(the "Authority") and otherwise in connection with the offer and sale of the above-captioned Bonds
(being collectively referred to in this Official Statement as the "2013 Series B Bonds'). The 2013 Series
B Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Master Indenture of Trust dated as of October 1, 2001, as
amended (the "Master Indenture"), and the 2013 Series B Indenture dated as of November 1, 2013 (the
"2013 Series B Indenture," and together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture"), each between the
Authority and Zions First National Bank, Denver, Colorado, as Trustee (the "Trustee"). Capitalized
terms used herein and not defined have the meanings specified in the Indenture. See "FORMS OF THE
INDENTURE" in Appendix A to this Official Statement.

Thisintroduction is not a summary of this Official Satement. It isonly a brief description of and
guide to, and is qualified by the information contained in, the entire Official Satement, including the
front cover page, this Part I, Part I hereof and the Appendices hereto, and the documents summarized or
described herein. A full review should be made of this entire Official Satement. The offering of 2013
Series B Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of this entire Official Satement. This
Official Statement does not constitute a contract between the Authority or the Underwriter, and any one
or more owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds.

Colorado Housing and Finance Authority

The Authority is abody corporate and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the " State")
established by the Colorado General Assembly for the purposes, among others, of increasing the supply
of decent, safe and sanitary housing for low and moderate income families and promoting economic
growth and development in the State. In order to achieve its authorized purposes, the Authority currently
operates numerous housing, rental and business finance programs. See "Part 1l - COLORADO
HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY — Programs to Date." The Authority is governed by a Board
of Directors and is authorized to issue its bonds, notes and other obligations in order to provide sufficient
funds to achieve its purposes. The 2013 Series B Bonds are being issued to provide funds to redeem and
pay bonds the proceeds of which were used to acquire Mortgage Loans under the Authority's Single
Family Mortgage Program. Proceeds of the 2013 Series B Bonds may not be used to finance any
activities of the Authority other than related to the Single Family Mortgage Program. See "Part || — THE
SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE PROGRAM." For financial information concerning the Authority, see
"Part || — COLORADO HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY — Sdlected Financial Information" and
the financial statements of the Authority attached hereto as Appendix G.



Authority for Issuance

The 2013 Series B Bonds are authorized to be issued pursuant to the Colorado Housing and
Finance Authority Act, being Part 7 of Article 4 of Title 29 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, as amended
(the "Act") and the Supplemental Public Securities Act, being Part 2 of Article57 of Title 11 of the
Colorado Revised Statutes. The 2013 Series B Bonds are being issued and secured under the Indenture.

Purposes of the 2013 Series B Bonds

Proceeds of the 2013 Series B Bonds, together with other available funds, will be used to
(i) redeem and pay $39,950,000 principa amount of the Authority's Single Family Mortgage Class |
Adjustable Rate Bonds, 2006 Series C-2 (the "Refunded Bonds'), and (ii) make deposits to certain funds
and accounts in accordance with the 2013 Series B Indenture, including the payment of costs of issuance,
as described in "Part | — PLAN OF FINANCE." Upon the redemption and payment of the Refunded
Bonds, the principal and interest payments on the Mortgage Loans made with the proceeds of the
Refunded Bonds and the other 2006 Series C Bonds which will not be refunded (the "Unr efunded 2006C
Bonds") will be alocated to the payment of the 2013 Series B Bonds and the Unrefunded 2006C Bonds
as described in "Part | — CERTAIN PROGRAM ASSUMPTIONS — Allocation of Amounts Received
under 2006C Mortgage Loans."

Description of the 2013 Series B Bonds
Limited Description of 2013 Series B Bonds

This Official Statement describes the 2013 Series B Bonds only while bearing interest at a
Weekly Rate and subject to The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") book-entry only system described
in Appendix H —"BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM." Investorsin the 2013 Series B Bonds should not rely on
this Official Statement for information in connection with any 2013 Series B Bonds converted to a Mode
other than a Weekly Mode.

Interest Rates and Payments

The 2013 Series B Bonds are variabl e rate bonds and initially will bear interest at a Weekly Rate.
While in a Weekly Mode, interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds will be determined and adjusted weekly,
with interest payable semiannually on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing on May 1, 2014,
as described in "Part | = TERMS OF THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS," and will be computed on the basis
of a 365/366 day year for the actual number of days elapsed. The interest rate on the 2013 Series B
Bonds or any portion thereof may be adjusted at any time at the election of the Authority to a different
Mode, as described in "Part | - TERMS OF THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS — Interest on the 2013 Series
B Bonds — Change in Mode; Conversion." The 2013 Series B Bonds are being issued in denominations
of $100,000 or integral multiples of $5,000 in excess of $100,000. Principal of the 2013 Series B Bonds
is payable in the amount and on the date as shown on the front cover hereof, subject to prior redemption
or purchase.

Redemption and Tender

The 2013 Series B Bonds are subject to special and optional redemption, and are also subject to
optiona tender and mandatory purchase, prior to maturity as described under "Part | - TERMS OF THE
2013 SERIES B BONDS." See "Partll — CERTAIN BONDOWNERS' RISKS — Considerations
Regarding Redemption at Par."



For a more complete description of the 2013 Series B Bonds and the I ndenture pursuant to which
such 2013 Series B Bonds are being issued, see "Part| — TERMS OF THE 2013 SERIES B
BONDS" and Appendix A —"FORMSOF THE INDENTURE."

Security and Sour ces of Payment

All Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations outstanding under the Master Indenture (other than
Auxiliary Obligations which are General Obligations of the Authority) will be secured by and payable
from all of the Authority's rights and interests in and to the revenues, assets and moneys pledged under
the Master Indenture, in particular the Revenues and the Mortgage Loans (collectively, the "Trust
Estate"). See "Partll — SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS" and
Appendix B-2 — "THE MORTGAGE LOAN PORTFOLIO AND FUND BALANCES." In accordance
with the Master Indenture, any Bonds or Auxiliary Obligations may be outstanding as Class |, Class |1,
Class 1l or Class IV Obligations, and may also be designated as Genera Obligations of the Authority.
As of August 1, 2013, Bonds issued under the Master Indenture were outstanding in an aggregate
principal amount of $1,355,685,000, including $1,238,185,000 for the Class | Bonds, $72,100,000 for the
Class Il Bonds and $45,400,000 for the Class |11 Bonds. No Class IV Bonds were outstanding under the
Master Indenture as of such date. See "Part | — PLAN OF FINANCE," "Part | — CERTAIN PROGRAM
ASSUMPTIONS' and AppendixB-1 — "THE OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY
OBLIGATIONS."

The 2013 Series B Bonds are being issued as Class | Obligations pursuant to the Indenture and
will be payable and secured by the Trust Estate as described herein. None of the 2013 Series B Bonds are
being issued as Class I, Class Il or Class IV Obligations. The 2013 Series B Bonds are not being
designated as General Obligations of the Authority. As part of the Trust Estate, the 2013 Series B Bonds
will be secured by the Debt Service Reserve Fund established under the Master Indenture. The Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement for the 2013 Series B Bonds will be satisfied as described in "Part | —
PLAN OF FINANCE — Sources and Uses of Funds® and "Part || - SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND
AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS." See dso "Part | — CERTAIN PROGRAM ASSUMPTIONS — Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement.” Following issuance of the 2013 Series B Bonds, it is expected that
$1,198,235,000 of Class | Bonds, $112,050,000 of Class Il Bonds and $45,400,000 of Class Il Bonds
will be outstanding. 1n no event shall the 2013 Series B Bonds constitute an obligation or liability of
the State or any political subdivision thereof other than the Authority. The Authority has no taxing
power nor does it have the power to pledge the general credit or the taxing power of the State or
any political subdivision thereof (other than the general credit of the Authority, which general
credit isnot being pledged for payment of the 2013 Series B Bonds).

Upon delivery of the 2013 Series B Bonds, the Authority will enter into a Standby Bond Purchase
Agreement to establish aliquidity facility for the 2013 Series B Bonds (the "2013B Liquidity Facility") with
Royal Bank of Canada, as the initial standby bond purchaser (referred to herein as the "2013B Liquidity
Facility Provider"). See Appendix C— "SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 2013B
LIQUIDITY FACILITY" and Appendix D — "CERTAIN INFORMATION CONCERNING THE 2013B
LIQUIDITY FACILITY PROVIDER." Under certain circumstances described in Appendix C, the
obligation of the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider under the 2013B Liquidity Facility to purchase
2013 Series B Bonds tendered for purchase or subject to mandatory purchase may be terminated or
suspended and, in some of such circumstances, the termination or suspension of such obligation will be
immediate and without notice to the owners of such 2013 Series B Bonds. In such event, sufficient
funds may not be available to purchase such 2013 Series B Bonds. Neither the Authority nor the
Remarketing Agent is obligated to purchase 2013 Series B Bonds so tendered or subject to mandatory
purchase if remarketing proceeds or payments under the 2013B Liquidity Facility are insufficient or



unavailable to pay the purchase price of such 2013 Series B Bonds. See "Part || — CERTAIN
BONDOWNERS RISKS — Risks Related to the Liquidity Facility Providers and the Liquidity Facilities.”

Professionals Involved in the Offering

In connection with the issuance and sale of the 2013 Series B Bonds, Sherman & Howard L.L.C.,
as Bond Counsel to the Authority, will deliver an opinion in the form included as Appendix E hereto.
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Authority by its General Counsel, Charles L. Borgman,
Esqg., and by its Disclosure Counsel, Hogan Lovells US LLP. Certain legal matters will be passed on for
the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider by itsinternal counsel, by Canadian counsel Norton Rose Fulbright
Canada LLP and by Kutak Rock LLP, Atlanta, Georgia. CSG Advisors Incorporated is serving as
financial advisor to the Authority in connection with the offering of the 2013 Series B Bonds. The
Underwriter is being represented in connection with its purchase of the 2013 Series B Bonds by its
counsel, Dorsey & Whitney LLP. See"Part | —-LEGAL MATTERS."

Availability of Continuing Information

In connection with the issuance of the 2013 Series B Bonds, the Authority will deliver a
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, in the form attached as Appendix J hereto, by which the Authority
will agree to make available, in compliance with Rule 15¢c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
("Rule 15¢2-12"), certain annual financial information and audited financial statements commencing with
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013 and notice of certain material events. See "Part| —
AVAILABILITY OF CONTINUING INFORMATION."

Investment Consider ations

The purchase and ownership of the 2013 Series B Bonds involve investment risks. Prospective
purchasers of the 2013 Series B Bonds being offered by this Official Statement are urged to read this
Official Satement in its entirety. For a discussion of certain such risks relating to the 2013 Series B
Bonds, see "Part || — CERTAIN BONDOWNERS RISKS™"

Additional Information

Copies of the Indenture, the 2013B Liquidity Facility and additional information may be obtained
from the Authority upon request to Margaret Danuser, Director of Finance, a 1981 Blake Street, Denver,
Colorado 80202, phone: (303) 297-7328, email: mdanuser@chfainfo.com.

TERMS OF THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS

Principal; Payment

The 2013 Series B Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will mature, subject to prior
redemption or purchase as described below, in the amount and on the date as shown on the front cover of
this Official Statement. The principal or redemption price of the 2013 Series B Bonds is payable at the
corporate trust office of Zions First National Bank, the Paying Agent and the Trustee for the 2013
Series B Bonds. Interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds will be payable on the Interest Payment Dates to
Cede & Co.



Book-Entry System

DTC will act as securities depository for the 2013 Series B Bonds. The ownership of one fully
registered Bond in the aggregate principal amount of the 2013 Series B Bonds will be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. Information concerning the book-entry system provided by
DTC isset forth in Appendix H —"BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM." Solong asthe 2013 Series B Bonds
areregistered in the DTC book-entry form described in Appendix H, each Beneficial Owner of a
2013 Series B Bond should make arrangements with a Participant in DTC to receive notices or
communications with respect to matters concer ning such 2013 Series B Bonds.

Interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds
Generally

The 2013 Series B Bonds will initially bear interest at a Weekly Rate determined prior to the date
of delivery by RBC Capital Markets, LLC (the "Remarketing Agent"). In the case of the Weekly Mode,
the Rate Determination Date is each Tuesday and the effective rate date is each Wednesday following the
Rate Determination Date. At any time, the Authority may elect to adjust the interest rate on the 2013
Series B Bonds or any portion thereof to a Daily Rate or Term Rate, or may convert such 2013 Series B
Bonds to bear interest at Fixed Interest Rates until their respective maturities or prior redemption or
purchase, as described in "Change in Mode Period; Conversion” under this caption. While the 2013
Series B Bonds are in a Weekly Maode, interest is payable on each May 1 and November 1, on any
redemption date or Mandatory Purchase Date and on the maturity date. While in a Weekly Mode, interest
on the 2013 Series B Bondsis to be calculated on the basis of a 365/366 day year for the actual number of
days elapsed. The 2013 Series B Bonds in a Weekly Mode may be purchased in denominations of
$100,000 or integral multiples of $5,000 in excess of $100,000. The 2013 Series B Bonds are subject to
tender and purchase as described in "Tender and Purchase of 2013 Series B Bonds' under this caption and
to redemption as described in "Prior Redemption" under this caption.

This Official Statement describes the 2013 Series B Bonds only while bearing interest at a Weekly
Rate. If any of the 2013 Series B Bonds are converted to a Mode other than a Weekly Mode, a reoffering
document will be prepared in connection with such conversion or change in Mode.

Conversion of the interest rate on the 2013 Series B Bonds such that all of the 2013 Series B Bonds
bear interest at an Interest Rate other than a Weekly Rate would result in a termination of the 2013B
Liquidity Facility. See Appendix C—"SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISONSOF THE 2013B LIQUIDITY
FACILITY."

Determination of Interest Rates

To and including the next Rate Determination Date, the 2013 Series B Bonds shall bear interest at
the Weekly Rate determined in advance by the Remarketing Agent. Thereafter, the 2013 Series B Bonds
shall bear interest, commencing on the date following the Rate Determination Date based on the current
Mode, a the rate determined by the Remarketing Agent for the new Mode (except for the 2013 Series B
Bonds that are held by the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider which, in accordance with the 2013B
Liquidity Facility, shall bear interest at the Bank Rate). In no event shall the interest rate borne by the
2013 Series B Bonds (other than Bank Bonds) exceed the lesser of 10% per annum or the maximum rate
of interest permitted by applicable law (the "M aximum Rate").

The interest rate for any 2013 Series B Bond in the Weekly Mode shall be the rate of interest per
annum determined by the Remarketing Agent on and as of the applicable Rate Determination Date as the



minimum rate of interest which, in the opinion of the Remarketing Agent under then-existing market
conditions, would result in the sale of such Bond on the Rate Determination Date at a price equal to the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any.

During the Weekly Mode, the Remarketing Agent is to establish the Weekly Rate by 4:00 p.m.,
New York City time, on each Rate Determination Date. The Weekly Rate shall be in effect (i) initialy,
from and including the first day the 2013 Series B Bonds become subject to the Weekly Mode to and
including the following Tuesday and (ii) thereafter, from and including each Wednesday to and including
the following Tuesday. The Remarketing Agent is to make the Weekly Rate available (a) after 4:00 p.m.,
New York City time, on the Rate Determination Date by telephone to any Owner or Notice Party
requesting such rate and (b) by Electronic Means to the Paying Agent on the Rate Determination Date.
The Paying Agent is to give notice of such interest rates to the Trustee by Electronic Means not later than
4:00 p.m.,, New York City time, on the second Business Day immediately succeeding the Rate
Determination Date.

The determination by the Remarketing Agent of the Weekly Rate to be borne by the 2013 Series
B Bonds (other than 2013 Series B Bonds that are held by the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider, which,
in accordance with the 2013B Liquidity Facility, shall bear interest at the Bank Rate) shall be conclusive
and binding on the Owners of such 2013 Series B Bonds and the other Notice Parties except as otherwise
provided in the 2013 Series B Indenture.

Except as provided in the 2013 Series B Indenture, in the event (a) the Remarketing Agent fails or
is unable to determine the interest rate or Interest Period with respect to any 2013 Series B Bond, or
(b) the method of determining the interest rate or Interest Period with respect to a 2013 Series B Bond
shall be held to be unenforceable by a court of law of competent jurisdiction, such 2013 Series B Bond
shall thereupon, until such time as the Remarketing Agent again makes such determination or until there
isdelivered a Counsdl's Opinion to the effect that the method of determining such rate is enforceable, bear
interest at the "Alternate Rate" which, for a 2013 Series B Bond in the Weekly Mode, shall be the lesser
of (i) the SIFMA Index in effect on such Rate Determination Date plus 0.20% (or, in the event Municipal
Market Data, Boston, Massachusetts, a Thompson Financial Services Company, or its successor, no
longer publishes an index satisfying the requirements of the definition of SIFMA Index, the S& P Weekly
High Grade Index in effect on such Rate Determination Date plus 0.20%) or (ii) the Maximum Rate.

If sufficient funds are not available for the purchase of all 2013 Series B Bonds tendered or
deemed tendered and required to be purchased on any tender date or Mandatory Purchase Date, al such
2013 Series B Bonds shall bear interest a the Alternate Rate from the date of such failed purchase until
all such 2013 Series B Bonds are purchased as required in accordance with the 2013 Series B Indenture,
and al tendered 2013 Series B Bonds shall be returned to their respective Owners. Notwithstanding any
other provision of the 2013 Series B Indenture, such failed purchase and return shall not constitute an
Event of Default under the 2013 Series B Indenture. See Appendix A — "FORMS OF THE
INDENTURE — Master Indenture — Definitions.”

Changein Mode; Conversion

From time to time, by notice to the Notice Parties as required under the Indenture, the Authority
may effect a change in Mode with respect to all or any portion of the 2013 Series B Bonds. The Trustee
is to give written notice to Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds of such proposed change in Mode no less
than 15 days prior to the change to a new Mode in accordance with the Indenture. 2013 Series B Bonds
to be changed from one Mode to another Mode are subject to mandatory purchase on the Mode Change
Date as described in "Tender and Purchase of 2013 Series B Bonds — Mandatory Purchase — Mandatory
Purchase on Mode Change Date" under this caption.



The 2013 Series B Indenture provides that the Authority has the option to convert all or a portion
of the 2013 Series B Bonds on any Mode Change Date to Fixed Rate Bonds bearing Fixed Interest Rates,
in accordance with the Indenture.

Tender and Purchase of 2013 Series B Bonds
Owner's Election to Tender

Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds in a Weekly Mode may elect to have their 2013 Series B
Bonds (or portions thereof equal to an Authorization Denomination) purchased on any Business Day at a
price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the purchase date upon delivery of an
irrevocable written notice of tender or irrevocable telephonic notice of tender to the Remarketing Agent
promptly confirmed in writing to the Paying Agent, not later than 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on a
Business Day not less than seven (7) days before the purchase date specified by the Owner in such notice.

Such notice of tender is to state the CUSIP number, Bond number and the principal amount of
such Bond and that such Bond shall be purchased on the purchase date specified above. The 2013 Series
B Bond is to be delivered (with all necessary endorsements) at or before 12:00 noon, New York City
time, on the purchase date to the Remarketing Agent, provided, however, that payment of the purchase
price shall be made only if the 2013 Series B Bond so delivered to the Remarketing Agent conformsin all
respects to the description thereof in the notice described above. Payment of the purchase price with
respect to such purchases shall be made to the Owners of tendered 2013 Series B Bonds by wire transfer
in immediately available funds by the Paying Agent by the close of business on the purchase date. An
Owner who gives the notice of tender as described above may repurchase the 2013 Series B Bonds so
tendered on such purchase dates if the Remarketing Agent agrees to sell the 2013 Series B Bonds so
tendered to such Owner. If such Owner decides to repurchase such 2013 Series B Bonds and the
Remarketing Agent agrees to sell the specified 2013 Series B Bonds to such Owner, the delivery
requirements described above shall be waived.

Mandatory Purchase

Mandatory Purchase on Mode Change Date. 2013 Series B Bonds to be changed from one Mode
to another Mode will be subject to mandatory purchase on each day on which a new Mode for such 2013
Series B Bonds begins (the "M ode Change Date") at a purchase price equal to the principal amount of
any 2013 Series B Bonds purchased on such date plus accrued interest to such purchase date. 2013 Series
B Bonds subject to mandatory purchase on the Mode Change Date are to be delivered (with al necessary
endorsements) to the office of the Paying Agent in Salt Lake City, Utah at or before 12:00 noon, New
York City time, on the proposed Mode Change Date, and payment of the purchase price is to be made by
wire transfer of immediately available funds by the close of business on the such date. The Trusteeisto
give natice of such mandatory purchase by first-class mail, or transmitted in such other matter (such as by
Electronic Means) as may be customary for the industry as directed in writing by the Authority, to the
Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds no less than 15 days prior to the Mode Change Date. Such notice is
to state the Mode Change Date, the purchase price, the numbers of the 2013 Series B Bonds to be
purchased if less than all of the 2013 Series B Bonds owned by such Owners are to be purchased and that
interest on such 2013 Series B Bonds subject to mandatory purchase will cease to accrue from and after
the Mode Change Date. The failure to transmit such notice with respect to any 2013 Series B Bond shall
not affect the validity of the mandatory purchase of any other 2013 Series B Bond with respect to which
such notice was so transmitted. Any notice transmitted as aforesaid will be conclusively presumed to
have been given, whether or not actually received by the Owner. Solong asthe 2013 SeriesB Bondsare
registered in the DTC book-entry system described in Appendix H to this Official Statement, such
notices will be sent only to DTC's hominee.




Mandatory Tender upon Termination, Replacement or Expiration of the 2013B Liquidity Facility. If
at any time the Trustee receives notice from the Authority or the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider that
2013 Series B Bonds tendered for purchase shall, on the date specified in such notice, cease to be subject
to purchase pursuant to the 2013B Liquidity Facility as a result of (i) the termination, replacement or
expiration of the term, as extended, of the 2013B Liquidity Facility, including but not limited to
termination at the option of the Authority in accordance with the terms of the 2013B Liquidity Facility, or
(ii) the occurrence and continuance of certain specified events under the 2013B Liquidity Facility (i.e., on
aNotice of Termination Date as defined in the 2013B Liquidity Facility), then such 2013 Series B Bonds
shall be purchased or deemed purchased at a purchase price equal to the principal amount of the 2013
Series B Bonds so purchased plus accrued interest to such purchase date.

Any purchase of the 2013 Series B Bonds pursuant to the provision of the Indenture described in
the previous paragraph is to occur: (1) on the fifth Business Day preceding any expiration or termination
of the 2013B Liquidity Facility without replacement by an Alternate Liquidity Facility, or upon any
termination of the 2013B Liquidity Facility as described in clause (ii) of the preceding paragraph, and (2)
on the proposed date of the replacement of the 2013B Liquidity Facility in any case where an Alternate
Liquidity Facility has been delivered to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.

The Trustee is to give notice of mandatory purchase pursuant to the provision of the Indenture
described under this caption by first-class mail, or transmitted in such other manner (such as by Electronic
Means) as may be customary for the industry as directed in writing by the Authority, to the Owners of the
2013 Series B Bonds subject to mandatory purchase, with a copy to the MSRB, no less than 15 days prior
to the Mandatory Purchase Date (or in connection with a Mandatory Purchase Date described in clause
(ii) of the second preceding paragraph, not less than 3 days prior to the Mandatory Purchase Date). The
notice is to state the Mandatory Purchase Date, the purchase price and that interest on 2013 Series B
Bonds subject to mandatory purchase shall cease to accrue from and after the Mandatory Purchase Date.
The failure to transmit such notice with respect to any 2013 Series B Bond shall not affect the validity of
the mandatory purchase of any other 2013 Series B Bond with respect to which notice was so transmitted.
Any notice transmitted as described in this paragraph will be conclusively presumed to have been given,
whether or not actually received by any Owner. 2013 Series B Bonds purchased pursuant to the provision
of the Indenture described under this caption are to be delivered by the Owners (with all necessary
endorsements) to the office of the Paying Agent in Salt Lake City, Utah, at or before 12:00 noon, New
York City time, on the Mandatory Purchase Date, and payment of the Purchase Price of such 2013 Series
B Bonds is to be made by wire transfer in immediately available funds by the Paying Agent by the close
of business on such Mandatory Purchase Date.

Mandatory Purchase at the Direction of the Authority. When the Weekly Mode is in effect, the
2013 Series B Bonds are subject to mandatory purchase on any Business Day designated by the
Authority, with the consent of the Remarketing Agent and the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider, at the
purchase price equal to the principal amount of the 2013 Series B Bonds so purchased plus accrued
interest to such purchase date, payable in immediately available funds. The Trustee is to give notice of
mandatory purchase pursuant to the provision of the Indenture described under this caption by first-class
mail, or transmitted in such other manner (such as by Electronic Means) as may be customary for the
industry as directed in writing by the Authority, to the Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds subject to
mandatory purchase, with a copy to the MSRB, no less than 15 days prior to the Mandatory Purchase
Date. The notice is to state the Mandatory Purchase Date, the purchase price and that interest on 2013
Series B Bonds subject to mandatory purchase shall cease to accrue from and after the Mandatory
Purchase Date. The failureto transmit such notice with respect to any 2013 Series B Bond shall not affect
the validity of the mandatory purchase of any other 2013 Series B Bond with respect to which notice was
so transmitted. Any notice transmitted as aforesaid will be conclusively presumed to have been given,
whether or not actually received by any Owner. 2013 Series B Bonds purchased pursuant to the provision




of the Indenture described under this caption are to be delivered by the Owners (with all necessary
endorsements) to the office of the Paying Agent in Salt Lake City, Utah, at or before 12:00 noon, New
York City time, on the Mandatory Purchase Date, and payment of the purchase price of such 2013
Series B Bonds is to be made by wire transfer in immediately available funds by the Paying Agent by the
close of business on such Mandatory Purchase Date.

Source of Funds for Purchase of 2013 Series B Bonds

By the close of business on the date 2013 Series B Bonds are tendered or subject to mandatory
purchase under the terms of the 2013 Series B Indenture, as the case may be, the Paying Agent is to
purchase tendered 2013 Series B Bonds from the tendering Owners at the purchase price by wire transfer
in immediately available funds. Funds for the payment of such purchase price shall be derived solely
from the following sources in the order of priority indicated and neither the Paying Agent, the Authority
nor the Remarketing Agent shall be obligated to provide funds from any other source:

) the proceeds of the sale of 2013 Series B Bonds furnished to the Remarketing
Agent by the purchasers thereof pursuant to the 2013 Series B Indenture and on deposit in the
Remarketing Proceeds Account; and

(b) moneys furnished to the Trustee pursuant to the 2013 Series B Indenture,
representing the proceeds of a draw under the 2013B Liquidity Facility on deposit in the Standby
Purchase Account.

On any purchase date or Mandatory Purchase Date, the Remarketing Agent is to offer for sale and
use its best efforts to sell all such 2013 Series B Bonds tendered or deemed tendered at a price equa to
the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest. On each purchase date or Mandatory Purchase Date, as
the case may be:

() unless the Remarketing Agent has notified the Paying Agent otherwise, the
Remarketing Agent shall notify the Paying Agent (with a copy to the Liquidity Facility Provider)
by Electronic Means not later than 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on the day prior to such
purchase date or Mandatory Purchase Date of the amount of tendered 2013 Series B Bonds which
were successfully remarketed, the names of the tendering Owners and the registration instructions
(i.e., the names, addresses and taxpayer identification numbers of the purchasers and the desired
Authorized Denominations) with respect thereto; and

(i) the Paying Agent shall authenticate new 2013 Series B Bonds for the respective
purchasers thereof which shall be available for pick-up by the Remarketing Agent not later than
1:30 p.m., New York City time.

The proceeds of the sale by the Remarketing Agent of any 2013 Series B Bonds shall be delivered to the
Paying Agent for deposit into the Remarketing Proceeds Account of the Bond Purchase Fund not later
than 2:00 p.m., New Y ork City time, on the day of receipt of such remarketing proceeds.

The Remarketing Agent shall exercise its best efforts to (i) as promptly as possible and, in any
event, on the Business Day immediately following the date of receipt of any notice of tender of 2013
Series B Bonds, provide a copy of each such naotice of tender to the Liquidity Facility Provider and (ii) as
promptly as possible and, in any event prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the Business Day
immediately preceding the date on which 2013 Series B Bonds are subject to tender for purchase by the
Liquidity Facility Provider, give written notice to the Liquidity Facility Provider by facsimile or other



Electronic Means of the principa amount of 2013 Series B Bonds to be tendered on the next Business
Day for which, as of 4:00 p.m., it did not have commitments for purchase.

On each Purchase Date on which the 2013 Series B Bonds are to be purchased pursuant to a
tender, the Tender Agent shall direct the Trustee, by no later than 10:30 am., New York City time, to
draw upon the 2013B Liquidity Facility in an amount sufficient, together with any remarketing proceeds
that the Paying Agent has on hand at the time of such draw, to enable the Paying Agent to pay the
Purchase Price of the 2013 Series B Bonds to be purchased on such Purchase Date. The Paying Agent
shall direct the Trustee to make any drawing required as described herein in accordance with the terms of
the 2013B Liquidity Facility and deposit such moneys to the Bond Purchase Fund so that immediately
available funds will be available to the Paying Agent to pay the purchase price due on a Purchase Date by
2:30 p.m., New York City time, on the Purchase Date. See Appendix C —"SUMMARY OF CERTAIN
PROVISIONS OF THE 2013B LIQUIDITY FACILITY."

UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES THE OBLIGATION OF THE 2013B LIQUIDITY
FACILITY PROVIDER TO PURCHASE 2013 SERIES B BONDS TENDERED BY THE OWNERS
THEREOF OR SUBJECT TO MANDATORY PURCHASE MAY BE TERMINATED OR SUSPENDED
AND, IN SOME OF SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES, THE TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF SUCH
OBLIGATION WILL BE IMMEDIATE AND WITHOUT NOTICE TO SUCH OWNERS. IN SUCH
EVENT, SUFFICIENT FUNDS MAY NOT BE AVAILABLE TO PURCHASE 2013 SERIES B BONDS
TENDERED BY THE OWNERS OF THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS OR SUBJECT TO MANDATORY
PURCHASE.

Failure of 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider to Purchase 2013 Series B Bonds

Under the terms and provisions of the Indenture and the 2013B Liquidity Facility, the purchase
price of 2013 Series B Bonds in an amount equal to the principal amount thereof and accrued interest, if
any, thereon will be payable from moneys furnished in connection with remarketing of the 2013 Series B
Bonds or from the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider. The Authority is not responsible for any failure by
the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider to purchase 2013 Series B Bonds tendered at the option of the
Owner or subject to mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to the 2013 Series B Indenture. Failure to
purchase a 2013 Series B Bond tendered at the option of the Owner or subject to mandatory tender for
purchase as described above and in accordance with the 2013 Series B Indenture does not constitute an
Event of Default under the Indenture. See "Determination of Interest Rates’ under this caption.

Insufficient Funds to Pay Purchase Price

If sufficient funds are not available for the purchase of all 2013 Series B Bonds tendered or
deemed tendered and required to be purchased on any purchase date or Mandatory Purchase Date, al
such 2013 Series B Bonds shall bear interest at the Alternate Rate from the date of such failed purchase
until all such 2013 Series B Bonds are purchased as required in accordance with the 2013 Series B
Indenture, and al tendered 2013 Series B Bonds shall be returned to their respective Owners.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the 2013 Series B Indenture, such failed purchase and return shall
not constitute an Event of Default under the 2013 Series B Indenture.

Undelivered 2013 Series B Bonds
If 2013 Series B Bonds to be purchased are not delivered by the Owners to the Remarketing
Agent or the Paying Agent, as applicable, by 4:00 p.m., New Y ork City time, on the purchase date or the

Mandatory Purchase Date, as the case may be, the Paying Agent shall hold any funds received for the
purchase of those Bonds in trust in a separate account and shall pay such funds to the former Owners of
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such Bonds upon presentation of such Bonds. Such undelivered Bonds shall cease to accrue interest asto
the former Owners on the purchase date or the Mandatory Purchase Date, as the case may be, and moneys
representing the Purchase Price shall be available against delivery of those 2013 Series B Bonds at the
office of the Paying Agent in Salt Lake City, Utah; provided, however, that any funds which shall be so
held by the Paying Agent and which remain unclaimed by the former Owner of a Bond not presented for
purchase for a period of three years after delivery of such funds to the Paying Agent, shall, to the extent
permitted by law, upon request in writing by the Authority and the furnishing of security or indemnity to
the Paying Agent's satisfaction, be paid to the Authority free of any trust or lien, and thereafter the former
Owner of such Bond shall look only to the Authority and then only to the extent of the amounts so
received by the Authority without any interest thereon and the Paying Agent shall have no further
responsibility with respect to such moneys or payment of the Purchase Price of such Bonds. The Paying
Agent shall authenticate a replacement Bond for any undelivered Bond which may then be remarketed by
the Remarketing Agent.

No Purchases or Sales after Payment Default

If there shall have occurred and be continuing an Event of Default based on a payment default
under the Master Indenture with respect to the 2013 Series B Bonds, the Remarketing Agent shall not
remarket, and the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider shall not be required to purchase pursuant to any
Liquidity Facility, any 2013 Series B Bonds.

Prior Redemption
Fpoecial Redemption

The 2013 Series B Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, as awhole or in part, upon
notice as provided in the Indenture and described in "Notice of Redemption" under this caption, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount of the 2013 Series B Bonds or portions thereof to be so
redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption, without premium, on any date, from
amounts deposited in the 2013 Series B subaccount of the Class Il Specia Redemption Account.
However, moneys transferred to such 2013 Series B subaccount shall not be required to be used on the
earliest practicable date to redeem 2013 Series B Bonds but shall be used for such redemption only upon
Authority Request. Notwithstanding the provision described above, the 2013 Series B Bonds are subject
to redemption from other amounts on deposit in the Revenue Fund as described in "Cross Calls and
Recycling" under this caption. See aso "Selection of 2013 Series B Bonds for Partial Redemption” under
this caption.

It is anticipated that moneys will be available to redeem a substantial portion of the 2013
Series B Bonds without premium in accordance with the preceding paragraph. General
information concerning prepayments on mortgage loans relating to outstanding bonds of the
Authority (including the Bonds) has been filed by the Authority with and is available from EMMA
(as defined herein). See "Partll — CERTAIN BONDOWNERS RISKS- Considerations
Regarding Redemption at Par."

Cross Calls and Recycling

Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority may, by delivery of an Authority Request to the
Trustee, instruct the Trustee to transfer moneys on deposit in any subaccount of an Account in the
Redemption Fund to another subaccount of the same Account in the Redemption Fund to be applied to
the redemption of the same Class of Bonds of a different Series. See Appendix A —"FORMS OF THE
INDENTURE — Master Indenture — Redemption Fund." Each such Authority Request is required to:
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(i) certify that it is consistent with the most recently filed Related Cash Flow Statement (which may, if
necessary, link the Related Series) and not prohibited by the Related Series Indentures; and (ii) be
accompanied by evidence of satisfaction of all Asset Requirements for the Related Series. Although a
Series Indenture may prohibit such cross calls with respect to the Related Series of Bonds, the 2013
Series B Indenture does not limit cross calls of the 2013 Series B Bonds, which may result in early
redemption of the 2013 SeriesB Bonds at par. In addition, the Master Indenture permits the Authority,
by delivery of an Authority Request to the Trustee at any time prior to the giving of notice of redemption,
to instruct the Trustee to transfer moneys on deposit in a subaccount of an Account in the Redemption
Fund to a Related or an Unrelated subaccount of the Acquisition Account to be used to make or purchase
Mortgage Loans as permitted by the Master Indenture. Each such Authority Request is to (a) certify that
it is consistent with the most recently filed Related Cash Flow Statement and not prohibited by the
Related Series Indenture and (b) be accompanied by evidence of the satisfaction of al Asset
Requirements for the Related Series. See Appendix A — "FORMS OF THE INDENTURE — Master
Indenture — Revenue Fund." The Authority expects in most cases to transfer Prepayments or Mortgage
Repayments to the Special Redemption Accounts of the Redemption Fund in accordance with the Master
Indenture. See "Part Il — CERTAIN BONDOWNERS' RISKS — Considerations Regarding Redemption
at Par."

Optional Redemption

The 2013 Series B Bonds in a Weekly Mode are subject to optional redemption by the Authority,
in whole or in part, in Authorized Denominations on any date, at a redemption price equal to the principa
amount thereof, to be redeemed, plus the accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. In the event
of an optional redemption in part, the particular 2013 Series B Bonds or the respective portions thereof to
be redeemed shall be selected in accordance with the provisions described under "Selection of 2013
Series B Bonds for Partial Redemption” under this caption (provided, however, that any Bank Bonds shall
be redeemed prior to any other 2013 Series B Bonds).

Selection of 2013 Series B Bonds for Partial Redemption

If less than al the 2013 Series B Bonds are to be redeemed on any one date pursuant to the
provisions of the 2013 Series B Indenture described above, the particular 2013 Series B Bonds or the
respective portions thereof to be redeemed are to be selected by lot by the Bond Registrar in such manner
as the Bond Registrar in its discretion deems fair and appropriate (provided, however, that any Bank
Bonds which are 2013 Series B Bonds shall be redeemed prior to any other 2013 Series B Bonds).

Notice of Redemption

When any 2013 Series B Bonds in the Weekly Mode are to be redeemed, the Bond Registrar is to
cause notice of such redemption to be mailed by first class mail, or transmitted in such other manner
(such as by Electronic Means) as may be customary for the industry as directed in writing by the
Authority, not more than 30 days nor less than 15 days prior to the redemption date, to the Owner of each
2013 Series B Bond to be redeemed at such owner's address as it appears in the registration records of the
Bond Registrar or at such other address as is furnished in writing by such Owner to the Bond Registrar.
However, failure to give any such notice to any Owner, or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity
of the redemption proceedings for any 2013 Series B Bond with respect to which no such failure or defect
has occurred.

If DTC or its nomineeisthe registered owner of any 2013 Series B Bonds to be redeemed,

notice of redemption will only be given to DTC or its nominee as the registered owner of such 2013
Series B Bond. Any failure on the part of DTC or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial
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Owner (having received notice from a DTC Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial
Owner of any 2013 Series B Bond to be redeemed shall not affect the validity of the redemption of
such 2013 Series B Bond. See Appendix H —"BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM."

Cancellation in Lieu of Redemption

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture and prior to the mailing by the Bond
Registrar of a notice of redemption with respect to 2013 Series B Bonds, the Authority may direct the
Trustee or the Paying Agent to purchase such 2013 Series B Bonds with available moneys under the
Indenture for cancellation in lieu of redemption. The Trustee and the Paying Agent shall apply available
moneys in accordance with the Indenture from the Funds and Accounts specified in the Indenture to
purchase such 2013 Series B Bonds. See Appendix A —"FORMS OF THE INDENTURE."

Defeasance and Discharge

The Indenture provides the Authority with the right to discharge the pledge and lien created by
the Indenture with respect to any 2013 Series B Bonds by depositing with the Trustee or the Paying Agent
sufficient moneys or Defeasance Securities to pay when due the principal or Redemption Price of, if

applicable, and interest due or to become due on such 2013 Series B Bonds at the maturity or redemption
thereof. See Appendix A —"FORMS OF THE INDENTURE — Master Indenture — Defeasance.”

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally]
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PLAN OF FINANCE

Sour ces and Uses of Funds

The following are the estimated sources and uses of funds relating to the 2013 Series B Bonds.

Estimated
Amounts
SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Proceeds of 2013 SefieS B BONGS.........ccocviivirieiei e sesee st ses s $39,950,000
Amountsin 2006 Series C subaccount of Debt Service Reserve Fund @ ..... 1,997,500
AULOrity CONtIBULTON ... 345,000
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS ...t $42,292 500
USES OF FUNDS:
For payment of Refunded BondS @ ............co.ovueeeeeieeeeeeeeesesseeseseessees s $39,950,000
For deposit to 2013 Series B subaccount of Debt Service Reserve Fund @...... 1,997,500
For costs of issuance and Underwriter's compensation @ ...........ccccccovvvieeuenn. 345,000
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS. ...ttt $42,292 500

@
@]
(©)

®

Represents the amortized book value plus accrued interest for the Investment Securities being transferred.
See "The Refunding” under this caption.

See "Part | — CERTAIN PROGRAM ASSUMPTIONS — Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement” and "Part |l —
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS — Debt Service Reserve Fund." Investment
Securities on deposit in the 2006 Series C subaccount of the Debt Service Reserve Fund will be transferred and deposited
to the 2013 Series B subaccount of the Debt Service Reserve Fund at the time of the refunding of the Refunded Bonds to
satisfy the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement for the 2013 Series B Bonds. Such amounts are invested in certain
permitted Investment Securities, as described in "Part | — CERTAIN PROGRAM ASSUMPTIONS — Investments.”
Under the Indenture, the Authority may at any time replace such cash with a Qualified Surety Bond to satisfy the Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement.

Funds contributed by the Authority will be deposited to the 2013 Series B subaccount of the Costs of |ssuance Account in
the Program Fund and used to pay costs of issuance and Underwriter's compensation relating to the 2013 Series B Bonds.
See "Part | - UNDERWRITING."

The Refunding

Certain proceeds of the 2013 Series B Bonds will be deposited to the 2013 Series B Refunding

Account in the Program Fund and used on the date of delivery of the 2013 Series B Bonds to redeem and
pay the Refunded Bonds which are currently outstanding as Class | Bonds under the Master Indenture.
The 2013 Series B Bonds are being issued as Class || Bonds under the Master Indenture. Upon the
redemption and payment of the Refunded Bonds, the principal and interest payments on the Mortgage
Loans originally financed with proceeds of the Refunded Bonds and the Unrefunded 2006C Bonds (the
"2006C Mortgage Loans") will be allocated to the 2013 Series B Bonds and to the Unrefunded 2006C
Bonds, as described in "Part]| — CERTAIN PROGRAM ASSUMPTIONS — Allocation of Amounts
Received under 2006C Mortgage Loans."
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CERTAIN PROGRAM ASSUMPTIONS

Generally

The Bonds (including the 2013 Series B Bonds) and Auxiliary Obligations outstanding under the
Master Indenture (other than Auxiliary Obligations which are General Obligations of the Authority) will
be secured by, among other moneys, rights and interests, the Revenues derived from the Mortgage Loans,
including the 2006C-2 Mortgage Loans. See "Part Il — SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND
AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS." Such Revenues are expected by the Authority (based on certain
assumptions some of which are described under this caption) to be sufficient to pay the debt service on
the Bonds, including the 2013 Series B Bonds.

Assumptions have been made as to the range of variation in the generation of Revenues from
such sources in order to determine the effect of such variation on the sufficiency of Revenues to pay debt
service on the 2013 Series B Bonds. The Authority has reviewed these assumptions and concluded that
they are reasonable, but cannot guarantee that actual results will not vary materially from those projected.
To the extent that (i) Mortgage Loans are not paid on a timely basis in accordance with their terms,
(ii) the rate of receipt of Prepayments is either more rapid or less rapid than that projected, (iii) interest
payable on Adjustable Rate Bonds and amounts due under Related Auxiliary Obligations differs from
Related Interest Rate Contract Revenues, or (iv) actual investment income differs from that estimated by
the Authority, the moneys available may be insufficient for the payment of debt service on the Bonds
(including the 2013 Series B Bonds) and amounts due under Related Auxiliary Obligations and operating
expenses of the Program.

Allocation of Amounts Received under 2006C Mortgage L oans

Proceeds of the 2013 Series B Bonds are expected to be used to redeem and pay the Refunded
Bonds. Following delivery of the 2013 Series B Bonds and the redemption and payment of the Refunded
Bonds, $14,266,824 of the principa payments on the 2006C Mortgage Loans will be alocated to the
Unrefunded 2006C Bonds. Such principal payments are all of the principa payments on the 2006C
Mortgage Loans received after the Closing Date until the total amount of such principal payments equals
$14,266,824. All subsequent principal payments on the 2006C Mortgage Loans (expected to be in the
amount of $36,938,779) will be alocated to the 2013 Series B Bonds.

Interest payments on the 2006C Mortgage Loans will be allocated to the Unrefunded 2006C
Bonds based on the proportion of the then remaining principal payments on the 2006C Mortgage Loansto
be dlocated to the Unrefunded 2006C Bonds divided by the total principal amount of the 2006C
Mortgage Loans then outstanding. Interest payments allocated to the 2013 Series B Bonds are all interest
not allocated to the Unrefunded 2006C Bonds as described in the preceding sentence. Investors should
consider how such allocations will impact the timing of redemption of the 2013 Series B Bonds. See
"Part | - TERMS OF THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS — Prior Redemption.”

Mortgage L oan Rates; Amounts

Payments on Mortgage Loans, whether from scheduled monthly installments or from
Prepayments, together with Revenues generated as investment income on the funds held under the
Indenture, and invested under the investment agreements, are assumed to be the primary source of
Revenues. See Appendix B-2 —"THE MORTGAGE LOAN PORTFOLIO AND FUND BALANCES."
The Mortgage Loans (including the existing 2006C-2 Mortgage Loans a portion of the payments on
which will be allocated to the 2013 Series B Bonds upon redemption and payment of the Refunded
Bonds) bear mortgage loan interest rates, and are outstanding in the aggregate principal amounts, shown
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in Appendix B-2. See aso "Partll — THE SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE PROGRAM" and
Appendix F —"CLASS ASSET REQUIREMENTS FOR BONDS."

Insurance Limitations and Requirements

The Series Indentures each require that related Mortgage Loans (i) be insured by the FHA, (ii) be
guaranteed by the VA or the Rural Housing Service (formerly the RHCDS, a successor agency to the
FmHA), (iii) be PMI Mortgage Loans (as hereinafter defined), (iv) be a Mortgage Loan which is not
insured or guaranteed but has an origina principal amount equal to or less than 80% of the appraised
value (at the time of origination of such Mortgage Loan) or purchase price, whichever is less, of the
property securing such Mortgage Loan (an "Uninsured Mortgage Loan") or (v) otherwise be a type of
Mortgage Loan the purchase of which (as confirmed by each Rating Agency) will not adversely affect
such Rating Agency's then current rating on any Bonds. PMI Mortgage Loans must be insured by a
private insurance company approved by the Authority, qualified to transact business in the State and to
provide insurance on mortgages purchased by the Federa Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or Fannie
Mae and rated by the agency then rating the Bonds at least as high as "AA-" or "Aa3" (a "Private
Insurer"), and such insurance must remain in force unless required to be terminated pursuant to federal
law. See "Partll — THE SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE PROGRAM" and Appendix| -
"INSURANCE AND GUARANTEE PROGRAMS; FORECLOSURE." The Series Indentures each
provide that percentages of each type of Mortgage Loan in the aggregate Mortgage Loan portfolio shall
be percentages that each Rating Agency confirms will not adversely affect the then current rating on any
Bonds (including the 2013 Series B Bonds).

"PMI Mortgage Loans' are Mortgage Loans which are insured by a private insurance company
approved by the Authority, qualified to transact business in the State and to provide insurance on
mortgages purchased by Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae and rated by each Rating Agency then rating the
Bonds, at the time each PMI Mortgage Loan under the Indenture is made or originated, as set forth in the
respective series indenture (a "Private Insurer"). Such insurance must remain in force except as
otherwise required by the Homeowners Protection Act of 1998, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 4901, «t, seq. or
other applicable laws, or at the option of the Authority, the private mortgage insurance (if borrower paid)
may be cancelable after the outstanding principal balance of the Mortgage Loan is reduced to 80% or less
of the appraised value (based on the original appraisal) of the property securing the Mortgage L oan.

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally]

I-16



As of August 1, 2013, the following Private Insurers were providing insurance for the respective
percentages of PMI Mortgage L oans (based on outstanding principal balance):

PMI Mortgage L oans
and Privatelnsurers

Name of Per centage of Per centage of PM |
Private Insurer Trust Estate ® Mortgage L oans ©

Mortgage Guaranty Ins. 6.24% 36.90%
Genworth 4.97 29.39
RMIC 2.05 12.14
United Guaranty Corp. 1.78 10.53
PMI Mortgage I nsurance Co. 0.90 5.32
Triad Guaranty Insurance 0.48 2.82
Radian Guaranty Inc. 0.43 254
Unknown _0.06 0.36

Total Percentage 16.90% 100.00%

@ The ratings of several of these Private Insurers have been downgraded since the time that the PMI Mortgage Loansin the
Trust Estate which are insured by such Private Insurers were originated, and such ratings are in most cases below the
rating levels which were required for such Private Insurers by the applicable series indentures at the time of such
originations.

@ Aggregate principal balance of Mortgage Loans in the Trust Estate as of August 1, 2013 was approximately $904
million.

® Aggregate principal balance of Mortgage Loans as of August 1, 2013 which were PMI Mortgage Loans was
approximately $153 million.

® 1n October 2011, Arizona regulators took control of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. In November 2011, PMI Mortgage
Insurance Co. filed a voluntary petition under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. An Order for Appointment of
Receiver and Injunction was entered in March 2012, placing PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. into rehabilitation.

Asof August 1, 2013, 16.90% of the $904 million aggregate principal amount of Mortgage L oans
in the Trust Estate were PMI Mortgage Loans. Due to the downgrade in the ratings of most Private
Insurers, there has been a significant reduction of PMI Mortgage Loans being purchased by the Authority
and an increase in the number of government insured or guaranteed Mortgage L oans being purchased by
the Authority during recent years. The Authority currently does not accept reservations for mortgage
loans which are PM| Mortgage Loans.

Investments

In connection with the issuance of Bonds outstanding under the Master Indenture, the Authority
has invested certain amounts in Series subaccounts of Funds related to such Bonds in investment
agreements with the investment providers and amounts invested, and at the rates, as of August 1, 2013 as
set forth in the following table. As of August 1, 2013, the total amounts in Funds held under the Master
Indenture invested with the respective investment providers were as follows. $99,166,754 with Natixis
Funding Corp.; $49,134,656 with Trinity Funding Company, LLC; $9,613,500 with Royal Bank of
Canada; and $5,500,000 with Rabobank International.
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Outstanding I nvestment Agr eements

(asof August 1, 2013)

Funds Invested Amounts Termination
Series (in related Series subaccounts) | nvestment Provider s Invested Rates Dates
2001AA Revenue Fund, Redemption Fund, Trinity Funding Company, LLC ~ $32,593,694 5.30%/ 3/1/36
Debt Service Reserve Fund 2,500,000 3 month
LIBOR
2002A  Revenue Fund, Redemption Fund Trinity Funding Company, LLC 5,831,450 5.10% 11/1/32
2002A  Debt Service Reserve Fund Trinity Funding Company, LLC 4,475,500 5.60% 11/1/32
2002B  Revenue Fund, Redemption Fund @  Natixis Funding Corp. @ 23,811,321  4.60% 11/1/32
2003A  Revenue Fund, Redemption Fund Trinity Funding Company, LLC 3,734,012 4.13% 11/1/32
2004B  Revenue Fund, Redemption Fund @  Natixis Funding Corp. 8,275,785 4.60% 11/1/34
2006A Revenue Fund, Redemption Fund ®  Natixis Funding Corp. 5625991  4.60% 11/1/36
2006A Debt Service Reserve Fund Rabobank I nternational 5,500,000 4.71% 11/1/36
2006B  Debt Service Reserve Fund Royal Bank of Canada 9,613,500 5.56% 11/1/36
2008A  Revenue Fund, Redemption Fund ®  Natixis Funding Corp. © 61,453,657 4.27% 11/1/38

@)

@]

®

Neither the Authority nor the Underwriter makes any representation about the financia condition or creditworthiness of the

Investment Providers. Prospective investors are urged to make their own investigation into the financial condition and
creditworthiness of the Investment Providers.

These funds are invested under a master repurchase agreement entered with Natixis Funding Corp. on January 29, 2010 (the
"Master Repurchase Agreement"). The Master Repurchase Agreement replaced the investment agreements previoudly in
effect, and provides for the delivery of securities to the Trustee at a collateralization level of 105%.

This investment agreement has not been collateralized. However, the Authority has the right to terminate this investment
agreement without penalty at any time.

In accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture, the Authority has aso instructed and will
instruct the Trustee from time to time to invest certain moneys held by the Trustee in Funds and Accounts
relating to Bonds in permitted Investment Securities under the Indenture other than investment agreements,
including mortgage-backed securities. Information about such investments is available in filings with
national repositories that the Authority is obligated to make on an annual basis in connection with certain
outstanding Bonds under the Master Indenture. See "Part | — AVAILABILITY OF CONTINUING
INFORMATION."

The assumptions made by the Authority as to projected cashflows under the Indenture include the
assumption that the investment rates provided by the Investment Agreements shown on the preceding
table will be available as described. However, in the event that any Investment Agreement shown on the
preceding table is terminated as a result of default by the respective investment provider or for any other
reason, it may not be possible to reinvest such proceeds and deposits at these assumed rates and the
cashflows may be adversely affected.

Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement

The Debt Service Reserve Fund Reguirement for the 2013 Series B Bonds will be, as of any date
of determination, an amount egual to 5% of the Aggregate Principal Amount of all 2013 Series B Bonds
then Outstanding. Investment Securities currently on deposit in the 2006 Series C subaccount of the Debt
Service Reserve Fund will be transferred to the 2013 Series B subaccount of the Debt Service Reserve
Fund to fund the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement for the 2013 Series B Bonds as described in
"Part | - PLAN OF FINANCE — Sources and Uses of Funds." See aso "Part Il - SECURITY FOR THE
OBLIGATIONS — Debt Service Reserve Fund."
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Transfer of Interest Rate Contracts

In connection with the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, the Interest Rate Contracts outstanding
in connection with such Refunded Bonds will be reaffirmed and transferred to be alocated to the 2013
Series B Bonds (the "2013B Interest Rate Contract"). The 2013B Interest Rate Contract has been
entered into by the Authority with Bank of America N.A. (the "Counterparty"). In general, the terms of
the 2013B Interest Rate Contract provide that, on a same-day net-payment basis determined by reference
to a notional amount equal to the principal amount of the 2013 Series B Bonds, the Authority will pay a
fixed interest rate on the notional amount. In return, the Counterparty will pay a variable rate of interest
on a like notional amount. The agreement by the Counterparty to make payments under the 2013B
Interest Rate Contract does not affect the Authority's obligation to make payment of amounts due on the
2013 Series B Bonds. Neither the Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds nor any other person other than the
Authority will have any rights under the 2013B Interest Rate Contract or against the Counterparty. The
Authority's obligation to make regular interest payments to the Counterparty under the 2013B Interest
Rate Contract congtitutes a Class | Obligation under the Master Indenture, secured on parity with the lien
on the Trust Estate of the other Class | Obligations. The Authority's obligation to make termination
payments under the 2013B Interest Rate Contract in the event of early termination is a General Obligation
of the Authority and not secured by the Trust Estate under the Master Indenture. See "Part |l —
COLORADO HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY — Genera Obligations of the Authority." For
information concerning the Interest Rate Contracts and other Auxiliary Obligations currently Outstanding
under the Master Indenture, see Appendix B-1 —"THE OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY
OBLIGATIONS."

REMARKETING AGENTS

Remarketing Agreement for 2013 Series B Bonds

RBC Capitd Markets, LLC has entered into a Master Remarketing Agreement dated
November 1, 2009 with the Authority which will be amended to apply to the 2013 Series B Bonds
(collectively, the "Remarketing Agreement™). If 2013 Series B Bonds are tendered, deemed tendered
for purchase or subject to mandatory purchase as described under the caption "Part | —- TERMS OF THE
2013 SERIES B BONDS — Tender and Purchase of 2013 Series B Bonds," RBC Capital Markets, LLC is
required to use its best efforts to remarket such 2013 Series B Bonds in accordance with the terms of the
Indenture and the Remarketing Agreement at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued
interest, if any, thereon to the applicable purchase date. RBC Capital Markets, LLC is also responsible
for determining the rates of interest for such 2013 Series B Bonds in the manner and at the times specified
therefor in the Indenture. RBC Capital Markets, LLC is to transfer any proceeds of remarketing of the
2013 Series B Bonds it receives to the Paying Agent for deposit in accordance with the 2013 Series B
Indenture.

RBC Capital Markets, LLC may resign and be discharged of its duties and obligations with
respect to the 2013 Series B Bonds under the Remarketing Agreement and the Indenture at any time, by
providing the Authority, the Trustee, the Paying Agent and the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider with
thirty (30) days prior written notice, except that such resignation shall not take effect until the
appointment of a successor remarketing agent under the 2013 Series B Indenture; provided, that if a
successor remarketing agent has not been appointed by the end of such 30-day notice period, such
resignation shall not take effect until the earlier of (i) the appointment of a successor remarketing agent or
(i) sixty (60) additional days have passed. RBC Capital Markets, LLC may be removed with respect to
the 2013 Series B Bonds at any time, at the direction of the Authority by written notice to the
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Remarketing Agent, the Trustee, the Paying Agent and the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider upon at
least 30 days' notice to the Remarketing Agent, except that the Authority shall not remove RBC Capital
Markets, LLC until the appointment of a successor remarketing agent under the 2013 Series B Indenture.
The appointment of any successor remarketing agent shall be subject to the approval of the 2013B
Liquidity Facility Provider. Upon the resignation or removal of RBC Capitad Markets, LLC, as
Remarketing Agent, the Authority isto promptly cause the Paying Agent to give notice thereof by mail to
all Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds and to any rating agency which has assigned a rating to the 2013
Series B Bonds. RBC Capital Markets, LLC shal pay over, deliver and assign any moneys and 2013
Series B Bonds held by it in such capacity to its successor.

Remarketing Agentsfor Adjustable Rate Bonds

In connection with the Adjustable Rate Bonds outstanding under the Master Indenture, the
Authority has entered into remarketing agreements with the respective remarketing agents (including the
Remarketing Agreement with RBC Capital Markets, LLC relating to the 2013 Series B Bonds) set forth
in the following table (the "Remar keting Agents"):

Remarketing Agentsunder Master Indenture
asof August 1, 2013%

Series of Bonds Remar keting Agent
2001 SeriesAA-2 BNY MellonLLC

2001 SeriesAA-3 BNY MellonLLC

2002 SeriesA-1 D.A. Davidson & Co.

2002 Series A-3 George K. Baum & Company
2002 SeriesB-3 Barclays Capital Inc.

2002 SeriesC-3 Barclays Capital Inc.

2003 Series B-3 J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
2003 Series C-2 RBC Capital Markets, LLC
2004 Series A-2 RBC Capital Markets, LLC
2004 Series B-2 RBC Capital Markets, LLC
2005 Series A-2 RBC Capital Markets, LLC
2005 Series B-2 Barclays Capital Inc.

2006 SeriesA-1 George K. Baum & Company
2006 Series A-2 D.A. Davidson & Co.

2006 Series A-3 George K. Baum & Company
2006 Series B-2 RBC Capital Markets, LLC
2006 Series B-3 RBC Capital Markets, LLC
2006 Series C-2? RBC Capital Markets, LLC
2007 SeriesA-2 Loop Capital Markets, LLC
2007 Series B-2 RBC Capital Markets, LLC
2007 SeriesB-3 RBC Capital Markets, LLC

@ Table does not include the 2013 Series B Bonds. RBC Capital Markets, LLC wiill
be the Remarketing Agent for this Series as described in "Remarketing Agreement
for 2013 Series B Bonds" under this caption.

@ Certain of these Bonds are the Refunded Bonds.

The Remarketing Agentsare Paid by the Authority

The Remarketing Agents responsibilities include determining the interest rate from time to time
and remarketing the Bonds that are optionally tendered by the owners thereof, all as further described in
the applicable official statements for the related bonds. The Remarketing Agents are appointed by the
Authority and are paid by the Authority for their services. As aresult, the interests of the Remarketing
Agents may differ from those of existing holders and potential purchasers of Bonds.

1-20



The Remarketing Agents May Purchase Bondsfor their Own Account

The Remarketing Agents are permitted, but not obligated, to purchase the tendered Bonds for
their own account. The Remarketing Agents, in their sole discretion, may acquire tendered Bonds for
their own inventory in order to achieve a successful remarketing of the Bonds (i.e., because there
otherwise are not enough buyers to purchase the Bonds) or for other reasons. However, the Remarketing
Agents are not obligated to purchase Bonds, and may cease doing so at any time without notice. The
Remarketing Agents may also make a market in the Bonds by purchasing and selling such Bonds other
than in connection with an optional tender and remarketing. Such purchases and sales may be at or below
par. However, the Remarketing Agents are not required to make a market in the Bonds. If the
Remarketing Agents purchase Bonds for their own account, they may offer those Bonds at a discount to
par to some investors. The Remarketing Agents may also sell any Bonds they have purchased to one or
more affiliated investment vehicles for collective ownership or enter into derivative arrangements with
affiliates or others in order to reduce its exposure to the Bonds. The purchase of Bonds by the
Remarketing Agents may create the appearance that there is greater third party demand for the Bonds in
the market than is actualy the case. The practices described above also may reduce the supply of Bonds
that may be tendered in aremarketing.

Bonds may be Offered at Different Prices on any Date

The Remarketing Agents are required to determine on the rate determination date the applicable
rate of interest that, in their judgment, is the lowest rate that would permit the sale of the respective Bonds
at par plus accrued interest, if any, on the date the rate becomes effective (the "Effective Date"). The
interest rate will reflect, among other factors, the level of market demand for such Bonds (including
whether the Remarketing Agents are willing to purchase such Bonds for their own account). The
Remarketing Agreements require that the Remarketing Agents use their best efforts to sell respective
tendered Bonds at par, plus accrued interest. There may or may not be Bonds tendered and remarketed on
a rate determination date or an Effective Date, a Remarketing Agent may or may not be able to remarket
any Bonds tendered for purchase on such date at par and a Remarketing Agent may sell such Bond at
varying prices to different investors on such date or any other date. The Remarketing Agents are not
obligated to advise purchasers in aremarketing if they do not have third party buyers for all of the Bonds
at the remarketing price.

The Ability to Sell Bonds other than through Tender Process may be Limited

While the Remarketing Agents may buy and sell the Bonds, they are not obligated to do so and
may cease doing so at any time without notice. Thus, investors who purchase the Bonds, whether in a
remarketing or otherwise, should not assume that they will be able to sell their Bonds other than by
tendering the Bonds in accordance with the tender process.

TAX MATTERS

Federal Tax Treatment of Interest on 2013 Series B Bonds

In the opinion of Sherman & Howard L.L.C., Bond Counsel, assuming continuous compliance
with certain covenants described below, interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds is excluded from gross
income under federal income tax laws pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended to the date of delivery of the 2013 Series B Bonds (the "Tax Code"), and interest on the 2013
Series B Bonds is excluded from alternative minimum taxable income as defined in Section 55(b)(2) of
the Tax Code, except that such interest is required to be included in calculating the "adjusted current
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earnings' adjustment applicable to corporations for purposes of computing the alternative minimum
taxable income of corporations as described herein.

The Tax Code imposes several regquirements which must be met with respect to the 2013 Series
B Bonds in order for the interest thereon to be excluded from gross income and alternative minimum
taxable income to the extent described above. Certain of these requirements must be met on a continuous
basis throughout the term of the 2013 Series B Bonds. These requirements include: (a) limitations as to
the use of proceeds of the 2013 Series B Bonds; (b) limitations on the extent to which proceeds of the
2013 Series B Bonds may be invested in higher yielding investments; and (¢) a provision, subject to
certain limited exceptions, that requires all investment earnings on the proceeds of the 2013 Series B
Bonds above the yield on the 2013 Series B Bonds to be paid to the United States Treasury. The
Authority will covenant and represent in the Indenture that it will take all steps to comply with the
requirements of the Tax Code to the extent necessary to maintain the exclusion of interest on the 2013
Series B Bonds from gross income under the Tax Code and alternative minimum taxable income under
the Tax Code. Bond Counsel's opinion as to the exclusion of interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds from
gross income and alternative minimum taxable income is rendered in reliance on these covenants, and
assumes continuous compliance therewith. The failure or inability of the Authority to comply with these
requirements could cause the interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds to be included in gross income and
alternative minimum taxable income from the date of issuance. Bond Counsdl's opinion also is rendered
in reliance upon certifications of the Authority and other certifications furnished to Bond Counsel. Bond
Counsel has not undertaken to verify such certifications by independent investigation.

Under the Tax Code, an "adjusted current earnings’ adjustment is required to be made for
purposes of the aternative minimum tax provision applicable to corporations. Under this adjustment, 75
percent of the excess of a corporation's "adjusted current earnings' over the corporation's alternative
minimum taxable income (computed without regard to this adjustment and the alternative tax net
operating loss deduction) isincluded in calculating the corporation's alternative minimum taxable income
for purposes of the aternative minimum tax applicable to the corporation. "Adjusted current earnings'
include interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds.

The Tax Code contains numerous provisions which may affect an investor's decision to purchase
the 2013 Series B Bonds. Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds should be aware that the ownership of tax-
exempt obligations by particular persons and entities, including, without limitation, financial institutions,
insurance companies, recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, taxpayers who may be
deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations, foreign
corporations doing business in the United States and certain "subchapter S' corporations may result in
adverse federal tax consegquences. Under Section 3406 of the Tax Code, backup withholding may be
imposed on payments on the 2013 Series B Bonds made to any Owner who fails to provide certain
required information, including an accurate taxpayer identification number, to certain persons required to
collect such information pursuant to the Tax Code. Backup withholding may also be applied if the Owner
underreports "reportable payments® (including interest and dividends) as defined in Section 3406, or fails
to provide a certificate that the Owner is not subject to backup withholding in circumstances where such a
certificate is required by the Tax Code.

IRS Audit Program

The Internal Revenue Service (the "Service") has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt
obligations to determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is
includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. No assurances can
be given as to whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the 2013 Series B Bonds. If an audit
is commenced, the market value of the 2013 Series B Bonds may be adversely affected. Under current
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audit procedures, the Service will treat the Authority as the taxpayer and the Bondowners may have no
right to participate in such procedures. The Authority has covenanted in the Indenture not to take any
action that would cause the interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds to lose its exclusion from gross income or
from aternative minimum taxable income under the Tax Code. None of the Authority, the Underwriter
or Bond Counsd is responsible for paying or reimbursing any Registered Owner or Beneficial Owner for
any audit or litigation costs relating to the 2013 Series B Bonds.

Colorado Tax Treatment of 2013 Series B Bonds

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the 2013 Series B Bonds, their transfer and the income therefrom
is free from taxation by the State of Colorado under Colorado law in effect as of the date of delivery of
the 2013 Series B Bonds.

Other

Bond Counsel's opinion relates only to the exclusion of interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds to the
extent described above from gross income and from alternative minimum taxable income under federa
income tax laws, and the exclusion of the 2013 Series B Bonds from certain State of Colorado taxation as
described above, and will state that no opinion is expressed regarding other federal or state tax
conseguences arising from the receipt or accrual of interest on or ownership or disposition of 2013 Series
B Bonds. Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds should consult their own tax advisors as to the
applicability of these consequences.

The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel are based on existing law as of the delivery date of the
2013 Series B Bonds. No opinion is expressed as of any subsequent date nor is any opinion expressed
with respect to pending or proposed legislation. Amendments to the federal and state tax laws may be
pending now or could be proposed in the future which, if enacted into law, could adversely affect the
value of the 2013 Series B Bonds, the exclusion of interest on the 2013 Series B Bonds from gross
income or from alternative minimum taxable income under federal income tax laws and the exclusion of
the 2013 Series B Bonds from certain Colorado taxation as described above, or any combination thereof
from the date of issuance of the 2013 Series B Bonds or any other date, or which could result in other
adverse tax consequences. In addition, future court actions or regulatory decisions could affect the
market value of the 2013 Series B Bonds. Bond Owners are advised to consult with their own advisors
with respect to such matters.

UNDERWRITING

The 2013 Series B Bonds are to be purchased from the Authority by the underwriter listed on the
front cover page of this Official Statement (the "Underwriter"). The Underwriter has agreed, subject to
certain conditions, to purchase all but not less than all of the 2013 Series B Bonds at a price egqua to
100% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2013 Series B Bonds. The Underwriter will be paid a fee
of $117,450.63 (including reimbursement of certain expenses) in connection with the underwriting of the
2013 Series B Bonds. Theinitial public offering prices of the 2013 Series B Bonds may be changed from
time to time by the Underwriter.
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LITIGATION

At the time of the delivery of and payment for the 2013 Series B Bonds, the Authority will
deliver an opinion of its General Counsel, Charles L. Borgman, Esq., to the effect that no litigation before
any court is pending or, to his knowledge, threatened against the Authority in any way affecting the
existence of the Authority or the titles of its officers to their respective offices, or seeking to restrain or to
enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the 2013 Series B Bonds, or which would materially adversely
affect the financial condition of the Authority, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity or
enforceability of the 2013 Series B Bonds or the Indenture.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Official Statement contains statements relating to future results that are " forward-
looking statements' as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. When used
in this Official Statement, the words "estimate," "forecast,” "intend,” "expect,” "project,”
"budget," " plan" and similar expressionsidentify forwar d-looking statements.

THE ACHIEVEMENT OF CERTAIN RESULTS OR OTHER EXPECTATIONS CONTAINED
IN SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS INVOLVE KNOWN AND UNKNOWN RISKS,
UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER FACTORS WHICH MAY CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS,
PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS DESCRIBED TO BE MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM
ANY FUTURE RESULTS, PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED BY
SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT PLAN TO ISSUE
ANY UPDATES OR REVISIONS TO THOSE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS IF OR WHEN
ITS EXPECTATIONS, OR EVENTS, CONDITIONS OR CIRCUMSTANCES ON WHICH SUCH
STATEMENTS ARE BASED OCCUR.

RATINGS

Moody's Investors Service ("Moody's') and Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a Standard &
Poor's Financial Services LLC business ("S& P"), are expected to give the 2013 Series B Bonds ratings of
"Aa2/VMIG 1" and "AA/A-1+," respectively, based on the ddlivery of the 2013B Liquidity Facility by
the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider. Moody's and S&P have given the 2013 Series B Bonds the
underlying long-term ratings of "Aa2" and "AA", respectively. Such ratings reflect only the views of
Moody's and S&P, respectively, at the time such ratings are given, and are not a recommendation to buy,
sell or hold the 2013 Series B Bonds. The Authority makes no representation as to the appropriateness of
such ratings. An explanation of the significance of the ratings given by Moody's and S& P, respectively,
may be obtained from Moody's and S& P, respectively. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the
information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of its own. There
is no assurance that any such rating will continue for any given period of time or that any such rating will
not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by Moody's or S&P, respectively, if, in the judgment of
the issuing rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of any
such rating may have an adverse effect on the marketability or market price of the 2013 Series B Bonds.
The Authority has no obligation to oppose, or to provide Owners of the 2013 Series B Bonds with notice
of, any such revision or withdrawal of arating.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS OF PARTIES

RBC Capital Markets, LLC, a subsidiary of Royal Bank of Canada, is acting as the Underwriter
and Remarketing Agent of the 2013 Series B Bonds. RBC Capital Markets, LLC aso acts as the
remarketing agent for other Bonds under the Master Indenture, as described in "Part | - REMARKETING
AGENTS." Roya Bank of Canada has acted as a counterparty to the Authority under the Interest Rate
Contracts as described in Appendix B-1 and under agreements described in footnote (8) of the audited
2012 financial statements of the Authority attached as Appendix G. Royal Bank of Canada has aso
entered into an investment agreement with the Trustee in connection with the 2006B debt service reserve
account, and is the provider of numerous liquidity facilities in connection with the Bonds, including the
2013B Liquidity Facility relating to the 2013 Series B Bonds, as described in Appendix B-1 to this
Officia Statement.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The Authority has retained CSG Advisors Incorporated as its financial advisor (the "Financial
Advisor") in connection with the offering of the 2013 Series B Bonds. The Financial Advisor is not
obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken to make, an independent verification or to assume
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in this Officia
Statement. The Financial Advisor will act as an independent advisory firm and will not be engaged in the
business of remarketing, underwriting, trading or distributing the 2013 Series B Bonds.

LEGAL MATTERS

In connection with the issuance and sale of the 2013 Series B Bonds, Sherman & Howard L.L.C.,
as Bond Counsel to the Authority, will deliver the opinion included as Appendix E hereto. Hogan
Lovells US LLP will pass upon certain legal matters relating to the 2013 Series B Bonds as Disclosure
Counsdl to the Authority. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Authority by Charles L.
Borgman, Esq., its General Counsel. Dorsey & Whitney LLP will pass upon certain matters for the
Underwriter. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the 2013B Liquidity Facility Provider by its
internal counsel, by Canadian counsel Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP and by Kutak Rock LLP.

Neither Sherman & Howard L.L.C., Hogan Lovells US LLP nor Dorsey & Whitney LLP have
participated in any independent verification of the information concerning the financial condition or
capabilities of the Authority contained in this Official Statement.

AVAILABILITY OF CONTINUING INFORMATION

In connection with the issuance of the 2013 Series B Bonds, the Authority will deliver a
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, in the form attached as Appendix J hereto, by which the Authority
will agree to make available by filing with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's Electronic
Municipal Market Access System ("EMMA™"), in compliance with Rule 15¢2-12, certain annual financial
information and audited financial statements, commencing with the fisca year ending December 31,
2013, and notice of certain events.
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In 2012, the Authority discovered that, for the fiscal years ended as of and prior to December 31,
2009, whileit had filed quarterly reports including all components of the annual financia information and
operating data with respect to certain of its outstanding bonds under the Authority's related continuing
disclosure undertakings, this information had been reported as of dates other than December 31, which is
technically required by such continuing disclosure undertakings. So, while such financial information
and operating data of the nature required to be provided annually had been provided as of quarterly dates
(April 1, July 1, October 1 and January 1 for information relating to its multi-family bonds and
February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 for information relating to its single-family mortgage
bonds) to the market by posting on the Authority’ s website and, in many cases, by filing with the national
repositories, there had been a technical non-compliance by the Authority with its continuing disclosure
obligationsin that the information was not provided as of December 31.

The Authority filed with EMMA Annua Financia Information as of December 31 for the fiscal
years ended as of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, and implemented measures to ensure that Annual
Financial Information for the fiscal year ended as of December 31, 2012 and for future fiscal yearswill be
provided as of December 31 and will be timely filed with EMMA in accordance with the requirements of
the related Continuing Disclosure Undertakings.

The Authority also discovered that certain 2012 filings to be made by the Authority on behalf of a
conduit borrower for bonds issued by the Authority had not been made. Such filings have been made

with EMMA and for future years will be timely filed with EMMA as required by the related continuing
disclosure agreement.

(End of Part 1)
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PART 11

COLORADO HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY

Background

In 1973, upon a finding that there existed in the State a shortage of decent, safe and sanitary
housing available within the financial capabilities of low and moderate income families, the Colorado
General Assembly established the Colorado Housing Finance Authority, since renamed the Colorado
Housing and Finance Authority, as a body corporate and a political subdivision of the State for the
purpose of increasing the supply of decent, safe and sanitary housing for such families. The Act
authorizes the Authority, among other things, to make loans to individuals and sponsors to finance the
construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or purchase of housing facilities for low and moderate income
families and to purchase mortgage loans from, and lend moneys to, qualified Mortgage Lenders under
terms and conditions which provide for loans to finance housing facilities for low and moderate income
families. The Act was amended in 1982 to authorize the Authority to finance project and working capital
loans to commercia and industrial enterprises of small and moderate size. The Act was amended again in
1987 to create an economic development fund to enable the Authority to finance projects or provide
capital for business purposes.

In order to achieve its authorized purposes, the Authority currently operates Qualified and Non-
Qualified Single Family Mortgage Programs, a Rental Acquisition Program and various rental and
business finance programs. See "Programs To Date" under this caption. The Act authorizes the
Authority to issue its bonds, notes and other obligations in order to provide sufficient funds to achieve its
purposes as set forth in the Act. Bonds or notes issued with respect to such programs are and will be
separately secured from other bonds of the Authority, including the Bonds, except as described in "Part 11
—SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS."

Board of Directorsand Staff Officers

The Board of Directors of the Authority consists of the Colorado State Auditor, a
member of the Colorado General Assembly appointed jointly by the Speaker of the House and the
Majority Leader in the Senate, an executive director of a principal department of State government
appointed by the Governor of Colorado and eight public members appointed by the Governor with the
consent of the Senate. Members of the Board of Directors continue to serve after the end of their
respective terms until a successor has been duly appointed and confirmed. The present members of the
Board of Directors of the Authority are as follows:

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally]
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Present Board of Directors of the Authority

Name Affiliation
Dianne Ray, Colorado State Auditor; Denver, Colorado
Chair @
CharlesKnight, Founding Partner, Venture Law Advisors; Denver,

Chair, pro tem @
Cecilia Sanchez de Ortiz,

Secretary/Treasurer ©
Sam Betters

Reeves Brown

James M. Hahn

Steven Hutt

Michael Johnston

Colorado
Retired; Denver, Colorado

Executive Director; Housing Authority of the City of
Loveland; Loveland, Colorado

Executive Director, Colorado Department of Local
Affairs; Denver, Colorado

Principal, IMH Consulting, LLC; Denver, Colorado
Executive Director, Denver Employees Retirement
Plan; Denver, Colorado

State Senator, Denver, Colorado

End of Term
Standing

July 1, 2015
July 1, 2015
July 1, 2015
At the pleasure of the

Governor
July 1, 2017

July 1, 2017

End of legidative
biennium 2013-2014

Jody Kole Executive Director, Grand Junction Housing Authority; July 1, 2017
Grand Junction, Colorado

David J. Myler, Esq. Partner, The Myler Law Firm, P.C.; Basalt, Colorado July 1, 2017

Paul Washington Executive Director, City and County of Denver Office July 1, 2017

of Economic Development; Denver, Colorado

@ This Board member was elected as Chair of the Board effective March 28, 2013.
@ This Board member was elected as Chair, pro tem, of the Board effective March 28, 2013.
® This Board member was appointed as Secretary/Treasurer of the Board effective March 28, 2013.

The principal staff officers of the Authority are asfollows:

Cris A. White, Executive Director, was appointed as Executive Director in March 2010, after
serving as Chief Operating Officer since February 2002. Mr. White joined the staff in 1988 and served in
various capacities until January 1996. He rejoined the staff in September of 1996 as the Director of Asset
Management, after serving in the interim as a business development executive with an international
equipment and real estate mortgage lender. On February 1, 2001, Mr. White was appointed Deputy
Executive Director for Asset Management and Business Support Services and served until his present
appointment. He also continued to serve as Director of Asset Management until December 10, 2001. Mr.
White has a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from Regis College.

Jaime Gomez, Chief Operating Officer, joined the staff in August 1999. Prior to appointment to
his current position in March 2010, Mr. Gomez served as the Director of Commercia Lending following
a corporate reorganization in July 2006 which merged the Authority's Business Finance and Rental
Finance Divisions, forming the Commercial Lending Division. Prior to that position, Mr. Gomez served
as the Director of Business Finance. Mr. Gomez is a graduate of the University of Colorado with a
degree in Finance. Mr. Gomez has prior experience working in both the public and private sector,
including five-and-a-half years as director of finance and business development for the Colorado Office
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of Economic Development. Mr. Gomez was also designated as a certified bank examiner by the Federal
Reserve Board of Governorsin February of 1991.

Charles L. Borgman, General Counsel, joined the staff in September 2004 and assumed the
position of General Counsel on December 1, 2004. Mr. Borgman is a graduate of the University of lowa
and the University of lowa College of Law and has over 30 years experience in private practice and asin-
house counsel in the areas of real estate, mortgage finance, commercial transactions, title insurance,
banking and work-outs. Immediately prior to joining the Authority, Mr. Borgman was Vice President and
Regional Counsel for North American Title Company, a part of Lennar Corporation.

Patricia Hippe, Chief Financial Officer, joined the staff in October 2011. Prior to joining the
Authority, Ms. Hippe spent 16 years at the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency, the first five years as the
Finance Director and later as the Deputy Commissioner and Chief Financial Officer. Prior to her work
with the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency, Ms. Hippe was the ass stance vice president and corporate
trust officer for Wells Fargo Bank, formerly known as Norwest Bank, from 1994 to 1995. From 1984 to
1994, Ms. Hippe was the manager of secondary market programs for Higher Education Management and
Resources (HEMAR) Management Corporation. In this capacity, she oversaw the daily finance,
accounting and secondary market operations of HEMAR's seven affiliate companies which specialized in
providing student loan secondary market programs. Ms. Hippe received her Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Minnesota, and earned her Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of St. Thomas in St. Paul, Minnesota and has successfully
completed exams for Certified Public Accountants (inactive status) and Certified Management
Accountants.

Margaret Danuser was appointed as Director of Finance in July, 2010. Prior to joining the
Authority, Mrs. Danuser served as the debt administrator for the City and County of Denver, and as a
fixed income investment manager for the Dreyfus Founders Funds. She graduated from the University of
Colorado at Boulder with aBachelor of Arts degree in Internationa Affairs.

Mariam J. Masid, Director, Legal Operations, was appointed in October 2010. Prior to her
current position, beginning in December 2005, Ms. Masid served the Authority as an in-house Senior
Attorney. Ms. Masid is a graduate of the University of Nebraska College of Law and also earned a Ph.D.
from Colorado State University in Earth Sciences, Water Resource Management. She has over 30 years
experience in private practice and as in-house counsel in the areas of rea estate, mortgage finance,
municipal law, litigation, and general civil matters. Prior to joining the Authority, Ms. Masid was an
adjunct professor at Colorado State University teaching real estate law, real estate principles and business
law.

Dan McMahon was named Director of Home Finance on February 5, 2013 after serving as
Interim Director of Home Finance since November 27, 2012. Mr. McMahon joined the Authority in
March 2000 and most recently served as Manager of Home Finance Loan Production. Mr. McMahon
received a Bachelor of Arts Degree and a Master's Degree in Non-Profit Management from Regis
University in Denver, Colorado. Mr. McMahon has more than 15 years' experience in various capacities
in public and non-profit rea estate lending and devel opment.

Seve Johnson was appointed as Director of Commercial Lending in July 2010. Mr. Johnson
began working for the Authority in 1996 as a Business Finance Loan Officer. In 1999, he was promoted
to Manager of Business Lending Production. Most recently, Mr. Johnson has led the Authority's small
business team's efforts to diversify and expand the products available to help small businesses access
capital. Mr. Johnson is the vice chair of the Colorado Enterprise Fund, and a board member of the



Council of Development Finance Agencies (CDFA). He graduated from Hillsdale College in Michigan
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in marketing and finance.

D. Brian Miller was appointed as Director of Asset Management in October 2006. Prior to his
current position, Mr. Miller served as the Manager of Multifamily Loan Compliance Department, as well
as various other positions within the Asset Management Division since joining the Authority in
November 1998. Mr. Miller has over fifteen years experience in financial services and asset
management. Mr. Miller is a graduate of the University of Northern Colorado with a Bachelor's Degree
in Finance.

Rodney D. Hardin joined the staff as Director of Information Technology in January 2005.
Prior to joining the Authority, Mr. Hardin served as SVP/CIO at Pulte Mortgage LLC for 11 years. He
also served as SVP/MIS Manager at North American Mortgage for five years. Heis past Chairman of the
MBA Residential Technology Steering Committee. His education includes a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Sonoma State University in Rohnert Park, California and a Master's
Degree in Business Administration from Regis University in Denver, Colorado. Mr. Hardin has recently
announced his retirement on January 3, 2014. A search process for a new Director of Information
Technology has commenced.

Deborah Herrera, Director of Human Resources, originaly joined the Authority in October
2001 as a senior level Human Resources Generalist and rejoined the Authority in September 2006 as the
Director of Human Resources. She has ten years of human resources experience, during four of which
she served in a management capacity in the financial/mortgage industry. Prior to regjoining the Authority,
Mrs. Herrera was a Human Resources Director for an information and analytics company serving the
mortgage and finance industry. Mrs. Herrera received a Bachelor of Artsin Psychology and a Mastersin
Human Resources Management from the University of North Florida

Dana P. Pearce, Director of Audit and Compliance, was appointed as Director of Interna
Audit in August 2012 and appointed as Director of Audit and Compliance in March 2013. Prior to her
current position, Ms. Pearce served as the Manager of Internal Audit a the Authority since joining in
2005. Ms. Pearce is a Certified Internal Auditor, Certified Fraud Examiner and a Certified Information
Systems Auditor, with over fifteen years of financial and audit experience. Ms. Pearce has prior
experience working in both the public and private sectors. Ms. Pearce holds a bachelor's degree in
finance/accounting from Florida State University.

David Paulsen, Interim Controller, was appointed as Interim Controller upon the resignation of
the Controller on November 3, 2013. Mr. Paulsen joined the staff as Assistant Controller in November
2007. Prior to joining the Authority, Mr. Paulsen served as Accounting Manager a Harris Corporation
and as Controller to a company acquired by Harris. Mr. Paulsen has more than thirty years of accounting
experience including nine years of auditing experience with Deloitte Haskins & Sells (now Deloitte &
Touche). Mr. Paulsen has a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting from Brigham Young University and a
Master's Degree in Accountancy from the University of Illinois and is a Certified Public Accountant
(inactive status). A search process for anew permanent Controller of the Authority is underway.

Employees and Pension I nformation

As of December 31, 2012, the Authority had approximately 176 full-time employees, all of whom
were members of the Public Employees Retirement Association of Colorado ("PERA"). State statutes
required the Authority to contribute 13.70% of each participating employee's gross salary to PERA in
2012. In 2012, the Authority's PERA contribution totaled approximately $1,769,000, compared to an
Authority contribution in 2011 of $1,869,000. See footnote (11) of the audited 2012 financial statements
of the Authority attached as Appendix G for further information.
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Insurance Coverage

The Authority has genera liability, errors and omission and employee dishonesty insurance
coverage.

Selected Financial | nformation

The following is a brief summary of historical selected financial information for the Authority.
The audited financia statements of the Authority also provide certain financial information about the
Authority on a fund accounting basis, including a description of its General Fund. This information has
been included solely for purposes of providing a general overview for potential purchasers of the financia
status of the Authority given that the Authority operates the programs which result in the Mortgage Loans
securing Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations under the Master Indenture and also services such Mortgage
Loans. See "Part Il — THE SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE PROGRAM." The Bonds and Auxiliary
Obligations are limited obligations of the Authority secured by and payable from the Trust Estate, except
in the limited case of those Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations designated as general obligations of the
Authority. See "Obligations of the Authority" and "The General Fund" under this caption. For specific
information about the Trust Estate, see "Part || — SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND AUXILIARY
OBLIGATIONS," and "Part Il — CERTAIN BONDOWNERS' RISKS" and Appendices B-1 and B-2.
The overall financial status of the Authority does not indicate and will not necessarily affect whether
amounts will be available in the Trust Estate to pay principal and interest on Bonds (including the 2013
Series B Bonds) when due.
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Colorado Housing and Finance Authority
Combining Schedule — Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

Colorado Housing and Finance Authority

Statements of Net Position
For the years ended December 2012 and 2011

(in thousands of dollais)

2012 2011
Assets
Cument assets:
Cash
Restricted $ 89,268 $ 56,011
Unrestricted 67,163 33,281
Investments (partially restricted, see note 2) 461,71 538,082
Loans receivable (partially restricted, see note 3) 93,831 113,701
Loans receivable held for sale 29,967 38,206
Other cument assets 20,035 25,049
Total current assets 761,975 804,330
Noncurrent assets:
Investments (partially restricted, see note 2) 339,218 346,588
Loans receivable, net (partially restricted, see note 3) 1,822,055 2,151,145
Capital assets, net 8,110 24,160
Other assets 40,631 45,316
Total noncurrent assets 2,210,014 2,567,209
Total assets 2,971,989 3,371,539
Deferred Outflows
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives 233,514 267,410
Liabilities
Cument liabilities:
Short-term debt 71,475 46,100
Bonds payable 172,041 321,512
Notes payable 103 104
Other cument liabilitie s 64,140 73,421
Total current liabilities 307,759 441,137
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bends and notes payable, net 2,265,630 2,567,791
Derivative instruments 239,291 281,951
Hybrid instrument borrowing 73,233 53,607
Other liabilities 5,922 23,941
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,584,076 2,927,290
Total liabilities 2,891,835 3,368,427
Deferred Inflows
Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivatives 1,489 -
Net position
Invested in capital assets 8,110 24,160
Restricted by bond indentures 129,758 137,096
Unrestricted 174,311 109,266
Total net position $ 312,179 § 270,522

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Colorado Housing and Finance Authority
Combining Schedule - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Net Position
For theyear ended December 31, 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

Colorado Housing and Finance Authority

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the years ended December 2012 and 2011

{in thousands of doffars}

2012 2011
Interest income and expense:
Interest on loans receivable $ 113,216 $ 134,597
Interest on investments 23,291 23,423
Interest on debt {123,606) (138,545)
Net inferest income 12,901 19,475
Other operating income {loss):
Rental income 2,675 8,804
Gain on sale of loans 25,103 16,792
Investment derivative activity loss (13,820) (1,715)
Netincrease in the fair value of investments 3,590 25,887
Cther revenues 21,468 19,443
Total other operating income 39,016 69,211
Total operating income 51,917 88,686
Operating expenses:
Salaries and related benefits 17,836 18,210
General operating 19,750 40,783
Depreciation 2,722 3,684
Provision for loan losses 9,106 9,036
Total operating expenses 49 414 71,713
Net operating income 2,503 16,973
Nonoperating income and expenses:
Federal grant receipts 112,954 134,491
Federal grant payments (112,954) (134,491)
Gain {loss) on sale of capital assets 39,154 {30)
Total nonoperating income and expenses 39,154 {30)
Change in net position 41,657 16,943
Net position:
Beginning of year 270,522 253,579
End of year $ 312179 § 270,522

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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The General Fund
Generally

CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE MASTER INDENTURE HAVE BEEN OR MAY IN
THE FUTURE BE DESIGNATED AS GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY. SEE
"Partll — SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS' AND
APPENDIX B-1- "THE OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS." THE
FOLLOWING INFORMATION REGARDING THE AUTHORITY'S GENERAL FUND IS
PROVIDED ONLY IN CONNECTION WITH OBLIGATIONS WHICH HAVE BEEN OR ARE IN
THE FUTURE SO DESIGNATED.

The Genera Fund is funded principally from reimbursement of administrative expenses and other
allowable transfers from other funds (including the transfer of assets in excess of specified parity levels
from other bond issues); loan fees payable to the Authority by borrowers; servicing fees payable to the
Authority in connection with outstanding loans, income from the Authority's Rental Acquisition Program;
income on investments and mortgage loans held temporarily (for warehousing purposes) and permanently
in the Genera Fund; and administrative fees payable by the federal government in connection with the
Section 8 housing assistance payments program. Uses of amounts in the General Fund include payment
of general and other administrative expenses and payment of costs relating to those activities deemed
necessary to fulfill the Authority's corporate purposes and not payable from other funds of the Authority.
The General Fund itself is not subject to any pledge created under the Master Indenture.

The Authority Board, in its discretion, has historically from time to time designated portions of
the General Fund balance to particular purposes, and may do so in the future, which may affect the
availability of the General Fund for payments in connection with any Bonds or Auxiliary Obligations
which have been designated as genera obligations. The designations have been or may be for particular
uses by means of annua appropriations to certain programs, the establishment of reserves in limited
situations and the imposition of restrictions on the fund balance. Designations by the Authority's Board
using each of these means may also be redesignated at any time in the Board's discretion. The Authority
Board aso annually restricts the fund balance of the Genera Fund (net of amounts previously
appropriated or restricted for various funds, debt service reserves, or operating reserves) for the benefit of
the holders of certain bonds of the Authority in the event that no other moneys are legally available for
debt service payments. Aslong as the Authority isnot in default under the related indenture or resolution
for such bonds, the Board may withdraw such restricted amounts at any time.
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Financial Information for the General Fund

The following table sets forth historical selected financial information for the General Fund for
the five years ended December 31, 2012 as provided by the Authority.

Colorado Housing and Finance Authority
General Fund
Selected Financial Information
Years Ended December 31
(in thousands of dollars)

FY FY FY FY FY
2012 2011 2010 2009* 2008
Interest and investment revenue:
Loans receivable $ 7,665 $12,719 $13,302 $17,979 $15,635
Investments 149 730 426 337 1,807
Net increase (decrease) fair value of
long-term investments (13) 74 47 185 4
Tota interest and
investment revenue 7,801 13,523 13,775 18,131 17,483
Interest expense - bonds and notes
payable 4,544 5722 5,603 6,457 8,989
Net interest and investment revenue 3,257 7,801 8,127 11,674 8,494
Other revenue (expense):
Rental operations 2,675 8,804 9,306 7,460 8,424
Fees and miscellaneous income 45,503 35,731 39,219 27,106 17,592
Hedging activity loss 445 (527) (200) - --
Gain on sales of capital assets 39,154 (30) 128 2 6,091
Total other revenue 87,777 43,978 48,453 568 32,107
Net revenue 91,034 51,779 56,625 46,242 40,601
Other expenses:
Salaries and related benefits 17,836 18,210 17,808 16,180 14,935
General operating 17,874 38,962 54,306 16,334 14,160
Provision for losses 1,407 3,791 2,917 3,662 2,985
Other interest expense 173 1,038 1,068 1,099 1,137
Transfers (4,073) (7,005) (2,236) (4,078) 10,663
Depreciation 2,634 3,684 3,773 3,159 2,685
Total other expense 35,851 58,680 77,636 36,356 46,565
Change in net assets $55,183 $(6,901) $(21,011) $_ 9,886 $(5,964)
Net Assets, end of year $180,578 $133,426 $140,326 $161,337 $151,451
Bonds and Notes Payable $141,973 $140,773 $190,178 $203,041 $287,704
Total Assets $376,461 $344,403 $420,491 $400,426 $471,057

* Asrestated in the audited financial statements of the Authority for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Sources: Derived based on the audited financial statements of the Authority for years ended December 31, 2008-2012. See the
audited 2012 financial statements attached as Appendix G.
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Authority Policy Regarding Swaps

The Master Indenture permits the Authority to enter into "Auxiliary Agreements," which include
interest rate exchange or swap contracts, cash flow exchange contracts, forward swaps, interest rate
floors, caps or collars and other derivative products which quaify as "Interest Rate Contracts' under the
Indenture. See Appendix B-1—-"THE OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS -
The Outstanding Auxiliary Obligations — Outstanding Interest Rate Contracts. Under the master
indenture relating to its Multi-Family/Project Bonds and under the general resolution relating to its
Multifamily Housing Insured Mortgage Revenue Bonds, the Authority is also permitted to, and has
entered into, certain derivative obligations which are described in footnote (8) of the audited 2012
financial statements of the Authority attached as Appendix G.

Programsto Date

The following is a brief summary of the programs currently operated by the Authority. This
summary has been included solely for purposes of providing information about the Authority's activities
to assist a potential investor in evaluating the Authority and its programs. Except as otherwise
described herein, the loans referred to below are not pledged in any way as security for the
Remarketed Bonds. See "Part Il — SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND AUXILIARY
OBLIGATIONS." Seeaso"Obligations of the Authority" under this caption.

Sngle Family Mortgage Programs

Under its Single Family Mortgage Programs, the Authority may make mortgage loans for single-
family residential dwellings directly to individual borrowers or may purchase such mortgage loans from
qualified originating Mortgage Lenders. The Authority presently acquires mortgage loans under its
Qualified Sngle Family Mortgage Program and its Non-Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program.
Under its Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program, the Authority may make mortgage loans to Eligible
Borrowers meeting certain income limit requirements, for Eligible Property not exceeding certain
Purchase Price limits, and subject to certain other restrictions imposed, in some cases, by the Tax Code.
The Authority permits Eligible Borrowers under its Non-Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program to
meet certain income limits which are somewhat higher than the limits permitted for the Qualified Single
Family Mortgage Program. Thereisalso no limit on prior home ownership or limit on the purchase price
of aresidence which may be acquired with the proceeds of aloan under the Non-Qualified Single Family
Mortgage Program, athough the Authority does not exceed the Fannie Mae conforming loan limits.
Proceeds of a mortgage |oan under the Non-Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program may also be used
under the Authority's refinancing program to refinance existing Mortgage Loans. In many other respects,
the requirements for the Non-Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program are the same as the
requirements for the Authority's Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program. See "Part 1| — THE
SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE PROGRAM." For certain information regarding the outstanding
mortgage loans acquired under the Single Family Mortgage Programs, see footnote (3) to the audited
2012 financia statements of the Authority attached as Appendix G.

Commercial Loan Programs

Rental Finance Programs. The Commercial Lending Division of the Authority encompasses the
business finance programs (described below) as well as the renta finance programs under which the
Authority makes mortgage loans to qualified sponsors of low and moderate income multi-family housing
within Colorado. As part of its rental finance activities, the Authority makes mortgage loans insured by
an agency or instrumentality of the United States. The insured rental loans made by the Authority must
be insured by an agency or instrumentality of the United States under an insurance program requiring
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payment of not less than 99% of the principal amount of such mortgage in the event of default. Insured
rental loans made to date have been insured by the Federal Housing Administration ("FHA") under
Sections 221(d)(3), 221(d)4 and 223(f) of the National Housing Act of 1934, as amended, and under
Section 542(c) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992, as amended. These insured
rental loans have been funded by the Authority as described in "Obligations of the Authority —
Commercial Loan Programs" under this caption. In the case of a Section 542(c) claim, the Authority is
responsible to reimburse FHA for 50% of any loss incurred by the FHA as aresult of and after settlement
of such claim. See "Obligations of the Authority — General Obligations — Loans Backed by Authority
General Obligation” under this caption. For certain information regarding the Authority's outstanding
insured rental loans, see footnote (3) to the audited 2012 financial statements of the Authority attached as
Appendix G.

The Authority also makes uninsured rental |oans to 8501(c)(3) nonprofit corporations and public
housing authorities as well as to for-profit borrowers. Certain of these uninsured rental loans have been
made as a part of the Authority's Small Affordable Rental Transactions Program (the "SMART
Program") in principal amounts under $5 million (or in such greater amounts as approved from time to
time pursuant to the delegated authority policy of the Authority as approved or amended from time to
time by the Board). In addition to long-term rental loans under the SMART Program, the Authority aso
makes uninsured rental loans that provide interim financing for acquisition and/or rehabilitation of the
acquired property. These loans, referred to as bridge loans, are generally less than two years in term, are
secured by afirst deed of trust on the real estate, and have full recourse to the borrower during the term of
the bridge loan. In the case of for-profit developers, the loans are both full recourse to the borrower and
personally guaranteed by the individual principals during the term of the bridge loan. The Authority has
also made an uninsured rental loan to a for-profit borrower in support of certain single family rental
housing facilities at Fort Carson Army Base in Colorado Springs, Colorado.

Uninsured rental loans have also been made by the Authority using funds from amounts in its
General Fund designated as the Housing Opportunity Fund ("HOF") under a program referred to as the
"HOF Program."” Under the HOF Program, the Authority makes fixed interest rate loans to nonprofit
and for profit developers in support of rental housing facilities targeted to low income residents. Eligible
"low income" residents are defined as persons or families that earn 60% of Area Median Income or less.
HOF loan interest rates are set on a sliding scale based on the income levels of the residents served by
prospective rental housing facilities. All HOF loans must conform to standard Authority diligence
processes and underwriting criteria and will be secured by either first or second mortgages on real estate
(maximum Loan to Vaue of 90% for loans to for profit developers and 95% for loans to nonprofit
developers). Loan terms on HOF loans may range from 20 to 40 years. HOF loans are generaly fully
amortizing over their term and do not provide for prepayment restrictions or fees. Balloon payments on
HOF loans are permitted under certain circumstances.

Under its Rental Acquisition Program (the "RAP Program"), the Authority acquires and
rehabilitates apartment buildings located throughout Colorado for rental to persons and families of low
and moderate income. The Authority contracts with private entities to manage such buildings. For
certain information concerning the RAP Program and facilities acquired, rehabilitated and operated by the
Authority, see footnotes (1) and (4) to the audited 2012 financial statements of the Authority attached as
Appendix G. During 2006, the Authority made the decision to sell a mgjority of the facilities it then
owned under the RAP Program. The facilities were offered for sale to local housing authorities where the
facilities are located, and, if those parties were not interested in the purchase, the Authority offered such
facilities to for-profit and nonprofit corporations interested in the purchase. As of this date, the Authority
has completed the sale of all of the facilities owned under the RAP Program. By its sdle of these
facilities, the Authority has offered valuable assets at a reasonable price to organizations whose mission is
the development and preservation of affordable rental housing in Colorado. In al of such saes, the
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purchasing parties either agreed to maintain the existing number of units with affordability requirements
or increase the number of units with affordability requirements. The sale of these properties does not
imply that the Authority is discontinuing or closing the RAP program. The Authority intends to seek
opportunities to acquire other rental properties in underserved areas within the State of Colorado at such
time as such transactions support the goals of the Authority with respect to affordable rental housing in
Colorado.

Business Finance Programs. The Authority originates uninsured loans as part of certain of its
business loan programs, including the CHFA Direct Loan Program, the Non-Profit Real Estate Loan
Program, the U.S. Small Business Administration 504 Program (the "SBA 504 Program"), the CHFA
Rural Loan Program, the RENEW Program and the Business and Industry Loan | ("B&1 1") Program,
described below. These uninsured business loans must meet certain economic development or job
creation/retention objectives under the Act and are made to small and moderate-size Colorado businesses
to provide long-term, fixed rate financing for real estate and equipment. The uninsured business |oans are
secured by afirst lien on the assets financed, are made in amounts up to ninety percent (90%) of the lesser
of cost or appraised value of the collateral, are fully-amortizing over terms of up to thirty (30) years for
real estate loans and seven years for equipment, and generally require guarantees from principals of the
business having a twenty percent or greater ownership interest. A guaranty is also required from the
operating company if different from the Borrower.

e Under the CHFA Direct Loan Program, the Authority provides loans to for-profit businesses
to acquire, construct and/or rehabilitate and equip commercial, retail or manufacturing
facilities.

e Under the Non-Profit Real Estate Loan Program, the Authority provides loans to non-profit
organizationsto fund real estate acquisition.

e Under the SBA 504 Program, the Authority provides loans to for-profit businesses to finance
owner-occupied real estate and/or equipment. The Program provides two structures, a direct
loan option (where the Authority originates the first mortgage loan which generally finances
50% of the project costs) and aloan participation option (where the Authority purchases up to
a90% participation in afirst mortgage loan). An SBA-approved company provides a second
mortgage for up to 40% of the total project costs (or $1.3 million, whichever isless), with the
Borrower providing the remaining 10% of the costs.

e Under the CHFA Rural Loan Program, the Authority provides loans to rural small for-profit
businesses to finance real estate and/or equipment.

e Under the RENEW Program, the Authority provides loans to businesses involved in the
recycling and waste diverson industries, with funding received from the Colorado
Department of Local Affairs.

e Under the B&I | Program, the Authority provides loans to for-profit businesses located in
rural areas, which loans are supported by the partia guaranty of the Rura Business-
Cooperative Services (which guarantees to date have ranged from 55% to 80% of the loan
principal amount).

In connection with its Special Projects financing program, the Authority has financed business
loans to corporations for certain manufacturing and solid waste disposal facility projects. The Authority
has a so made an uninsured business |oan to a for-profit borrower to finance a project at the United States
Air Force Academy in Colorado Springs, Colorado. The Authority also makes loans under its Rural
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Development Loan Program (the "RDLP"), financed through the Intermediary Relending Program
offered by the U.S. Department of Agriculture. For the RDLP, the Authority targets Colorado businesses
in select rural communities with populations of less than 25,000. Loans can be used to purchase owner-
occupied commercial real estate and equipment, and the maximum loan size is $500,000.

The business loan programs of the Authority also include the SBA 7a, FSA and RD Programs
described below. Under these programs, the Authority purchases the guaranteed portion of a business
loan (the "participation interest"), and is thereby able to provide the borrower with the safety and
predictability of a fixed-rate throughout the term of the loan at an attractive interest rate. Additionally,
each of these secondary market programsis a source of profit and liquidity for originating lenders.

The SBA 7a Guaranty Purchase Program ("SBA 7a Program") is a secondary market program
whereby the Authority purchases the guaranteed portion of loans originated by local lenders and
guaranteed by the SBA. Typically, the Authority markets the SBA 7a Program to local lenders and
potential borrowers and purchases the participation interest (which is 100% guaranteed by the SBA).
Proceeds of these participation interests may be used to fund rea estate, equipment, machinery and
working capital.

The Farm Service Agency Guaranty Purchase Program ("FSA Program") is a secondary market
program whereby the Authority purchases the guaranteed portion of loans originated by local lenders and
guaranteed 100% by the United States Farm Service Agency. The borrowers are involved in the ranching
and agricultural industry throughout Colorado. Proceeds of these loans may be used to finance real estate,
equipment, and machinery used in farming and ranching operations.

The Rural Development Guaranty Purchase Program ("RD Program") creates a secondary
market for the purchase of the United States Rural Business Service ("RBS") guaranteed portion of
qualified loans with funds provided by the Authority. Participating lenders originate loans according to
their own credit criteria and RBS requirements. The RD Program provides fixed-rate financing on the
guaranteed portion of RBS loans made to borrowers located in a rural community serviced by RBS
guaranteed lenders.

Obligations of the Authority

The following is a summary of certain obligations incurred by the Authority to provide funds for
and otherwise operate the Authority and the programs described in "Programs to Date" under this caption.
This summary has been included solely for purposes of providing information to assist a potential
investor in evaluating the Authority's financia status. See also footnote (6) to the audited 2012 financia
statements of the Authority attached as Appendix G.

Sngle Family Mortgage Programs

In connection with its Single Family Mortgage Programs, the Authority has issued its Single
Family Mortgage Bonds and Notes (referred to as "Bonds' in this Official Statement) under the Master
Indenture, payable from the revenues of mortgage loans held thereunder, outstanding as of August 1,
2013 in the aggregate principal amount of $1,355,685,000. See Appendix B-1 for further detail about the
Bonds and related arrangements. The 2013 Series B Bonds are being issued as Bonds under the Master
Indenture, and proceeds of the 2013 Series B Bonds will be used to refund certain Bonds outstanding
under the Master Indenture. See "Part] — PLAN OF FINANCE." In addition, prior to 2000, the
Authority issued numerous series of its Single Family Program Bonds as senior and subordinate bonds
under separate indentures of trust, payable from the revenues of mortgage loans pledged under such
respective indentures, which bonds were outstanding as of August 1, 2013 in the aggregate principal
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amount of $14,665,000. Among these outstanding Bonds and bonds are Class Ill Single Family
Mortgage Bonds outstanding under the Master Indenture and subordinate bonds issued as part of the
Single Family Program Bonds under separate indentures which are general obligations of the Authority,
as described in "General Obligations — Single-Family Bonds — Class |11 and Subordinate Bonds" under
this caption.

Under a Master Indenture dated as of December 1, 2009 (the "NIBP Master Indenture”), the
Authority has previously issued and converted its 2009AA Program Bonds in the aggregate principa
amount of $56,350,000, and issued its Single Family Program Class | Bonds, Series 2011AA in the
aggregate principa amount of $35,585,000. The proceeds of the 2009AA Program Bonds and the
2011AA Bonds were used to finance Mortgage L oans through the purchase of mortgage-backed securities
guaranteed by Ginnie Mae. The 2009AA Program Bonds were refunded with the proceeds of the Single
Family Program Class | Bonds, Series 2013AA issued by the Authority under the NIBP Master Indenture
on April 30, 2013 in the aggregate principal amount of $53,630,000. The 2011AA Bonds and 2013AA
Bonds are the only bonds outstanding under the NIBP Master Indenture, and were outstanding as of
August 1, 2013 in the aggregate principal amount of $84,235,000.

The Authority's financing activities in connection with the Single Family Mortgage Programs
also include the sale of certain single family mortgage loans to Fannie Mae and the issuance and sale of
Ginnie Mae Certificates in order to finance first mortgage loans as part of the Non-Qualified Single
Family Mortgage Programs. Proceeds of Bonds under the Master Indenture may be used to finance
Second Mortgage Loans relating to such first mortgage loans financed by and securing the Ginnie Mae
Securities. See"Part Il - THE SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE PROGRAM — Special Program Features
— Second Mortgage Loans."

For more detailed information concerning the outstanding bonds of the Authority issued in
connection with its Single Family Mortgage Programs, see footnote (6) of the audited 2012 financial
statements of the Authority attached as Appendix G. The Authority has also issued general obligation
bonds through private placement in order to finance single family mortgage loans. See "Generd
Obligations — Privately Placed Bonds" under this caption.

Commercial Loan Programs

Since 2000, the Authority has financed rental and business loans and certain guaranteed
participation interests with proceeds of its Multi-Family/Project Bonds, which were outstanding under a
master indenture as of August 1, 2013 (the "Multi-Family/Project Master Indenture") in an aggregate
principal amount of $711,370,000. Certain of the Multi-Family/Project Bonds are secured by the full
faith and credit of the Authority, as described in "General Obligations — Multi-Family/Project Bonds'
under this caption. The Authority has issued its Federally Taxable Federaly Insured Multi-Family
Housing Loan Program Pass-Through Revenue Bonds, Series 2013-1 as the first obligations under a
Master Indenture dated as of June 1, 2013 (the "MF Pass-Through Indenture") (outstanding as of
August 1, 2013 in an aggregate principal amount of $31,523,575). Proceeds of the Series 2013-1 Bonds
were used to refund certain of the Authority's outstanding Multifamily Housing Insured Mortgage
Revenue Bonds, and the related Multi-Family Housing Insured General Bond Resolution has since been
fully discharged.

Bonds secured by a pledge of loan revenues as well as bonds secured by loan revenues and the
general obligation of the Authority have also been privately placed to institutional purchasers by the
Authority in order to finance rental loans. See "General Obligations — Privately Placed Bonds' under this
caption. Projects in the RAP Program have been acquired using a combination of revenue bonds, the
Authority's general fund monies, proceeds of general obligation bonds and non-recourse seller carryback
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financing. See footnote (6) of the audited 2012 financia statements of the Authority attached as
Appendix G for more information regarding these outstanding bonds and notes. The Authority has aso
acted as a conduit issuer of bonds supported by letters of credit or other credit facilities. These conduit
bonds are payable only with amounts received from the conduit borrower, and are therefore not reported
as obligations of the Authority on its financial statements. See footnote (7) of the audited 2012 financial
statements of the Authority attached as Appendix G.

Business loans and participation interests have also been financed by the Authority with the
proceeds of privately placed bonds, secured by loan and participation revenues as well as the full faith and
credit of the Authority. See "General Obligations — Privately Placed Bonds' under this caption. In
connection with its Special Projects financing program, the Authority has acted as a conduit issuer its
industrial development revenue bonds to finance certain manufacturing facilities and solid waste disposal
facility projects for corporations. These bonds are payable only with amounts received from the conduit
borrower and are therefore not reported as obligations of the Authority onitsfinancial statements.

Except for bonds specifically identified in Appendix B-1 as Bonds under the Master Indenture, the
revenue bonds described above and at the Authority's website are secured separately from and are
not on parity with the Bonds and are issued and secured under resolutions or indentures of the
Authority other than the Master Indenture.

General Obligations

Many of the bonds and notes issued by the Authority to finance its programs are secured by a
pledge of specific revenues, with an additiona pledge of its full faith and credit, as described under this
caption. Other obligations of the Authority entered in connection with its programs or its operations are
not secured by specific revenues or assets other than the Authority's full faith and credit. The bonds,
notes and other obligations which are general obligations of the Authority are described below.

Single Family Bonds — Class |1l Bonds and Subordinate Bonds. The Authority has issued Class
I11 Single Family Mortgage Bonds, the proceeds of which have been used to finance mortgage loans for
the Single Family Mortgage Programs. These Class |1l Bonds, outstanding in the aggregate principal
amount of $45,400,000 as of August 1, 2013, are payable from mortgage |oan revenues under the Master
Indenture and are also general obligations of the Authority. See Appendix B-1 for more information
about these Class Il Bonds. The Subordinate Bonds for the various series of the Authority's Single-
Family Program Senior and Subordinate Bonds are payable from mortgage loan revenues under the
respective indentures on a subordinate lien basis and are a'so genera obligations of the Authority. The
aggregate principal amount of such Subordinate Bonds as of August 1, 2013 was $14,665,000.

Multi-Family/Project Bonds. The Authority has issued Class | Multi-Family/Project Bonds
(outstanding as of August 1, 2013 in an aggregate principal amount of $232,505,000) in order to finance
business loans which are payable not only from a senior lien on loan revenues under the Multi-
Family/Project Master Indenture but also as general obligations of the Authority. The Authority has also
issued Class Il Multi-Family/Project Bonds (outstanding as of August 1, 2013 in the aggregate principal
amount of $21,820,000) in order to finance certain rental and business loans which are payable not only
from a lien on loan revenues under the Multi-Family/Project Master Indenture but also as general
obligations of the Authority. These Class Il Multi-Family/Project Bonds are payable from loan revenues
on asubordinate lien basis to the Class | Multi-Family/Project Bonds.

Privately Placed Bonds. The Authority has issued general obligation bonds through private
placement in order to finance rental loans. As of August 1, 2013, such privately placed bonds were
outstanding in an aggregate principa amount of $19,715,000. The Authority has aso funded
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participation interests and business loans using proceeds of its privately placed bonds, outstanding as of
August 1, 2013 in the aggregate principal amount of $12,725,000. In addition, the Authority has issued
general obligation bonds through private placement in order to finance single family mortgage loans. As
of August 1, 2013, such privately placed bonds were outstanding in an aggregate principal amount of
$16,224,000.

L oans Backed by Authority Genera Obligation. The Authority has acquired or originated certain
uninsured rental and business loans using proceeds of, and pledged to the repayment of, its Multi-
Family/Project Bonds, outstanding as of August 1, 2013 in the aggregate principal amount of
$256,348,807. The Authority has pledged its full faith and credit to the payment of a substantial portion
of such loans. The Authority has al'so assumed, as a general obligation, 50% risk of loss in the mortgage
loans acquired by the Authority and insured by the FHA under Section 542(c) of the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1992, as amended (the "Risk-Share Program™). Asof August 1, 2013,
such mortgage loans insured under the Risk-Share Program were outstanding in the amount of
$202,466,348 ($31,523,575 held under the MF Pass-Through Indenture and securing the Series 20131
Bonds and $170,942,774 held under the Multi-Family/Project Master Indenture and securing the Mullti-
Family/Project Bonds).

In the case of a 8542(c) claim, the Authority is responsible, as a general obligation, to reimburse
FHA for 50% of any loss incurred by the FHA as aresult of and after the final settlement of such claim.
See "Programs to Date — Commercial Loan Programs — Rental Finance Programs' under this caption.
Since 2010, the Authority has incurred losses of approximately $4.4 million following the defaults on the
mortgage loans insured under the Risk-Share Program for the Maples at Crestwood, Fox Run and
Overland Trail projects. Losses include the defaults on such insured mortgage loans, the foreclosure and
sale of those projects and the settlement of the respective final insurance claims with the FHA. Presently,
the Authority holds one defaulted mortgage loan under the Risk-Share Program on the Gold Camp
Apartments project with the approximate aggregate principa amount of $1.175 million. The Authority
has filed an insurance claim and received insurance proceeds from the FHA with respect to thisloan. Itis
likely that the Authority will incur a risk-sharing liability with respect to this loan, for which the
Authority believesit is adequately reserved.

Interest Rate Contracts; Derivative Products. The Authority has pledged its full faith and credit to
secure its obligation to make termination payments under the Interest Rate Contracts relating to the Bonds
under the Master Indenture and under the derivative products relating to the Multi-Family/Project Bonds
under the Multi-Family/Project Master Indenture. See Appendix B-1—-"THE OUTSTANDING BONDS
AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS — The Outstanding Auxiliary Obligations — Outstanding Interest
Rate Contracts." See also "Authority Policy Regarding Swaps' under this caption and footnote (8) to the
audited 2012 financial statements of the Authority attached as Appendix G.

Other Borrowings. The Authority has entered into agreements with the Federal Home Loan Bank
of Topeka and a commercial bank for borrowings from time to time. Such borrowings are also general
obligations of the Authority and have generally been used to date to make or purchase loans pending the
permanent financing of such loans. As of August 1, 2013, borrowings in the aggregate principal amount
of $29,100,000 were outstanding under those agreements. See footnote (5) to the audited 2012 financia
statements of the Authority attached as Appendix G. The Authority has aso borrowed amounts
evidenced by Rural Business Cooperative Service Notes (outstanding as of August 1, 2013 in the
aggregate principal amount of $756,304), which have been used to finance project or working capital
loans or participations therein for small businesses in rural areas. The Authority has pledged its full faith
and credit to the payment of such notes.
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General Obligation Ratings. Moody's has assigned an "A2" rating and S& P has assigned an "A"
rating, both with a stable outlook, to the Authority's ability to repay its general obligation liabilities. The
ratings have been assigned based on the Authority's management, financial performance and overal
program performance. There is no assurance that any such rating will continue for any given period of
time or that any such rating will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by Moody's or S&P,
respectively, if, in the judgment of the issuing rating agency, circumstances so warrant.

Summary of Certain Authority Obligations

The following is a table which lists certain obligations of the Authority and sets forth the
respective outstanding amount for such obligations as of August 1, 2013. Further detail regarding these
itemsis provided under the other subcaptions of "Obligations of the Authority."

Summary of Certain Authority Obligations as of August 1, 2013
Outstanding Amount

Certain Authority Obligations (August 1, 2013)
Single Family Mortgage Bonds (Master Indenture) $1,355,685,000
Single Family Program Senior/Subordinate Bonds (Separate Indentures) 14,665,000
Single Family Program Bonds (NIBP Master Indenture) 84,235,000
Multi-Family/Project Bonds (Multi-Family/Project Master Indenture) 711,370,000
Federally Taxable Federally Insured Multi-Family Housing Loan Program

Pass-Through Revenue Bonds (MF Pass-Through Indenture) 31,523,575
Business Finance 12,725,000
16,224,000

Single Family

@ These are the Bonds (not including the 2013 Series B Bonds and not reflecting the refunding of the Refunded Bonds)
issued and outstanding under the Master Indenture. See Appendix B-1 for more information about the Bonds.

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally]
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The following table identifies the specific components of the Authority Obligations listed on the
preceding table which are general obligations of the Authority as well as other general obligations of the
Authority as of August 1, 2013. Further detail regarding these items is provided under the other
subcaptions of "Obligations of the Authority."

General Obligations of the Authority as of August 1, 2013
Outstanding Amount

General Obligations (August 1, 2013)
Single Family Mortgage Bonds, Class 111 $45,400,000
Single-Family Program Subordinate Bonds 14,665,000
Multi-Family/Project Bonds:
Class| 232,505,000
Class|l 21,820,000

Privately Placed Bonds:

Rental Finance 19,715,000
Business Finance 12,725,000
Single Family 16,224,000

Other Borrowings:

Lines of Credit 29,100,000
Rural Business Cooperative Service Notes 756,304

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally]
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SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS

Pledge of Trust Estate

All Bonds and obligations of the Authority for the payment of money under the Interest Rate
Contracts and Liquidity Facilities (the "Auxiliary Obligations") outstanding under the Master Indenture
(other than Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations which are General Obligations of the Authority) are secured
by and payable from revenues, assets and moneys pledged for the payment thereof under the Master
Indenture (the "Trust Estate"). The pledge and lien of the Master Indenture on the Trust Estateis created
and established in the following order of priority: first, to secure the payment of the principal of and
interest on the Class | Obligations; second, to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the
Class Il Obligations; third, to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the Class IlI
Obligations; and fourth, to secure the payment of principal and interest on the Class IV Obligations.
Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations may also be designated as General Obligations of the Authority. The
2013 Series B Bonds are being issued as Class Il Bonds, and as such, will be payable from the Trust
Estate on a subordinate basis to all Class | Obligations now or hereafter outstanding under the Master
Indenture and on an equal and ratable basis with all other Class Il Obligations now or hereafter
outstanding under the Master Indenture.

No Bonds or Auxiliary Obligations are presently outstanding under the Master Indenture other
than as lised in Appendix B-1 — "THE OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY
OBLIGATIONS." The Authority's obligation to pay principa of Bank Bonds at maturity or in
accordance with a scheduled amortization date as set forth in any Liquidity Facility is a Class |
Obligation. To the extent of any principal of Bank Bonds which is payable in advance of the maturity or
scheduled amortization date as set forth in any Liquidity Facility, such portion of any Bank Bonds will in
some cases (including the 2013 Series B Bonds) constitute Class | Bonds under the Master Indenture and
in other cases will constitute Class |11 Bonds and be designated as General Obligations of the Authority
under the Master Indenture. The Authority's obligation to make regular interest payments under any
Interest Rate Contract has been (and is expected in the future to be) a Class | Obligation, and the
Authority's obligation to make certain payments due upon early termination of any such Interest Rate
Contract has been (and is expected in the future to be) a Genera Obligation of the Authority and not
secured by the Trust Estate under the Master Indenture. The Authority expects to issue Additional Bonds
under the Master Indenture, as described in "Issuance of Additional Bonds; Auxiliary Obligations’ under
this caption. Notes and bonds heretofore or hereafter issued to provide funds for programs of the
Authority (other than the Bonds under the Master Indenture) are and will be authorized and secured by
separate resolutions or indentures and are not and will not be secured by the pledge of the Master
Indenture and do not and will not rank on a parity with the Bonds. See "Part 1| — COLORADO
HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY — Obligations of the Authority."

Under the Master Indenture, the Trust Estate pledged to secure the Bonds and Auxiliary
Obligationsincludes:

) al right, title and interest of the Authority in and to the proceeds of Bonds until
used as set forth in the Master Indenture;

(i) all right, title and interest of the Authority in and to the Revenues (as described in
"Revenues' under this caption);
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(iii)  all right, title and interest of the Authority in and to all moneys and securities in
the Funds and Accounts from time to time held by the Trustee under the terms of the Master
Indenture (except moneys and securities in the Rebate Fund, the Excess Earnings Fund and a
Bond Purchase Fund) and investments, if any, thereof (other than the Rebate Requirement which
is to be deposited in the Rebate Fund and any Excess Earnings which are to be deposited in the
Excess Earnings Fund);

(iv)  al right, title and interest of the Authority in and to the Mortgage Loans and the
MBS described in "The Mortgage Loans and the Mortgaged-Backed Securities’ under this
caption; and

(v) al other property of any kind from time to time pledged under the Master
Indenture as additional security.

In no event shall the Bonds constitute an obligation or liability of the State or any political
subdivision thereof (except the Authority). The Authority has no taxing power nor doesit have the
power to pledge the general credit or the taxing power of the State or any political subdivision
thereof, other than the general credit of the Authority, which general credit is not pledged for the
payment of the Bonds except in the case of Bonds specifically designated as general obligations of
the Authority. The Authority has elected from time to time in the past to deposit assets (including
cash) tothe Trust Estate under the Master I ndenture but hasno obligation to do soin thefuture.

Revenues
Under the Master Indenture, the term "Revenues' means:

@ all Mortgage Repayments, which include, with respect to any Mortgage Loan or
the related MBS, the amounts received by or for the account of the Authority as scheduled
payments of the principal of or interest (if any) on such Mortgage Loan or related MBS by or on
behalf of the Borrower to or for the account of the Authority, and does not include Prepayments,
Servicing Fees or Escrow Payments;

(b) any penalty payments received on account of overdue Mortgage Repayments,
except insofar as such payments may constitute Servicing Fees (including guarantee fees);

(© Prepayments, which include any moneys received or recovered by or for the
account of the Authority from any payment of or with respect to principal on any Mortgage Loan
or MBS prior to the scheduled payments of principal called for by such Mortgage Loan or MBS,
whether (i) by voluntary prepayment made by the Borrower, or (ii) as a consequence of the
damage, destruction or condemnation of all or any part of the mortgaged premises, or (iii) by the
sale, assignment, endorsement or other disposition of such Mortgage Loan or MBS by the
Authority, or (iv) in the event of a default thereon by the Borrower, by the acceleration, sale,
assignment, endorsement or other disposition of such Mortgage Loan or MBS by the Authority or
by any other proceedings taken by the Authority;

(d) all amounts earned on investments (other than Mortgage Loans and MBYS)
credited to any Fund or Account pursuant to the Indenture (including gains upon the sde of
disposition of such investments), except the Rebate Requirement payable to the United States and
any Excess Earnings;
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(e al payments and receipts received by the Authority under Interest Rate
Contracts; and

() al other payments and receipts received by the Authority with respect to
Mortgage Loans and MBS (other than amounts held in any Payment Account, Escrow Payments,
Servicing Fees which have not been specificaly pledged to the Trustee, any commitment,
reservation, extension or application fees charged by the Authority in connection with a Mortgage
Loan or Mortgage Purchase Agreement, any commitment, reservation, extension or applicable
fees charged by a Mortgage Lender in connection with a Mortgage Loan, or accrued interest
received in connection with the purchase of Investment Securities).

For afurther description of the Revenues, the pledge thereof and the payment and transfer thereof
from the Revenue Fund, see "FORMS OF THE INDENTURE — Master Indenture — Revenue Fund” in
Appendix A.

Pursuant to the Master Indenture, all Revenues related to each Series of Bonds, in addition to
other amounts, are to be deposited into the subaccount of the Revenue Fund related to such Series of
Bonds. On the last business day prior to each Payment Date or on the other dates specificaly provided in
the Indenture, the Trustee is required to make certain transfers of amounts from each Series subaccount of
the Revenue Fund, to the extent moneys are available, to various Funds and Accounts in a certain priority,
as provided in the Master Indenture. See Appendix A — "FORMS OF THE INDENTURE — Revenue
Fund." Among these transfers, the Trustee is to deposit into: (i) the related Series Subaccount of the
related Class Special Redemption Account, Loan Recycling Account (at the election of the Authority), or
any combination of the two, the amount needed, if any, to ensure that the Class Asset Requirements for
the related Series of Bonds will be met on such Payment Date; and (ii) each Series subaccount of the
Related Class Specia Redemption Account not related to such Series of Bonds, on a proportionate basis
with al such unrelated subaccounts, the amount of any deficiency resulting from the lack of moneys
sufficient to make the deposit described in (i). The Class Asset Requirements applicable to each Series of
Bonds are set forth in each Related Series Indenture. For information about the Class Asset
Reguirements, see Appendix F —"CLASS ASSET REQUIREMENTS FOR BONDS."

The Mortgage L oans and the Mortgage-Backed Securities
Generally

The Trust Estate pledged under the Master Indenture to secure Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations
issued thereunder includes the right, title and interest of the Authority in the Mortgage Loans and the
MBS acquired by the Authority in order to finance Mortgage Loans. Under the Master Indenture, "MBS"
means collectively, the Ginnie Mae Certificates, the Fannie Mae Certificates and the Freddie Mac
Certificates. See "Mortgage-Backed Securities' under this caption. "Mortgage Loan" means a
permanent loan secured by a Mortgage for the purchase and/or rehabilitation of Residential Housing made
to a Borrower by the Authority or an originating Mortgage Lender which is purchased pursuant to a
Mortgage Purchase Agreement and which satisfies certain requirements of the Master Indenture. See
"Mortgage Loan Requirements' under this caption. All Bonds issued under the Master Indenture will be
secured by the Trust Estate which includes all MBS and Mortgage Loans so acquired with proceeds of
such Bonds. In the event that only a portion of or interest in an MBS or Mortgage Loan is purchased
under the Master Indenture, reference to such an MBS or a Mortgage Loan shall be interpreted and
applied to relate to such portion or interest.
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Mortgage-Backed Securities

An MBS acquired as part of the Trust Estate can be a Ginnie Mae Certificate, a Fannie Mae
Certificate or a Freddie Mac Certificate. A "Ginnie Mae Certificate" is a mortgage backed security
(which may be issued under either the GNMA | Program or the GNMA 1l Program) bearing interest at a
Pass-Through Rate, issued by the Authority registered in the name of the Trustee and guaranteed as to
timely payment of principal and interest by GNMA pursuant to Section 306(g) of Title 11 of the National
Housing Act of 1934 and the regulations promulgated thereunder backed by FHA Insured Mortgage
Loans or VA Guaranteed Mortgage Loans. A "Fannie Mae Certificate" is a single pool, guaranteed
mortgage, pass-through certificate, issued by Fannie Mage, guaranteed as to timely payment of interest and
principal by Fannie Mae and backed by Conventional Mortgage Loans. A "Freddie Mac Certificate" is
a mortgage participation certificate issued by Freddie Mac and representing an undivided interest in a
pool of Conventional Mortgage Loans identified by a particular apha numeric number and CUSIP
number, guaranteed as to timely payment of principal and interest by Freddie Mac.

Mortgage Loan Requirements

The Mortgage Loans must be permanent loans secured by a mortgage, deed of trust or other
instrument constituting a valid lien on real property in the State and improvements constructed or to be
constructed thereon or on aleasehold under a lease having a remaining term, at the time such instrument
is acquired by the Authority, of not less than the term for repayment of the Mortgage Loan secured by
such instrument. The Mortgage Loans may be secured by afirst mortgage on the real property (a"First
Mortgage Loan") or may be originated by the Authority or on behalf of the Authority by the Mortgage
Lender and secured by a second mortgage loan on the real property (a"Second Mortgage Loan"). A
Second Mortgage Loan will only be originated in connection with aFirst Mortgage Loan. Each Mortgage
Loan must be made in connection with the purchase or refinance of a single-family, owner-occupied
dwelling located within the State that qualifies for financing or refinancing by the Authority within the
meaning of the Act, the Rules and Regulations of the Program, the relevant provisions of the Tax Code
and related regulations (referred herein as "Residential Housing"). A Second Mortgage Loan may be
originated for the purpose of assisting Eligible Borrowers with their upfront cash requirements in
connection with the purchase of Residential Housing or for closing cost assistance in connection with the
financing or refinancing of a mortgage loan. See "Part || — THE SINGLE-FAMILY MORTGAGE
PROGRAM — Reservation, Delivery and Acquisition of Mortgage Loans." A First Mortgage Loan must
be the subject of atitle insurance policy in an amount at least equal to the outstanding principal amount of
such Mortgage Loan and must be made to a Borrower by the Authority or made by an originating
Mortgage Lender and purchased by the Authority pursuant to a Mortgage Purchase Agreement. For this
purpose, a Borrower means the maker of, and any other party obligated on, a Mortgage Loan in
connection with the acquisition or rehabilitation of Residentia Housing, who is a person or family of
"low or moderate income" qualifying as such under the Act and the Rules and Regul ations of the Program
and, as applicable, in accordance with the Tax Code. The Mortgage Lenders may include certain banks,
trust companies, FHA-approved direct endorsement mortgagees, VA-approved automatic lenders, Fannie
Mae-approved and/or Freddie-Mac-approved sellers, RHS-approved mortgagees, national banking
associations, credit unions, and savings and loan associations which make mortgage loans on properties
located in the State and mortgage bankers approved by a private mortgage company insuring a Mortgage
Loan.

First Mortgage Loans are required by the Master Indenture to be subject to mortgage insurance or
guaranty to the extent required by any Series Indenture. See "Part | — CERTAIN PROGRAM
ASSUMPTIONS — Insurance Limitations and Requirements." The Master Indenture further requires that
the buildings on the premises with respect to which each First Mortgage Loan is made are to be insured,
as and to the extent required by the Authority to protect its interest and with the Authority designated as
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the loss payee as its interest may appear, against loss or damage by fire, lightning and other hazards
(including flooding in some cases). Each Mortgage Loan must be serviced by a participating lender until
it is purchased by the Authority, at which time the servicing is transferred to the Authority. If the
Authority purchases a Mortgage Loan before the first payment on such loan is due, then the Authority
will be theinitia servicer rather than the participating lender. The Authority has recently entered into the
subservicer arrangement described in "Part || — THE SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE PROGRAM —
Servicing of the Mortgage Loans." In the Master Indenture, the Authority has covenanted to take certain
action to protect the interests of the owners of the Bonds in the Mortgage Loans. See Appendix A —
"FORMS OF THE INDENTURE — Master Indenture — Program Covenants, Enforcement of Mortgage
Loans and Servicing Agreements.” In one such covenant, the Authority has agreed to diligently enforce
and take or cause to be taken all reasonable steps, actions and proceedings necessary for the enforcement
of al terms, covenants and conditions of al Mortgage Loans consistent with sound lending practices and
principles and applicable requirements under the Tax Code including the prompt payment of all Mortgage
Repayments and all other amounts due the Authority thereunder.

Mortgage Loans

The Mortgage Loans securing the Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations under the Master Indenture
will include Mortgage Loans originated by the Authority, or by Mortgage Lenders and thereafter
purchased by the Authority, using amounts on deposit in the Acquisition Account and transferred to the
Trustee. Upon transfer of any Mortgage Loans by the Authority to the Trustee, the Trustee is to
reimburse the Authority for its costs of purchasing such Mortgage L oans using amounts on deposit in the
Acquisition Account. The Mortgage Loans must satisfy the requirements described in "Mortgage Loan
Requirements" under this caption. See also Appendix A — "FORMS OF THE INDENTURE — Master
Indenture — Program Fund; Acquisition Account.” The Mortgage Loans securing the Bonds and
Auxiliary Obligations under the Master Indenture will include any Mortgage Loans acquired using
proceeds of additional Bonds which may be issued by the Authority under the Master Indenture as
described in "lssuance of Additional Bonds; Auxiliary Obligations' under this caption. Any additional
Mortgage L oans so acquired must meet the requirements required by the Series Indenture relating to such
additional Bonds.

Debt Service Reserve Fund

The Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement (if any) for each Series of Bonds is established by
the Related Series Indenture. Upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds, the Debt Service Reserve Fund
Requirement for such Bonds is expected to be funded by a deposit of proceeds to the Debt Service
Reserve Fund or by the deposit of a Qualified Surety Bond as permitted by the Indenture. Additional
moneys are to be transferred into the various subaccounts of the Debt Service Reserve Fund from the
Revenue Fund as provided in the Master Indenture in the amounts needed, if any, to increase the amount
in any subaccount of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, together with any Qualified Surety Bond therein, to
the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement for the Bonds. See Appendix A — "FORMS OF THE
INDENTURE — Master Indenture — Revenue Fund.”

Amounts in the Debt Service Reserve Fund are to be transferred to the Debt Service Fund and
applied by the Trustee to the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture, in order of Class, in the event that amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Fund for the Related
Class are insufficient to make such payments on any Bond Payment Date. When making such
payments, the Trustee isto transfer amounts first from the Series subaccount of the Debt Service
Reserve Fund related to the Bonds for which the payment will be made and, second, from any
unrelated Series subaccounts. See Appendix A —"FORMS OF THE INDENTURE — Master Indenture
— Debt Service Reserve Fund.”
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Liquidity Facilities

Pursuant to the respective Series Indentures, the Authority has entered, and expects in the future
to enter, into Liquidity Facilities in connection with Adjustable Rate Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. See Appendix B-1—-"THE OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS -
The Outstanding Auxiliary Obligations — Liquidity Facilities' for a description of the outstanding
Liquidity Facilities under the Master Indenture. The Authority may elect to replace any Liquidity Facility
with an Alternate Liquidity Facility. The Authority is to promptly notify the Trustee, the Remarketing
Agent and the Paying Agent of the Authority's intention to deliver an Alternate Liquidity Facility at least
45 days prior to the date of such delivery. Upon receipt of such notice, the Trustee is to promptly mail a
notice of the anticipated delivery of an Alternate Liquidity Facility, including the name of the provider of
such Alternate Liquidity Facility, by first-class mail to the Remarketing Agent and to each Owner of the
Adjustable Rate Bonds at such Owner's registered address and to EMMA. The Authority is to deliver
such Alternate Liquidity Facility to the Trustee on or before the day preceding the date of expiration of
the then expiring Liquidity Facility or on the date of itsintent to deliver.

The Authority is to use its best efforts to obtain an Alternate Liquidity Facility to replace the
Liquidity Facility or cause the Adjustable Rate Bonds to be Converted to Fixed Rate Bonds or to bear
interest in a Mode which does not require a Liquidity Facility in the event (i) the Liquidity Facility
Provider shall decide not to extend the term of the Liquidity Facility beyond the expiration date thereof
pursuant to the terms of the Liquidity Facility, (ii) the Authority terminates the Liquidity Facility pursuant
to its terms, (iii) the Liquidity Facility Provider furnishes a termination notice to the Trustee, or (iv) the
Liquidity Facility Provider failsto purchase Bonds as permitted by the Liquidity Facility.

No Alternate Liquidity Facility may be delivered to the Trustee for any purpose under the
respective Series Indenture unless accompanied by certain documents, including letters from Moody's and
S& P evidencing that the replacement of the Liquidity Facility with the Alternate Liquidity Facility will
result in the reconfirmation of the then existing rating or the assignment of a new short-term rating of not
less than "A-1+" or "P-U/VMIG-1" (in the case of S&P and Moody's, respectively) on the related
Adjustable Rate Bonds (except in the case of certain Liquidity Facilities).

Unless the Trustee has received (a) written notice from the Liquidity Facility Provider that it
elects to extend or renew the Liquidity Facility or (b) written notice from the Authority that it has
determined to provide or cause to be provided an Alternate Liquidity Facility, which notice shall be
received not less than 30 days prior to the stated expiration date of the Liquidity Facility, the Trustee isto
give notice to the Owners of Adjustable Rate Bonds and to EMMA that the Adjustable Rate Bonds will
be subject to mandatory tender for purchase, with no right to retain, not less than 20 days from the date of
such notice to such Bondowners, at the Purchase Price (payable by the Liquidity Facility Provider) on the
date set forth for purchase in such notice.

The Authority has agreed that, for so long as the 2013B Liquidity Facility is in full force and
effect, any Alternate Liquidity Facility will require, as a condition to the effectiveness thereof, that the
provider of such Alternate Liquidity Facility provide funds to the extent necessary, in addition to other
funds available, on the date such Alternate Liquidity Facility becomes effective, for the purchase of all
Bank Bonds at par plus accrued interest (at the Bank Rate) through the date of such purchase.

Interest Rate Contracts
In connection with the issuance of certain Adjustable Rate Bonds under the Master Indenture, the

Authority has entered, and expects in the future to enter, into interest rate swap agreements which qualify
as "Interest Rate Contracts' under the Master Indenture, with a counterparty for the purpose of
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converting the floating rate interest payments the Authority is obligated to make with respect to the
Adjustable Rate Bonds into substantialy fixed rate payments. See AppendixB-1 — "THE
OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS." See aso "Part Il — COLORADO
HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY - Authority Policy Regarding Derivatives." Any payments
or receipts received by the Authority under the Interest Rate Contracts will be pledged as Revenues, as
described in "Revenues' under this caption. The Authority's obligation to make regular interest payments
to the Counterparty under each of the Interest Rate Contracts has constituted, and is expected in the future
to congtitute, a Class | Obligation under the Master Indenture, secured on parity with the lien on the Trust
Estate of the other Class | Obligations. The Authority's obligation to make termination payments under
each of the Interest Rate Contracts in the event of early termination and in the future is expected to be a
general obligation of the Authority and not an Auxiliary Obligation under the Master Indenture. See " Part
Il — CERTAIN BONDOWNERS' RISKS — Risks Related to Interest Rate Contracts' and "Part 11 —
COLORADO HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY — Obligations of the Authority — General
Obligations."

I ssuance of Additional Bonds; Auxiliary Obligations

No Bonds or Auxiliary Obligations are outstanding under the Master Indenture other than as
described in Appendix B-1 — "THE OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS."
However, the Master Indenture permits the Authority to issue additional Bonds and to incur additional
Auxiliary Obligations thereunder from time to time, without limitation as to amount, secured on an equal
lien with the outstanding Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations of the respective class, upon delivery of a Cash
Flow Statement and satisfaction of certain other conditions contained therein. The Authority may not
issue additional Bonds if such issuance would result in a lowering, suspension or withdrawal of the
ratings then applicable to any Bonds issued under the Master Indenture. The Authority may also enter
into any Interest Rate Contract or Liquidity Facility it deems necessary or desirable with respect to any or
al of the Bonds issued under the Master Indenture, subject to the requirements of the Master Indenture.
The Authority expects to issue additiona Bonds and to incur additional Auxiliary Obligations in the
future under the Master Indenture.

CERTAIN BONDOWNERS RISKS

Limited Security

The Bonds are specia limited obligations of the Authority payable by Class priority and solely
from the Trust Estate (except in the case of Bonds which have been specifically designated as general
obligations of the Authority). See "Part Il — SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND AUXILIARY
OBLIGATIONS — Pledge of Trust Estate.” There is no assurance that the Mortgage Loans in or expected
to bein the Trust Estate will perform in accordance with the assumptions made and that Revenues will be
sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations under the Master Indenture when
due. See Appendix A — "FORMS OF THE INDENTURE - Master Indenture — Revenue Fund."
Additional Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations may be issued by the Authority under the Master Indenture
on a parity with each Class of Bonds outstanding, upon satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the
Master Indenture.

Considerations Regar ding Redemption at Par
PURSUANT TO THE SPECIAL REDEMPTION PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE,
CERTAIN BONDS MAY BE REDEEMED PRIOR TO THEIR STATED MATURITY FROM ANY
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MONEY S AND/OR INVESTMENT SECURITIES ON DEPOSIT IN THE RESPECTIVE ACCOUNTS
OF THE REDEMPTION FUND, INCLUDING UNEXPENDED BOND PROCEEDS, EXCESS
REVENUES FROM REGULAR LOAN PAYMENTS, VOLUNTARY OR INVOLUNTARY
PREPAYMENTS AND AMOUNTS DEPOSITED AS A RESULT OF ANY OTHER EVENT AS
DESCRIBED HEREIN. SEE "PART | — TERMS OF THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS — PRIOR
REDEMPTION" FOR A DESCRIPTION OF THE PROVISIONS SPECIFICALLY APPLICABLE TO
THE 2013 SERIES B BONDS. THE TIME OR RATE OF SUCH PREPAYMENTS OR DEPOSITS
CANNOT BE PREDICTED. However, it is assumed that a substantial portion of each Series of
Bonds subject to such special redemption under the Indenture will be redeemed prior to their
respective stated maturities at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of such Series of
Bondsto be redeemed, without premium (except in certain limited cir cumstances).

Risks Related to the Liquidity Providersand the Liquidity Facilities
Creditworthiness of the Liquidity Providers

The short-term credit ratings of the Adjustable Rate Bonds under the Master Indenture are based
on the issuance of the respective Liquidity Facilities relating to such Adjustable Rate Bonds. Such ratings
are based solely on the genera credit of the respective Liquidity Provider. Any downgrade in the ratings
of therelated Liquidity Provider may impact the interest rate of the related Adjustable Rate Bonds.

Each Liquidity Facility provides the Trustee with the liquidity support necessary to purchase the
applicable Adjustable Rate Bonds deemed tendered for purchase as described in the related Series
Indenture. If remarketing proceeds are not sufficient to provide funds sufficient to pay the purchase price
of tendered Adjustable Rate Bonds, the Trustee is required to draw funds under the applicable Liquidity
Facility. The ability of the respective Liquidity Provider to honor such drawings may be adversely
affected by its financial condition at the time of such draws. No assurance is given as to the current or
future financial condition of any Liquidity Provider or the financial condition of any entity with which
any Liquidity Provider may merge or by which it may be acquired. For more information about the
Liquidity Providers and Outstanding Liquidity Facilities, see Appendix B-1 —"THE OUTSTANDING
BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS — The Outstanding Auxiliary Obligations — Liquidity
Facilities" If a Liquidity Provider becomes insolvent or otherwise becomes a debtor in bankruptcy,
timely payment of the purchase price of related Adjustable Rate Bonds subject to tender for purchase
might depend entirely on the sufficiency of the Trust Estate to pay such amounts.

Inability to Obtain Substitute Liquidity Facility

Each Liquidity Facility expires on a particular date which is much earlier than the maturity dates
of the related Adjustable Rate Bonds. See Appendix B-1. No assurances can be given that the Authority
will be able to extend any of the Liquidity Facilities or obtain a Substitute Liquidity Facility with respect
to any series of Adjustable Rate Bonds upon the terms required by the respective Series Indenture until
and including the final maturity dates of such Adjustable Rate Bonds or until the interest rate on such
Adjustable Rate Bonds is converted to a Fixed Rate. Failure to extend a Liquidity Facility or obtain a
Substitute Liquidity Facility will result in a mandatory purchase of the related Adjustable Rate Bonds
prior to maturity at a price of par. The mandatory purchase of such Adjustable Rate Bonds on such a
mandatory bond purchase date may not be waived. As of the date hereof, severa Liquidity Facilities
have expired for which the Authority has been unable to obtain a Substitute Liquidity Facility. As a
result, related Adjustable Rate Bonds have been subject to mandatory purchase and have become Bank
Bonds under the Master Indenture. See "Interest Costs Associated with Bank Bonds" under this caption.
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Increased Costs Associated with Bank Bonds

Pursuant to the Liquidity Facilities, certain unpaid fees will bear interest at the "Default Rate”" and
Bank Bonds will bear interest at arate as set forth in the related Liquidity Facilities. Those interest rates
could be substantially higher than the variable rate that otherwise would apply to the calculation of
interest on the Adjustable Rate Bonds; any increases in those interest rates will increase the amount of
interest payable by the Trust Estate under the Master Indenture and may affect its sufficiency to pay the
Bonds. As of the date hereof, certain Adjustable Rate Bonds have been tendered and, since they have not
been successfully remarketed, such Adjustable Rate Bonds have become Bank Bonds. These outstanding
Bank Bonds bear interest at rates substantially higher than the variable rate that would otherwise apply
and, in connection with several Series, principal and interest on such Bank Bonds will be payable in the
near future under the accelerated amortization provisions of the related Liquidity Facility. The
Authority's obligations to repay the Liquidity Facility Providers prior to stated maturity or any mandatory
sinking fund redemption date for any principal amounts due on any Bank Bonds outstanding under a
Liquidity Facility constitute in some cases Class |1l Obligations under the Master Indenture and aso
constitute general obligations of the Authority, and for other Series including the 2013 Series B Bonds,
constitute Class | Obligations under the Master Indenture. See "Inability to Obtain Substitute Liquidity
Facility" under this caption.

Tax Exempt Status of Tax-Exempt Bonds

The opinion to be delivered by Bond Counsel concurrently with delivery of any tax-exempt
Bonds will assume compliance by the Authority with certain requirements of the Tax Code that must be
met subsequent to the issuance of such Bonds. The Authority will certify, represent and covenant to
comply with such requirements. The opinion of Bond Counsel to be delivered in connection with the
2013 Series B Bonds is described in "Part | — TAX MATTERS — Tax Treatment of Interest on 2013
Series B Bonds." Failure to comply with such requirements could cause the interest on the tax-exempt
Bonds to be included in gross income, or could otherwise adversely affect such opinions, retroactive to
the date of issuance of such Bonds. Furthermore, the opinion of Bond Counsel is rendered as of the date
of delivery of the particular Series of Bonds and speaks only to laws in effect as of such date.
Amendments to federal and state tax laws are proposed from time to time and could be enacted in the
future. There can be no assurance that any such future amendments will not adversely affect the value of
such Series of Bonds, the exclusion of interest on the tax-exempt Bonds from gross income, alternative
minimum taxable income, state taxable income, or any combination from the date of issuance of the
particular Series of Bonds or any other date, or that such changes will not result in other adverse federa
or state tax conseguences.

Risks Related to I nterest Rate Contracts

Each of the Interest Rate Contracts exposes the Authority to certain risks including, but not
limited to, the risk that payments received by the Authority from the applicable Counterparty could be
substantially less than the floating rate interest payments due on the related Series of Bonds. Pursuant to
each of the Interest Rate Contracts, the Authority will pay interest to the Counterparty at a fixed rate and
will receive interest from the Counterparty at a variable rate which will be based on a LIBOR or SIFMA
Index. To the extent Counterparty payments are based on a LIBOR or SIFMA Index, the amount of
actual interest payments due on the respective Adjustable Rate Bonds may differ from the amount of such
interest payments to be made by the Counterparty and the Trust Estate may not be sufficient to pay
interest as due.
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The payment obligations of the Authority under the Interest Rate Contracts do not remove the
obligations of the Authority to pay interest on the related Series of Bonds from the Trust Estate. A
negative change to the financia position of any of the Counterparties (including bankruptcy or
insolvency) at any time may negatively impact payments to the Authority pursuant to the applicable
Interest Rate Contract to an extent that cannot be determined. In addition, each Interest Rate Contract is
subject to termination upon the occurrence of certain events, and no assurance can be given that the
Interest Rate Contracts, or any of them, will continue to be in effect. None of the Interest Rate Contracts
provide a source of credit or security for the Bonds. The Owners of the Bonds do not have any rights
under any Interest Rate Contract or against any Counterparty. See "Part Il — SECURITY FOR THE
BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS — Interest Rate Contracts." See aso Appendix B-1 —
"THE OUTSTANDING BONDS AND AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS." See footnote (7) to the audited
2012 financia statements of the Authority included in this Official Statement as Appendix G for a
description of certain further risks associated with the Interest Rate Contracts.

Delays after Defaultson Mortgage L oans

The Authority anticipates that there will be some delinquent Mortgage Loan payments and
foreclosed Mortgage Loans. In the event that a Borrower defaultsin the payment of a Mortgage Loan and
the Authority ingtitutes foreclosure proceedings, there may be certain required time delays which, should
they occur with respect to a sufficient number of Mortgage Loans, could disrupt the flow of Revenues
available for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. These time delays derive from the
procedures applicable to the collection of mortgage insurance or guarantees as well as those required
under Colorado law for the enforcement of rights of beneficiaries under deeds of trusts. Those procedures
and their effect on the Authority's ability to collect on defaulted Mortgage Loans are described in
Appendix | — "INSURANCE AND GUARANTEE PROGRAMS; FORECLOSURE." Any Second
Mortgage Loans made to Borrowers in connection with the First Mortgage Loans will decrease the
Borrower's equity in the property and, as aresult, it is possible that the First Mortgage Loans with Second
Mortgage Loans may in the aggregate perform with higher default rates than First Mortgage Loans
originated without a Second Mortgage Loan. Bondholders should consider the possibility that such
higher default rates could result in insufficient Revenues available to pay debt service on the Bonds when
due. Information about historical default rates on portfolios of mortgage |oans which secure outstanding
bonds of the Authority has been provided by the Authority in its past filings with the nationally
recognized municipal securities information repositories. In addition, physical damage to the residences
securing the Mortgage Loans may exceed the limits of, or be caused by a peril not insured under, the
standard hazard insurance policies insuring such residences, thereby diminishing the value of the
Mortgage L oans securing the Bonds.

Other Risks

The remedies available to the owners of the Bonds upon an event of default under the Indenture
or other documents described herein are in many respects dependent upon regulatory and judicial actions
which often are subject to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and
judicial decisions, including specifically Title 11 of the United States Code, the remedies specified by the
Indenture and the various Program documents may not be readily available or may be limited. The
various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds will be qualified, as to
the enforceability of the various legal instruments, by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization,
insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generadlly.
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THE SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE PROGRAM

The Trust Estate which secures Bonds under the Master Indenture (including the Remarketed
Bonds) will include Mortgage Loans, as described in "Part II — SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND
AUXILIARY OBLIGATIONS." The following sections describe requirements for the Mortgage Loans
which are based on requirements in the Act or derive from general policies and limits established by the
Authority for qualification of Mortgage Lenders, Servicers, Borrowers and Eligible Properties as well as
basic requirements for Mortgage Loans (with noted exceptions). As indicated, certain requirements
described below relate only to Mortgage Loans made as a part of the Authority's Qualified Single Family
Mortgage Program. A number of the procedures described below may not apply to the Zero Interest First
Mortgage Loans. It is expected that there will be variations in particular cases and that the policies and
procedures of the Authority will be modified from time to time consistent with the Act, the Indenture and
any procedures applicable to the Mortgage Loans.

Communication of Program Information

The Authority communicates information on its website (www.chfainfo.com) and through
subscription Internet services regarding the changes to policies and procedures for First Mortgage Loans
under the Program. Interest rates announced to participating Mortgage Lenders on the Authority website
may change daily. The Authority also makes available on the website a guide to Mortgage Lenders
setting forth requirements for the Program and information relating to the reservation procedures as more
fully described in "Seller's Guide" under this caption (the "Seller's Guide"). Participating Mortgage
Lenders are expected to aobtain this information from the website, which is currently being hosted by
AllRegsto improveits useability. The Seller's Guide describes each Program parameters and information
necessary for Mortgage Lenders to determine the digibility of Applicants, residences and Mortgage
Loans under the Program. The Seller's Guide and all programmatic information is incorporated by
reference into the Mortgage Purchase Agreement entered into between the Authority and each respective
participating Mortgage Lender for eligible Mortgage Loans. See "Mortgage Purchase Agreements' under
this caption.

Reservation, Delivery and Acquisition of Mortgage L oans

The Seller's Guide references and incorporates a description of reservation procedures by which a
Mortgage Lender may reserve Mortgage Loan funds. Reservations may be made on a continuous basis
without regard to the availability of proceeds from a specific Series of Bonds. The reservation procedures
require a Mortgage Lender to have taken a loan application from an Applicant who has entered into a
purchase contract with the seller of a residence or to have taken an application from an Applicant who
intends to refinance their existing mortgage loan as part of a refinance program. The Mortgage Lender
must use the Internet Reservation System to reserve funds. Prior to closing the Mortgage Loan, the
Mortgage Lender may deliver to the Authority further documentation in order for the Authority to review
the eligibility of the Applicant and the residence. The Mortgage Lender must then close the Mortgage
Loan and deliver to the Authority the complete Mortgage Loan closing documents within specified
timeframes.

In connection with any First Mortgage Loan (with the exception of Zero Interest Loans or
Mortgage Loans financed under the CHFA Advantage Program or the CHFA FHA Streamline Refinance
Program) originated by a Mortgage Lender in the Single Family Mortgage Programs, a Borrower may
request and obtain a Second Mortgage Loan, the proceeds of which may be used to fund upfront cash
requirements of the applicable First Mortgage Loan, including payment of the origination fee, closing
costs, initial required escrow deposits and/or all or a portion of a downpayment. Proceeds of a Second
Mortgage Loan may also be used by a Borrower for a temporary "buy down" of the interest rate. See
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"Specia Program Features — Second Mortgage Loans' under this caption. First Mortgage Loans will be
offered with and without a Second Mortgage Loan at varying interest rates. In addition, the Authority
may reguire a Borrower to make a cash contribution using funds other than the proceeds of a Second
Mortgage Loan. The cash contribution is not required to be from the Borrower's own funds. The
Authority or the Trustee will acquire First Mortgage Loans from the Mortgage Lenders with available
funds of the Authority at a price sufficient, in some cases, to pay additional lender fees. The Authority or
the Trustee will also use available funds to reimburse Mortgage Lenders for any related Second Mortgage
Loans originated by such Mortgage Lenders on behalf of the Authority in connection with such First
Mortgage Loans.

In order to satisfy the requirements of the Tax Code in connection with certain tax-exempt Bonds,
the Authority is required by the Indenture to reserve an amount in the Acquisition Account for the
acquisition of First Mortgage Loans on "targeted area residences’ within the meaning of Section 143 of
the Tax Code ("Targeted Area Residences"'). Such amount must be reserved until all of such amount is
used to acquire First Mortgage Loans on such Targeted Area Residences or a date at least one year after
the date on which the proceeds of the Series of Bonds or amounts exchanged therefor are first made
available for the acquisition of such First Mortgage Loans.

Eligibility Requirements
Residency Requirements

In the case of Mortgage L oans made in the Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program, Mortgage
Loans must be made only to Applicants who have not had a present ownership interest in a principa
residence during the three-year period prior to the date of execution of each respective Mortgage which
secures each such Mortgage Loan. Mortgage Loans in the Non-Qualified Single Family Mortgage
Program, Mortgage Loans made to Eligible Veterans or in Targeted Areas will not be subject to this
requirement. Each Applicant must also intend to occupy the Eligible Property as his or her principa
place of residence.

Purchase Price Limitations

In the case of Mortgage Loans made in the Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program, the
Purchase Price of an Eligible Property financed in connection with such a Mortgage Loan may not exceed
certain Purchase Price limits as established by the Authority. The Authority has established Purchase
Price limits for Eligible Properties, with no differentiation between new and existing residences, based on
the county in which such Eligible Property is located. These limits range from $250,200 to $417,000.
Certain of these Purchase Price limits are somewhat |ower than those permitted by the Tax Code in order
to better serve persons and families of lower income. Purchase Price limits determined by the Authority
may be amended by the Authority from time to time without notice to Bondowners. Furthermore, a
Mortgage Loan may be made in an amount up to $15,000 for an existing Residence to finance certain
capital improvements to the Eligible Property for energy efficiency purposes. In addition to the proceeds
of aFirst Mortgage Loan, an Eligible Property may be financed with amounts received and secured by a
second mortgage encumbering the property. For other Mortgage Loans and in certain jurisdictions, the
Authority has established or may establish higher Purchase Price limits, not in excess of 90% (110% in
the case of Targeted Area Residences) of the Average Area Purchase Price, as defined below, of
previoudy occupied or new single family residences, as the case may be, for the statistical areain which
the Eligible Property islocated.
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The term "Purchase Price" means that cost of acquiring an Eligible Property from the seller as a
completed residentia unit, including: (i) al amounts paid, either in cash or in kind, by the Eligible
Borrower (or arelated party or for the benefit of the Eligible Borrower) to the seller (or arelated person
or for the benefit of the seller) as consideration for the Eligible Property, (ii) the purchase price of the land
and (iii) if the Eligible Property is incomplete, the reasonable cost of completing it (to the extent that the
builder thereof normally completes work on similar residences which he builds, and so that occupancy
thereof is legally permitted); but exclusive of (A) usual and reasonable settlement or financing costs (but
only to the extent that such amounts do not exceed the usual and reasonable costs which would be paid by
the Applicant where financing is not provided through the proceeds of qualified mortgage bonds the
interest on which is excludable from the gross income of the recipient for federal income tax purposes),
(B) the value of services performed by the Eligible Borrower or members of his or her family in
completing the Eligible Property, (C) the value of an income-producing component of the Eligible
Property, (D) the value of all items of personal property included in the Eligible Property and (E) the cost
of land if owned by the Eligible Borrower for at least two years prior to the commencement of
construction.

The term "Average Area Purchase Price” means the average area purchase price under the safe
harbor limitations calculated as provided in Revenue Procedure 2012-25. This Revenue Procedure
announces that the Treasury Department and the Interna Revenue Service have determined that FHA
loan limits provide a reasonable basis for determining average area purchase price safe harbor limitations.
Because FHA loan limits do not differentiate between new and existing residences, the Revenue
Procedure contains a single average area purchase price safe harbor for both new and existing residences
in agtatistical area. If the Treasury Department and the Internal Revenue Service become aware of other
sources of average purchase price data, including data that differentiate between new and existing
residences, consideration will be given as to whether such data provide a more accurate method for
calculating average area purchase price safe harbors. If no purchase price safe harbor is available for a
statistical area, the safe harbor for "All Other Areas' may be used for that statistical area.

If the FHA revises the FHA loan limit for any statistical area after December 2, 2011, an issuer of
gualified mortgage bonds or mortgage credit certificates may use the revised FHA loan limit for the
statistical area to compute a revised average area purchase price safe harbor for that statistical area,
provided that the issuer maintains records evidencing the revised FHA loan limit. In accordance with the
Tax Code, the average area purchase price may be determined by the Authority, in lieu of the safe harbor
limitations described above, if the Authority uses more accurate and comprehensive data.

On December 2, 2011, FHA issued Mortgagee Letter 2011-39 which provided notice of the
comprehensive update to the FHA's single-family loan limits, issued under the authority of H.R. 2112, the
Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2012, Public Law 112-55. These limits apply
to Forward mortgages insured under the following sections of the National Housing Act (NHA): 203(b)
(FHA’s basic 1-4 family mortgage, including condominiums), 203(h) (mortgages for disaster victims),
and 203(k) (rehabilitation mortgage insurance). ML 2011-39 further provided notice that loan limits for
mortgages with case numbers assigned on or after January 1, 2012 will use the same loan limits as those
announced in ML 10-2010-40 for January 1, 2011 through September 30, 2011. ML 2012-26 announced
loan limitsfor calendar year 2013.
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The most recently published safe harbor limitations for Average Area Purchase Prices for Single
Family Residencesin the State were as follows:

Average Purchase
Area Price Safe Harbor
Summit County $748,462
Pitkin County 748,462
Lake County 748,462
Eagle County 748,462
Routt County 692,308
San Miguel County 667,949
Hinsdale County 571,795
Ouray County 494,872
Boulder County 471,795
La Plata County 455,128
Gunnison County 444,872
San Juan County 435,897
Garfield County 435,897
Weld County 428,205
Park County 416,667
Jefferson County 416,667
Gilpin County 416,667
Elbert County 416,667
Douglas County 416,667
Denver County 416,667
Clear Creek County 416,667
Broomfield County 416,667
Arapahoe County 416,667
Adams County 416,667
Mesa County 380,769
Grand County 365,385
Teller County 333,333
El Paso County 333,333
Archuleta County 325,641
Larimer County 320,513
Mineral County 307,692
Chaffee County 287,179

Source: Internal Revenue Service Revenue Procedure 2012-25, IRB 2012-20, dated May 14, 2012.
The limitations were confirmed in Internal Revenue Service Revenue Procedure 2013-27,
dated June 10, 2013.

Condominium Projects

Under the Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program, Mortgage Loans on a limited number of
condominium units which qualify for FHA insurance, VA or Rural Housing Service guarantees or PMI
may be purchased. The aggregate principal amount of Mortgage L oans encumbering condominium units
may not exceed 20% of the aggregate principal amount of all Mortgage Loans financed by the Bonds at
the time such Mortgage L oans are originated or purchased.

Income Limits

An Applicant may be a Borrower for purposes of a Mortgage Loan only if such Applicant has a
current Gross Annual Household Income which does not exceed the limits set forth in the Seller's Guide
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and supplemental documentation. Income limits determined by the Authority may be amended by the
Authority from time to time without notice to Bondowners.

Credit Scores for Originated Mortgage Loan Applicants

Applicants for Mortgage Loans originated under the Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program
must meet a minimum FICO credit score requirement of 620 (except the minimum credit score for the
CHFA Advantage Program is 680). Applicants who have credit scores greater than or equa to 620 but
less than or equal to 659 (and have debt to income ratios exceeding 43%) must successfully pass the
Authority's CHFA Risk Information Score Card ("RISC") to utilize any Qualified or Non-Qualified
Single Family Mortgage Loan Program. RISC evaluates a comprehensive list of "mortgage compensating
factors' to determine homeownership preparedness. While some Applicants do not meet the mortgage
program requirements at the time of application, they may be able to qualify later by addressing some or
all of theissues identified in the RISC Score Card. The list of "mortgage compensating factors' evaluated
in the RISC Score Card includes, among other things, the amount of investment by the Applicant in the
subject property, the amount of cash reserves held by the Applicant, and whether the Applicant uses
budgeting or credit-counseling services.

Homebuyer Education Requirement

Applicants for Mortgage Loans originated under the Qualified Single Family Mortgage Program
will be required by the Authority (at the Authority's expense) to attend homebuyer education classes.
Homebuyer education classes are intended to give Applicants a clearer understanding, among other
things, of their debt obligations. Applicants obtaining financing under the Authority's HomeAccess
Program must attend the class prior to executing a contract with respect to the applicable property.
Homebuyer education classes are offered statewide and at no cost to the Borrower by Authority-approved
housing counseling agencies and housing authorities under contract with the Authority ("participating
agencies'). Homebuyer education certificates are only valid for nine months from the date of the
certificate through the date of the purchase contract. Pursuant to its contracts with such participating
agencies, the Authority will pay up to certain amounts for the classroom education. Homebuyer
education is also available online from certain of the participating agencies at a cost of $50 to be paid by
the Borrower.

M ortgage Purchase Agreement

Each Mortgage Lender approved by the Authority to participate in the Authority's Single Family
Mortgage Program has executed a Mortgage Purchase Agreement. Additional Mortgage Lenders may
become €ligible to participate and, if approved by the Authority, will enter into a Mortgage Purchase
Agreement. Purchases of Mortgage Loans by the Authority from Mortgage L enders are made pursuant to
Mortgage Purchase Agreements, which in most cases incorporate by reference the terms and provisions of
the Seller's Guide. A reservation of Mortgage Loan fundsis for a specific Applicant, residence, Mortgage
Loan amount and interest rate. The Seller's Guide provides that an origination fee equal to one percent
(1%) of the aggregate principal amount of each First Mortgage Loan may be charged to a Borrower and
Mortgage Lenders may receive an additional payment from the Authority as a servicing release fee and,
in the case of First Mortgage Loans originated in non-metropolitan areas, an additional 50/100 of one
percent (.50%) fee will be paid to Mortgage Lenders. In the case of a First Mortgage Loan originated to a
Borrower whose household income is less than 80% area median income, with a credit score equal to or
greater than 700 or with a Mortgage Loan in an amount less than $75,000, an additional .125% premium
will be paid to Mortgage Lenders. In the case of Mortgage Loans originated in the HomeA ccess Program
and as 203K rehabilitation loans, an additional one percent (1%) fee will be paid to Mortgage Lenders.
Mortgage Lenders will also be paid one-hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) for Second Mortgage L oans.
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The Authority reserves the right to modify or otherwise change its procedures under the Program
from time to time on the basis of its experience in order to meet changed conditions. To the extent that
such modifications or changes are made, the Authority will be governed by the Act and by the covenants
contained in the Indenture.

Seller's Guide

Each Mortgage Purchase Agreement (applicable only to Mortgage Loans other than Zero Interest
First Mortgage Loans) incorporates by reference the Seller's Guide, including all of the terms, conditions,
representations and warranties therein. The Seller's Guide describes the procedures for reservation, loan
delivery and acquisition, and contains representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the
Mortgage Lender to the Authority, certain of which relateto: (i) the legality and validity of the Mortgage
Loans and related documents; (ii) the existence and conveyance to the Authority of a valid lien (subject
only to current taxes and assessments not yet due and payable, and encumbrances permitted by the
Authority) on the Eligible Property, located in the State and held in fee smple; (iii) the absence of
delinquencies with respect to payments on each Mortgage Loan; (iv) the absence of defaults under each
Mortgage Loan; (v) the Mortgage Lender's right to sell each Mortgage Loan to the Authority; (vi) the
existence and validity of hazard insurance on the Eligible Property in an amount equa to the lesser of
(a) 100% of the replacement value of improvements (as established by the property insurer) or (b) the
unpaid principal balance of the First Mortgage Loan plus any Second Mortgage Loan held by the
Authority; provided, however, that under no circumstances may the amount of insurance be less than 80%
of the replacement value of the improvements; (vii) compliance by the Mortgage Lender with all
requirements relating to the insurance or guaranty of the Mortgage Loan; (viii) compliance with the
applicable requirements of the Tax Code; and (ix) the requirement that any insurance or guaranty will
inure to the benefit of the Authority. The Authority has the right to decline to purchase any Mortgage
Loan offered to it if, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, the Mortgage Loan does not conform to
the requirements of the Act or the Seller's Guide. See "Mortgage Purchase Agreement” under this

caption.

The Sdler's Guide may be amended or supplemented by the Authority from time to time without
notice to the owners of the Bonds.

Servicing of the Mortgage L oans

Since 1997, the Authority has retained al mortgage servicing rights related to purchased single-
family mortgage loans and has serviced such mortgage loans, including the Mortgage L oans, through an
internal loan servicing department. However, following a detailed review of itsloan servicing function in
2012, the Authority determined that the Authority and its customers would benefit from the infrastructure,
advanced technology and economies of scale offered by an external sub-servicer. As a result, in
November 2012 the Authority contracted with Dovenmuehle Mortgage, Inc. ("DMI") to serve as a sub-
servicer for the Authority’s single family mortgage loan portfolio (including the Mortgage Loans). The
Mortgage Loans were transitioned to DMI on February 28, 2013 and March 1, 2013. DMI is highly
experienced at sub-servicing mortgage loan portfolios for housing finance agencies and other investors,
with expertise in tax exempt bond finance structures and the unique mission perspective of housing
finance agencies. It is anticipated that the engagement of DMI will assist the Authority in lowering its
long-term costs and enhance delinquency and default management. DMI was selected from a pool of six
nationally recognized candidates after a rigorous interview and assessment process. The Authority will
continue to retain mortgage servicing rights and actively oversees the activities of DMI through a core
group of internal loan servicing employees.



L oss Mitigation

For Mortgagorsin default, the Authority actively seeks alternatives to foreclosure. The Authority
through its sub-servicer DMI follows the loss mitigation procedures of the relevant Mortgage Loan
insurer or guarantor. For some Mortgage Loans, the Authority utilizes a variance received from HUD
which excepts it from following portions of the loss mitigation waterfall related to loan modifications.
The Authority also refers all Mortgagors in default to HUD-approved counseling agencies for assistance.
HUD evauates loss mitigation efforts by loan servicers on a quarterly basis, six months in arrears. HUD
assigns atier ranking of one to four, with one being the highest ranking. DMI's most recent ranking as a
loan servicer isTier 2.

Hazard I nsurance

Each Mortgagor must maintain a hazard insurance policy covering against loss caused by fire and
hazards included within the term extended coverage.

In general, the standard form of fire and extended coverage policy covers physical damage to or
destruction of a residence by fire, lightning, smoke, windstorm and hail, riot, strike and civil commotion,
subject to the conditions and exclusions particularized in each policy. Although the policies relating to
the Mortgage Loans may be underwritten by different insurers and therefore will not contain identical
terms and conditions, the basic terms thereof are dictated by Colorado law. Most such policies typically
do not cover any "physical damage" resulting from the following: war, revolution, governmental actions,
earthquake, floods and other water-related causes, nuclear reactions, wet or dry rot, vermin, rodents,
insects or domestic animals, theft and, in certain cases, vandalism. The foregoing list is merely indicative
of certain kinds of uninsured risks and is not intended to be all-inclusive.

Most hazard insurance policies typicaly contain a "coinsurance" clause which will require the
Mortgagor at all times to carry insurance of a specified percentage (generaly 80% to 90%) of the full
replacement value of the improvements on the residence in order to recover the full amount of any partial
loss. If the coverage falls below the specified percentage, the insurer's liability in the event of partial 1oss
would not exceed the larger of (i) the actual cash value of the improvements damaged or destroyed or (ii)
such proportion of the loss as the amount of insurance carried bears to the specified percentage of the full
replacement cost of such improvements. The effect of coinsurance in the event of partial 10ss may be that
hazard insurance proceeds will be insufficient to restore fully the damage to the Eligible Property.

Special Program Features
Zero Interest First Mortgage Loans

The Authority may use amounts in the Acquisition Account to acquire as Mortgage L oans certain
loans referred to as "Zero Interest First Mortgage Loans.” Zero Interest First Mortgage Loans are
loans which have been made by a hon-profit organization to Borrowers in principal amounts equal to the
cost of construction of the dwelling, with no interest. The Borrowers are expected to contribute over 400
hours of "sweat equity" into the construction of the dwelling in lieu of a down payment. The annual
repayment obligation of Zero Interest First Mortgage Loans will be based on 25% of the respective
Borrower's gross annual household income and the respective maturities of the Zero Interest First
Mortgage Loans will be derived as a result of the repayment terms. The Zero Interest First Mortgage
Loans will not be insured or guaranteed and do not need to meet any loan-to-value ratios. However, in
the event of default, the non-profit organization is required to substitute the defaulted Zero Interest First
Mortgage Loan with a comparable performing Zero Interest First Mortgage Loan. Zero Interest First
Mortgage L oans are purchased by the Authority, and they may have cash assistance or a second mortgage
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loan from other entities. Terms of the Zero Interest First Mortgage Loans may be amended from time to
time and the level of such Zero Interest First Mortgage Loans so acquired may be determined by the
Authority, to the extent consistent with the then current Cash Flow Statement and Authority Certification
required by the related Series Indenture to demonstrate that the Class | Asset Requirement, the Class 1l
Asset Requirement and the Class |11 Asset Requirement for the particular Series of Bonds will be met
after taking into account such terms and level. The Authority charges a small one-time, up-front
administrative fee for each Zero Interest First Mortgage Loan.

HomeAccess Program

The Authority may use amounts in the Acquisition Account to acquire Mortgage Loans
originated under the Authority's HomeAccess Program, which is intended to assist very low-income
persons with disabilities or the parents of a child with a disability to achieve homeownership. These
Borrowers may receive First Mortgage Loans (referred to herein as "HomeAccess Loans') at current
market rates. A Mortgage Loan in the HomeAccess Program will be made only to a Borrower who
makes a cash contribution of at least $750 or $500 with automatic checking account payments and who
meets certain income limits lower than those established for Borrowers of other First Mortgage Loans.
The Authority may provide certain Borrowers under the HomeA ccess Program with a Second Mortgage
Loan for downpayment and closing cost assistance of up to $25,000. The HomeA ccess Second Mortgage
Loans bear interest at an annual interest rate of 0% with repayment deferred for three-hundred sixty (360)
months, then repaid at two hundred dollars ($200) per month thereafter. Terms of the Mortgage Loans
made under the HomeA ccess Program may be amended from time to time and the level of such Mortgage
Loans so acquired may be determined by the Authority, to the extent consistent with the then current Cash
Flow Statement and Authority Certification required by the related Series Indenture to demonstrate that
the Class | Asset Requirement, the Class I Asset Requirement and the Class 111 Asset Requirement for
the particular Series of Bonds will be met after taking into account such terms and level.

SectionEight and SectionEight Plus Programs

The Authority may use amounts in the Acquisition Account to acquire Mortgage Loans
originated under the Authority's SectionEight and SectionEight Plus Programs. Under its SectionEight
Program, the Authority may make 30-year Mortgage Loans to first time homebuyers that meet certain
income limit requirements, for eligible property not exceeding certain purchase price limits, and subject to
certain other restrictions. Persons who receive Housing Assistance Payments ("HAP") from Public
Housing Authorities ("PHA") and who are approved to participate in a PHA's homeownership programs
may be eligible to participate in the Authority's SectionEight and SectionEight Plus Programs. Under the
SectionEight Plus Program, the Authority may make Second Mortgage Loans to eligible borrowers to
finance a down payment and/or closing costs.

CHFA Advantage Program

The Authority may use amounts in the Acquisition Account to acquire Mortgage Loans
originated under the Authority's CHFA Advantage Program. Under this Program, the Authority may
make 30-year fixed interest rate Mortgage Loans to borrowers with a minimum median credit score of
680. Such Mortgage Loans originated under the CHFA Advantage Program will be conventional
uninsured loans, with a loan to value ratio of 97%. Such Mortgage Loans will not be originated under
this Program in conjunction with a Second Mortgage Loan.
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Second Mortgage Loans

Proceeds of certain Bonds have in the past been and may in the future be used by the Authority to
acquire Second Mortgage Loans made to Borrowers of First Mortgage Loans, including such Second
Mortgage Loans made to Borrowers of First Mortgage Loans as well as Second Mortgage Loans
originated under the Master Indenture in connection with first mortgage loans purchased and pledged to
repay certain GNMA Securities expected to be issued by the Authority. Under most programs, Second
Mortgage Loans have been and will be originated for three percent (3%) of the first mortgage loan
amount on an interest-bearing basis, with a term of thirty (30) or forty (40) years. Generally, Second
Mortgage Loans are due in full upon the sale of the property, the refinance of the related First Mortgage
Loan, payment in full of the related First Mortgage Loan, default of the related First Mortgage Loan,
transfer of title, or if the property is no longer the Borrower's principal residence. Under certain speciaty
programs, the second mortgage rate is zero percent (0%) and repayment of the entire balance of the
Second Mortgage Loan is due in month three-hundred sixty (360) or four-hundred eighty (480) (after
repayment of the thirty (30) or forty (40) year first mortgage loan). The Second Mortgage Loan can be
prepaid in full or in part at any time without penalty. The Second Mortgage Loan is not assumable.

The percentage and aggregate amounts available from Bond proceeds for acquisition of such
Second Mortgage Loans from time to time must be at levels consistent with the then current Cash Flow
Statements and Authority Certification required by the related Series Indenture to demonstrate that the
Class | Asset Requirement, the Class Il Asset Requirement and the Class 111 Asset Requirement for the
particular Series of Bondswill be met after taking into account such levels for Second Mortgage L oans.

Refinancing Programs

Proceeds of the Bonds (or amounts exchanged therefor) provide funding for the Authority's
mortgage purchase activities under the Single Family Mortgage Programs. The Authority isusing, and in
the future plans to use, such proceeds and exchanged amounts to fund mortgage refinancing activities.
Under the CHFA FHA Streamline Refinance Program, initiated in September 2012 by the Authority, the
Authority may offer fixed interest rate 30-year Mortgage L oans to refinance Mortgage Loans currently in
the Authority's single-family mortgage loan portfolios, without an appraisal, homebuyer education, any
credit qualification or minimum financia investment. Mortgage Loans will not be originated under this
Program in conjunction with a Second Mortgage Loan. Under its CHFA Advantage Program, the
Authority also offers fixed interest rate 30-year Mortgage Loans to refinance existing loans. Any such
refinancing programs of the Authority may result in the prepayment of outstanding mortgage loans,
including the Mortgage Loans, with a corresponding redemption at par of Bonds secured by such
Mortgage Loans in accordance with the redemption provisions of the related Series Indenture. See "Part
Il — CERTAIN BONDOWNERS' RISK S — Considerations Regarding Redemption."

Community Land Trust Program

The Authority uses proceeds of Bonds to acquire First Mortgage Loans with a first lien on
residences built on leased ground in connection with a Community Land Trust. The remaining term of
the ground leases will not be less than the term for repayment of the Bonds secured by the First Mortgage
Loans. The Community Land Trust's ground lease may include certain resale restrictions to limit future
property purchasersto low and moderate families or to limit the maximum sales price of the property. The
Authority will require appropriate recorded documentation such as a Land Lease Rider (the "Rider")
among the Borrower, the Authority and the Community Land Trust which will provide that such
restrictions will terminate automatically on foreclosure of, or acceptance of a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure
for, the leasehold mortgage. The documentation will also provide that in no event shall the leasehold
terminate except for (1) nonpayment of amounts due under the lease; (2) violation of the restrictions on
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sale; and (3) violation of the requirement that the Borrower occupy the land as their primary residence.
The documentation shall give the Authority the prior right to cure any such default without terminating
the lease or to foreclose its mortgage, at which point a new lease between the Authority and the
Community Land Trust will be automatically created.

Payment of Recapture Tax

The Authority has established a reimbursement program for certain current and new Borrowers
that may be subject to paying a recapture tax under the Internal Revenue Code (the "Recapture Tax").
The Internal Revenue Code mandates, under certain circumstances, a "recapture”’ of some of the subsidy
received by a Borrower through borrowing under the Authority's tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond
funded loan programs. A payment of Recapture Tax may be required if (i) the Authority financed
property ceases to be the Borrower's principal residence in the first full nine years of ownership; (ii) there
is a profit on the sde of the home; and (iii) the Borrower's household income increases significantly
(generally more than five percent (5%) per year). Upon receipt of proof that a Borrower who was subject
to a Recapture Tax actualy paid to the IRS the Recapture Tax, the Authority will reimburse the Borrower
the amount paid upon satisfaction of certain conditions. The reimbursement will be paid from general
funds of the Authority. The Authority has evaluated the risks associated with this reimbursement program
and determined that the likelihood is relatively low that a Borrower will be required to pay a Recapture
Tax and that the Authority will subsequently have to reimburse such Borrower.

NO IMPAIRMENT OF CONTRACT BY THE STATE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 29-4-731 of the Act, the Authority has included in the
Indenture the pledge and agreement of the State of Colorado that the State of Colorado will not limit or
alter the rights vested by the Act in the Authority to fulfill the terms of any agreements made with Bond
Owners, or in any way impair the rights and remedies of such Owners until the Bonds, together with the
interest thereon and all costs and expenses in connection with any action or proceedings by or on behalf
of such Owners, are fully met and discharged.

LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT AND SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS

The Act provides that the Bonds are eligible for investment in the State by all public officers,
public bodies and political subdivisions of the State, banking associations, savings and loan associations,
trust companies, investment companies and insurance companies, and all executors, administrators,
trustees and other fiduciaries of funds in their control or belonging to them; provided that, at the time of
purchase by a public entity, such Bonds are rated in one of the two highest rating categories by one or
more nationally recognized organizations which regularly rate such obligations. The Act makes the
Bonds securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by any municipal officer
or any agency or political subdivision of the State for any purpose for which the deposit of bonds, notes
or obligations of the State is authorized by law.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The most recent audited financial statements of the Authority, included as Appendix G hereto,
have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent auditors, as stated in their report appearing therein.
KPMG LLP has not performed any procedures related to this Official Statement.

MISCELLANEOUS

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject
to change. All gquotations from, and summaries and explanations of the statutes, regulations and
documents contained herein do not purport to be complete and reference is made to said laws, regulations
and documents for full and complete statements of their provisions. Copies, in reasonable quantity, of
such laws, regulations and documents, including the Indenture, may be obtained, during the offering
period, upon request to the Authority and upon payment to the Authority of a charge for copying, mailing
and handling, at 1981 Blake Street, Denver, Colorado 80202, Attention: Director of Finance.

The digtribution of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by the Authority. Any
statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressy so stated, are
intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be construed as an
agreement or contract between the Authority and the purchasers or owners of any 2013 Series B Bonds.

COLORADO HOUSING AND FINANCE
AUTHORITY

By:__ /¢ Patricia Hippe
Chief Financia Officer
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APPENDIX A

Formsof the Indenture

The forms of the Master Indenture and 2013 Series B Indenture are attached hereto.



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



COLORADO HOUSING AND FINANCE AUTHORITY

AND

ZIONS FIRST NATIONAL BANK,

ASTRUSTEE

MASTER INDENTURE OF TRUST

(Conformed copy reflecting Supplements to Master Indenture in effect as of June 1, 2013)

DATED AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2001

SECURING

SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE BONDS
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This MASTER INDENTURE OF TRUST, dated as of October 1, 2001, between the
Colorado Housing and Finance Authority (the “Authority”), a body corporate and political
subdivision of the State of Colorado, and Zions First National Bank, as Trustee, a national
banking association, duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America,
with a corporate trust office located in Denver, Colorado, and authorized under such laws to
accept and execute trusts of the character herein set forth,

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority Act, being part 7 of article 4
of title 29, Colorado Revised Statutes (the “Act”), authorizes the Authority to issue bonds and
other obligations to finance “housing facilities’ for “low- or moderate-income families’ (all as
defined in the Act) to the end that decent, safe and sanitary dwelling accommodations for such
families may be provided; and

WHEREAS, in order to provide funds to be used to redeem prior to maturity certain
outstanding bonds of the Authority, to finance mortgage loans under the Single Family Mortgage
Program of the Authority, to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds to be issued hereunder, to
establish necessary reserves, and to otherwise attain the goals of the Authority pursuant to the
Act, it has been deemed appropriate and necessary that the Authority authorize the issuance of
Bonds pursuant to this Master Indenture and one or more series indentures (“ Series Indentures”
and together with this Master Indenture, the “Indenture”) and prescribe and establish regulations,
conditions and other appropriate matters with respect to the issuance of such Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Master Indenture has been in all respects
duly and validly authorized by resolution duly adopted by the Authority; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS MASTER INDENTURE OF TRUST WITNESSETH:

That the Authority in consideration of the premises, the acceptance by the Trustee of the
trusts hereby created, the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the purchasers thereof, and of
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in order
to secure the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds Outstanding
hereunder from time to time, according to their tenor and effect, and to secure the observance
and performance by the Authority of all the covenants expressed or implied herein, in the Bonds
and in Auxiliary Agreements, does hereby pledge and assign unto the Trustee, acting on behalf
of the Bondowners, and to al present and future Auxiliary Agreement Providers and unto their
successors and assigns forever subject to the rights granted the Authority herein to direct the use
and application of moneys, including the release of moneys free from the lien of the Indenture,
under the terms and conditions set forth herein (all terms not previously defined shall have the
meanings provided in Section 1.1 of this Master Indenture):



GRANTING CLAUSE FIRST

All right, title and interest of the Authority in and to the proceeds derived from the sale of
the Bonds until used as set forth herein; and

GRANTING CLAUSE SECOND

All right, title and interest of the Authority in and to the Revenues and all moneys and
securities in the Funds and Accounts from time to time held by the Trustee under the terms of the
Indenture (except moneys and securities in the Rebate Fund, the Excess Earnings Fund and a
Bond Purchase Fund) and investments, if any, thereof (other than the Rebate Requirement which
is to be deposited in the Rebate Fund, and other than any Excess Earnings which are to be
deposited in the Excess Earnings Fund); and

GRANTING CLAUSE THIRD

All right, title and interest of the Authority in and to the Mortgage Loans and MBS, the
right to make a claim for, collect and receive Revenues payable to or receivable by the Authority,
to bring actions and proceedings under Mortgage Loans and MBS or for the enforcement thereof,
and to do any and al things which the Authority is or may become entitled to do under Mortgage
Loans and MBS; and

GRANTING CLAUSE FOURTH

All proceeds of mortgage insurance and guaranty benefits related to Mortgage L oans and
MBS received by the Authority under the Program; and

GRANTING CLAUSE FIFTH

All moneys and securities and al other rights of every kind and nature from time to time
hereafter by delivery or by writing of any kind pledged, assigned or transferred as and for
additional security hereunder to the Trustee by the Authority or by anyone in its behalf, or with
its written consent and to hold and apply such property.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all of the same, whether now owned or hereafter acquired,
unto the Trustee and its respective successorsin said trusts and assigns forever.

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the terms and trusts herein set forth for the equal
and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all present and future (i) Owners of the
Bonds from time to time issued under and secured by the Indenture without privilege, priority or
distinction as to the lien or otherwise of any of the Bonds over any of the other Bonds and (ii)
Auxiliary Agreement Providers, except as provided herein or in a Series Indenture;
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PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the Authority, its successors or assigns, shall well and
truly pay, or cause to be paid, the principal of the Bonds and the interest and premium, if any,
due or to become due thereon, at the times and in the manner mentioned in the Bonds, according
to the true intent and meaning thereof, and shall cause the payments to be made into the Revenue
Fund as required under the Indenture or shall provide, as permitted by Article XI1 hereof, for the
payment thereof, and shall well and truly keep, perform and observe al the covenants and
conditions pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and all Auxiliary Agreements to be kept,
performed and observed by it, and shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee, the Bond
Registrar, the Paying Agent, all agents of any of them for the registration, authentication, transfer
or exchange of Bonds and all Auxiliary Agreement Providers, al sums of money due or to
become dueto it or them in accordance with the terms and provisions hereof and of the Auxiliary
Agreements, then the Indenture and the rights hereby granted shall cease, determine and be void,;
otherwise the Indenture to be and remain in full force and effect.

THIS MASTER INDENTURE OF TRUST FURTHER WITNESSETH, and it is
expressly declared, that al Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated
and delivered and the property hereby assigned and pledged are to be dealt with and disposed of
under, upon and subject to the terms, conditions, stipulations, covenants, agreements, trusts, uses
and purposes as expressed herein, and the Authority has agreed and covenanted, and does hereby
agree and covenant, with the Trustee, with all Auxiliary Agreement Providers and with the
respective Owners from time to time of the Bonds, as follows:



ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS, CONSTRUCTION, BOND CONTRACT AND PLEDGE

Section 1.1. Definitions. As used in this Master Indenture and, except as otherwise
specified in a Series Indenture, unless the context otherwise shall require, the following terms
shall have the following respective meanings.

“Account” or “Accounts’ means one or more of the special trust accounts created and
established pursuant to this Master Indenture or a Series Indenture.

“Acquisition Account” means the Account so designated, which is created and
established in the Program Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Accreted Vaue’ means, with respect to each Compound Interest Bond as of any date of
calculation, an amount equal to the sum of (i) the principal amount of such Bond, plus (ii) any
interest that has been compounded, i.e., any interest amount that is itself then bearing interest, all
determined as of such date.

“Act” means the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority Act, being Part 7, Article 4,
Title 29 of Colorado Revised Statutes.

“Adjustable Rate Bonds” means Bonds the interest rate on which is not fixed to maturity.
Adjustable Rate Bonds may be designated as Class |, Class |1, Class Il or Class IV Bonds as
provided in the Related Series Indenture.

“Aggregate Debt Service” means, for any particular period, Bonds and Auxiliary
Obligations, the Debt Service Payments becoming due and payable on al Payment Dates during
such period with respect to such Bonds and such Auxiliary Obligations.

“Aggregate Principa Amount” means, as of any date of calculation, the principal amount
or Accreted Value of the Bonds referred to.

“Amortized Value’ means, when used with respect to an Investment Security purchased
at a premium above or at a discount below par, the value as of any given date obtained by
dividing the total amount of the premium or the discount at which such Investment Security was
purchased by the number of days remaining to the first call date (if callable) or the maturity date
(if not callable) of such Investment Securities at the time of such purchase and by multiplying the
amount so calculated by the number of days having passed from the date of such purchase; and
(@) in the case of an Investment Security purchased at a premium, by deducting the product thus
obtained from the purchase price and (b) in the case of an Investment Security purchased at a
discount, by adding the product thus obtained to the purchase price.

“Authority” means the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority, the body corporate and
political subdivision of the State created pursuant to the Act, or any successor thereto under or
with respect to the Act.
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“Authority Certificate” means as the case may be, a document signed by the Chair, Vice
Chair or an Authorized Officer either (a) attesting to or acknowledging the circumstances,
representations or other matters therein stated or set forth or (b) setting forth matters to be
determined by such Authorized Officer pursuant to the Indenture.

“Authority Payment Account” means the Account so designated, which is created and
established in the Debt Service Fund with respect to Genera Obligations by Section 5.1 of this
Master Indenture.

“Authority Request” means a written request or direction of the Authority signed by an
Authorized Officer.

“Authorized Officer” means the Chair, Chair pro tem or Executive Director of the
Authority, and any other officer designated from time to time as an Authorized Officer by
resolution of the Authority and, when used with reference to any act or document, also means
any other person authorized by resolution of the Authority to perform such act or sign such
document.

“Auxiliary Agreements’ means Interest Rate Contracts and Liquidity Facilities.

“Auxiliary Agreement Providers’ means Interest Rate Contract Providers and Liquidity
Facility Providers.

“Aucxiliary Obligations” means obligations of the Authority for the payment of money
under Auxiliary Agreements.

“Bond” or “Bonds’ means any of the bonds, notes or other financial obligations (however
denominated) of the Authority authorized and issued under the Indenture, including any
Refunding Bonds.

“Bond Counsel” means any attorney or firm of attorneys of nationally recognized
standing in the field of municipal law whose opinions are generally accepted by purchasers of
municipal bonds, appointed from time to time by the Authority.

“Bondowner” or “Owner” or “Owner of Bonds” or similar term, when used with respect
to a Bond or Bonds, means the registered owner of any Outstanding Bond.

“Bond Purchase Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and established
by a Series Indenture.

“Bond Registrar” means the bank, trust company or national banking association,
appointed as Bond Registrar under Section 9.1 of this Master Indenture, and having the duties,
responsibilities and rights provided for in the Indenture and its successor or successors, and any
other person at any time substituted in its place as Bond Registrar pursuant to the Indenture.



“Bond Year” means, with respect to each Series, the twelve-month period designated as
such by the Related Series Indenture, except that the first Bond Year for any Bonds may
commence on the date of issuance thereof and end on the date specified by such Series
Indenture.

“Borrower” means the maker of, and any other party obligated on, a Mortgage Loan in
connection with the acquisition or rehabilitation of Residential Housing, who is a person or
family of “low or moderate income” qualifying as such under the Act and the Rules and
Regulations and in accordance with the Code.

“Business Day” means, except as set forth in a Series Indenture, any day (a) on which
banks in the cities in which the respective principa offices of the Paying Agent, the Bond
Registrar, the Trustee and Related Auxiliary Obligation Providers are located are not required or
authorized by law to be closed and (b) on which the New York Stock Exchange is open. For
purposes of this definition, the principal office of a Liquidity Facility Provider shal be the office
to which demands for payment are delivered.

“Cash Flow Statement” means, with respect to any particular Bonds and Auxiliary
Obligations, an Authority Certificate (a) setting forth, for the then current and each future Bond
Year during which such Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations will be Outstanding, and taking into
account (i) any such Bonds expected to be issued or redeemed or purchased for cancellation in
each such Bond Year upon or in connection with the filing of such Certificate (for which
purpose, if such Authority Certificate is delivered as of a date prior to a scheduled mandatory
tender date for any Adjustable Rate Bonds, the Purchase Price of all such Adjustable Rate Bonds
subject to scheduled mandatory tender on such tender date shall be assumed to be due and
payable on such mandatory tender date), (ii) any such Auxiliary Obligations expected to be
incurred upon or in connection with the filing of such Certificate, (iii) the interest rate (if
applicable), purchase price, discount points and other terms of any Related Mortgage Loans, and
(iv) the application, withdrawal or transfer of any moneys expected to be applied, withdrawn or
transferred upon or in connection with the filing of such Certificate:

(A) the amount of Mortgage Repayments and Prepayments reasonably
expected to be received by the Authority in each such Bond Y ear from Related Mortgage Loans,
together with Related Investment Revenues, Related Interest Rate Contract Revenues and other
moneys (including without limitation moneys in any special escrows established with the
Trustee) that are reasonably expected to be available to make Related Debt Service Payments
and to pay Related Program Expenses and to pay the Purchase Price of any such Adjustable Rate
Bonds subject to mandatory tender on any such tender date; and

(B) the Aggregate Debt Service for each such Bond Year on all such Bonds
and Auxiliary Obligations reasonably expected to be Outstanding, together with the Related
Program Expenses reasonably estimated for each such Bond Y ear;

and (b) showing that in each such Bond Year the aggregate of the amounts set forth in clause

(a)(A) of this definition exceeds the aggregate of the amounts set forth in clause (a)(B) of this

definition. Reference to a Cash Flow Statement with respect to a Series shall be taken to mean a
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Cash Flow Statement with respect to such Series and any Related Auxiliary Obligations and any
other Series and Related Auxiliary Obligations to which such Series has been linked for Cash
Flow Statement purposes.

“Class | Asset Requirement,” with respect to a Series of Bonds, shall have the meaning
set forth in the Related Series Indenture.

“Class | Auxiliary Obligations’” means Auxiliary Obligations which the Authority
designates as Class | Auxiliary Obligations in the Related Series Indenture.

“Class | Bonds’ means the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority Single Family
Mortgage Class | Bonds authorized by, and at any time Outstanding pursuant to, the Indenture.

“Class | Debt Service Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and
established by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Class | Obligations” means the Class | Bonds and the Class | Auxiliary Obligations and,
with respect to a Series of Bonds, the Related Class | Bonds and any Related Class | Auxiliary
Obligations.

“Class | Sinking Fund Installment” means the amount designated for any particular due
date in the Related Series Indenture for the retirement of Class | Bonds on an unconditional
basis, less any amount credited pursuant to Section 3.7 of this Master Indenture.

“Class | Speciad Redemption Account” means the Account so designated, which is
created and established in the Redemption Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Class Il Asset Requirement,” with respect to a Series of Bonds, shall have the meaning
set forth in the Related Series Indenture.

“Class Il Auxiliary Obligations’ means Auxiliary Obligations which the Authority
designates as Class || Auxiliary Obligations in the Related Series Indenture

“Class Il Bonds” means the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority Single Family
Mortgage Class || Bonds authorized by, and at any time Outstanding pursuant to, the Indenture.

“Class Il Debt Service Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and
established by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Class Il Obligations’ means the Class || Bonds and the Class Il Auxiliary Obligations
and, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the Related Class Il Bonds and any Related Class Il
Auxiliary Obligations.

“Class Il Sinking Fund Installment” means the amount designated for any particular due
date for the retirement of Class Il Bonds, as set forth in the Related Series Indenture, which
amount may be conditioned upon the transfer of sufficient moneys to the Class Il Debt Service
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Fund, plus all such amounts specified for any prior date or dates, to the extent such amounts have
not been paid or discharged, less any amounts credited pursuant to Section 3.7 of this Master
Indenture.

“Class Il Specia Redemption Account” means the Account so designated, which is
created and established in the Redemption Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Class 11 Asset Requirement,” with respect to a Series of Bonds, shall have the meaning
set forth in the Related Series Indenture.

“Class Il Auxiliary Obligations’ means Auxiliary Obligations which the Authority
designates as Class |11 Auxiliary Obligations in the Related Series Indenture

“Class |1l Bonds’ means the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority Single Family
Mortgage Class |11 Bonds authorized by, and at any time Outstanding pursuant to, the Indenture.

“Class Il Debt Service Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and
established by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Class |11 Obligations’ means the Class |11 Bonds and the Class I11 Auxiliary Obligations
and, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the Related Class |1l Bonds and any Related Class 11
Auxiliary Obligations.

“Class I Sinking Fund Installment” means the amount designated for any particular due
date for the retirement of Class Il Bonds, as set forth in the Related Series Indenture, which
amount may be conditioned upon the transfer of sufficient moneys to the Class |11 Debt Service
Fund, plus all such amounts specified for any prior date or dates, to the extent such amounts have
not been paid or discharged, less any amounts credited pursuant to Section 3.7 of this Master
Indenture.

“Class |1l Special Redemption Account” means the Account so designated, which is
created and established in the Redemption Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Class IV Asset Requirement,” with respect to a Series of Bonds, shall have the meaning
set forth in the Related Series Indenture.

“Class IV Auxiliary Obligations” means Auxiliary Obligations which the Authority
designates as Class IV Auxiliary Obligationsin the Related Series Indenture

“Class IV Bonds” means the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority Single Family
Mortgage Class |V Bonds authorized by, and at any time Outstanding pursuant to, the Indenture.

“Class IV Debt Service Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and
established by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.



“Class IV Sinking Fund Installment” means the amount designated for any particular due
date for the retirement of Class IV Bonds, as set forth in the Related Series Indenture, which
amount may be conditioned upon the transfer of sufficient moneys to the Class IV Debt Service
Fund, plus all such amounts specified for any prior date or dates, to the extent such amounts have
not been paid or discharged, less any amounts credited pursuant to Section 3.7 of this Master
Indenture.

“Class IV Obligations’ means the Class IV Bonds and the Class IV Auxiliary Obligations
and, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the Related Class IV Bonds and any Related Class 1V
Auxiliary Obligations.

“Class IV Special Redemption Account” means the Account so designated, which is
created and established in the Redemption Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, with respect to a Series,
to the date of initia issuance of such Series, and the regulations of the United States Treasury
Department promul gated thereunder.

“Compound Interest Bonds” means any Bond of a Series, tenor and maturity so
designated in the Related Series Indenture for which certain determinations hereunder are made
on the basis of Accreted Value rather than principal amount.

“Conventional Mortgage Loan” means a Mortgage Loan, other than an FHA Insured
Mortgage Loan, a VA Mortgage Loan or other Mortgage Loan insured or guaranteed by a
Governmental Insurer, which meets the requirements of Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, as
applicable.

“Corporate Trust Office” means, when used with respect to any Fiduciary, the corporate
trust office specified by such Fiduciary at which at any particular time, specified duties of such
Fiduciary with respect to the Indenture are being administered.

“Costs of Issuance” means the items of expense payable or reimbursable directly or
indirectly by the Authority and other costs incurred by the Authority, al related to the
authorization, sale and issuance of Bonds, the execution and delivery of Auxiliary Agreements
and the establishment of the Program, which costs and items of expense shall include, but not be
limited to, underwriters compensation, printing costs, costs of developing, reproducing, storing
and safekeeping documents and other information processing or storage of materials, equipment
and software related to the Bonds, filing and recording fees, travel expenses incurred by the
Authority in relation to such issuance of Bonds or for the Program, initial fees, charges and
expenses (including counsel’s fees and expenses) of the Authority, the Trustee, the Bond
Registrar and the Paying Agent, initial premiums with respect to insurance required by the
Indenture to be paid by the Authority or by the Trustee, legal fees and charges (including,
without limitation, the fees and expenses of Bond Counsel, the Authority’s disclosure counsel,
counsel to the underwriter and counsel to the Authority), professional consultants fees,
accountants fees, mortgagor counseling fees, costs of bond ratings, fees and charges for
execution, transportation and safekeeping of the Bonds, accrued interest paid in connection with
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the purchase of any Investment Securities with the proceeds of Bonds and any other costs,
charges and fees in connection with the foregoing.

“Cost of Issuance Account” means the Account so designated, which is created and
established within the Program Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Counsel’s Opinion” means an opinion signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys (who
may be counsel to the Authority or an attorney or firm of attorneys retained by the Authority in
other connections) licensed to practice in the state in which such attorney or firm of attorneys
maintains an office, selected from time to time by the Authority.

“Debt Service Payment” means, when used with respect to any Payment Date, the sum of
the (a) interest, if any, (b) Principal Installments, if any, and (c) Auxiliary Obligations, if any,
due and payable on such date with respect to the Bonds and Auxiliary Agreements referred to.

“Debt Service Reserve Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and
established by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement,” with respect to each Series of Bonds, shall
have the meaning set forth in the Related Series Indenture.

“Defeasance Securities” means any Investment Securities used to effect defeasance of
Bonds in accordance with Article X1l of this Master Indenture if upon such defeasance the
Bonds so defeased are rated in the highest rating category by each Rating Agency rating such
Bonds, and which are not subject to redemption by the issuer thereof prior to their maturity.

“Depository” means any bank, trust company, or savings and loan association (including
any Fiduciary) selected by the Authority and approved by the Trustee as a depository of moneys,
Mortgage Loans, MBS or Investment Securities held under the provisions of the Indenture, and
itS SUCCESSOr Or SUCCESSOr'S.

“Eligible Borrower” means a person or afamily qualifying as amortgagor for a Mortgage
Loan under determinations made by the Authority in accordance with the Act.

“Escrow Payment” means all payments made by or on behalf of the obligor of a
Mortgage Loan in order to obtain or maintain mortgage insurance or guaranty coverage of, and
fire and other hazard insurance with respect to, a Mortgage Loan, and any payments required to
be made with respect to such Mortgage Loan for taxes, other governmental charges and other
similar charges required to be escrowed under the Mortgage.

“Event of Default” means any of those events defined as Events of Default by Section 7.1
of this Master Indenture.

“Excess Earnings’ means, with respect to Mortgage Loans and MBS held in any
subaccount of the Acquisition Account or the Loan Recycling Account established in connection
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with a Series of Tax-exempt Bonds, the “excess earnings,” as defined in Treasury Regulations
81.148-10T, with respect thereto.

“Fannie Mag” means Fannie Mage, a corporation organized and existing under the Federal
National Mortgage Association Charter Act, 12 U.S.C., Section 1716 et seq., and its successors
and assigns.

“Fannie Mae Certificate” means a single pool, guaranteed mortgage, pass-through
certificate, bearing interest at the Pass-Through Rate, issued by Fannie Mae, guaranteed as to
timely payment of interest and principal by Fannie Mae and backed by Conventional Mortgage
Loans, which will mature not later than the date set forth in the applicable Series Indenture.

“Fannie Mae Certificate Purchase Price’” means 100% of the principal balance of the
applicable pool of Mortgage Loans on record at Fannie Mae on the first day of the month of
purchase, or such other percentage of such principal balance as may be reported by the Authority
to the Trustee upon the acquisition of the related Fannie Mae Certificate.

“Excess Earnings Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and established
by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“FHA” means the Federal Housing Administration and any agency or instrumentality of
the United States of America succeeding to the mortgage insurance functions thereof.

“FHA Insured Mortgage Loan” means a Mortgage Loan insured by FHA.

“Fiduciary” means the Trustee, the Bond Registrar, the Paying Agent or a Depository or
any or al of them, as may be appropriate.

“Fiduciary Expenses’ means the fees and expenses of Fiduciaries, including fees and
expenses of Fiduciaries' counsel, but not including Servicing Fees payable to such Persons.

“Fiscal Year” means a period beginning on January 1 in any year and ending December
31, of the same year or such other twelve month period as may be adopted by the Authority in
accordance with law.

“Freddie Mac” means the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or any successor
thereto.

“Freddie Mac Certificate” means a mortgage participation certificate issued by Freddie
Mac and representing an undivided interest in a pool of Conventional Mortgage Loans identified
by a particular aphanumeric number and CUSIP number, guaranteed as to timely payment of
principal and interest by Freddie Mac and bearing interest at the Pass-Through Rate, which will
mature not later than the date set forth in the applicable Series Indenture.

“Freddie Mac Certificate Purchase Price” means 100% of the principal balance of the
applicable pool of Mortgage Loans on record at Freddie Mac on the first day of the month of
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purchase, or such other percentage of such principal balance as may be reported by the Authority
to the Trustee upon the acquisition of the related Freddie Mac Certificate.

“Fund” or “Funds’ means one or more of the specia trust funds created and established
pursuant to this Master Indenture or a Series Indenture.

“General Obligation Bond” means a Bond, the payment of principal of and interest on
which is a General Obligation of the Authority.

“General Obligation Bond Default” means the event specified in Section 8.1 of this
Master Indenture.

“General Obligations” means Bonds or Auxiliary Obligations secured or additionally
secured, as provided in the Related Series Indenture, by a pledge of general revenues or moneys
of the Authority legally available therefor, subject only to agreements made or to be made with
owners of notes, bonds or other obligations pledging particular revenues or moneys for the
payment thereof and subject to the Authority’s right at any time to apply such revenues and
moneys to any lawful purpose.

“Ginnie Mag” means the Government National Mortgage Association, a wholly owned
corporate instrumentality of the United States within the Department of Housing and Urban
Development or any successor to its functions.

“Ginnie Mae Certificate” means a fully modified, mortgage backed security (which may
be issued under either the GNMA | Program or the GNMA 1l Program) bearing interest at the
Pass-Through Rate, issued by the Authority, registered in the name of the Trustee and guaranteed
as to timely payment of principal and interest by Ginnie Mae pursuant to Section 306(g) of Title
[l of the National Housing Act of 1934 and the regulations promulgated thereunder backed by
FHA Insured Mortgage Loans, VA Guaranteed Mortgage Loans or other Mortgage Loans
insured or guaranteed by an eligible Governmental Insurer, which will mature not later than the
date set forth in the applicable Series Indenture.

“Ginnie Mae Certificate Purchase Price” means 100% of the percentage of the principal
balance of the applicable pool of Mortgage Loans on record at Ginnie Mae on the first day of the
month of purchase, or such other percentage of such principal balance as may be by the
Authority to the Trustee upon the acquisition of the related Ginnie Mae Certificate.

“Governmental Insurer” means FHA, VA, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, the Rura Housing Service (formerly, the Rural Housing and Community
Development Service, the successor to the Farmers Home Administration), and any other
governmental agency which insures or guarantees mortgage loans that can be backed by a Ginnie
Mae Certificate.

“Indenture” means this Master Indenture authorized, executed and issued by an
Authorized Officer and any amendments or supplements made in accordance with its terms,
including al Series Indentures.
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“Interest Payment Date” means, for each Bond, any date upon which interest on such
Bond is due and payable in accordance with the Related Series Indenture.

“Interest Rate Contract” means an interest rate exchange or swap contract, a cash flow
exchange or swap contract, any derivative of such contracts, including forward swaps and
options to enter into swaps, and interest rate floors, caps or collars, entered into between the
Authority and an Interest Rate Contract Provider.

“Interest Rate Contract Provider” means a Person that is a party to an Interest Rate
Contract with the Authority with respect to specified Bonds and who satisfies the applicable
requirements of the Interest Rate Exchange Agreements Act, being Article 59.3, Title 11 of
Colorado Revised Statutes, and whose credit rating by each nationally recognized Rating Agency
then rating the Class | Bonds is sufficiently high to maintain the then current rating on such
Bonds by such Rating Agency or the equivalent of such rating by virtue of guarantees or
insurance arrangements.

“Interest Rate Contract Revenues’ means all payments and receipts received by the
Authority under an Interest Rate Contract.

“Interest Reserve Account” means the Account so designated, which is created and
established within the Debt Service Reserve Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Investment Provider” means any commercial bank or trust company, bank holding
company, investment company or other entity (which may include the Trustee, the Bond
Registrar or the Paying Agent), whose credit rating (or the equivalent of such rating by virtue of
guarantees or insurance arrangements) by each nationally recognized Rating Agency then rating
the Class | Bonds is sufficiently high to maintain the then current rating on such Bonds by such
Rating Agency or is otherwise acceptable to each such Rating Agency in order to maintain the
then current rating on such Bonds by such Rating Agency, which Investment Providers shall be
approved by the Authority for the purpose of providing investment agreements.

“Investment Revenues’ means amounts earned on investments (other than Mortgage
Loans and MBYS) credited to any Fund or Account pursuant to the Indenture (including gains
upon the sale or disposition of such investments), except the Rebate Requirement and any Excess
Earnings.

“Investment Securities” means and includes any of the following securities, if and to the
extent the same are at the time legal for investment of the Authority’ s funds:

@ Direct, general obligations, or obligations the timely payment of
principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of
America;

(b) Obligations, debentures, notes, collateralized mortgage obligations,
mortgage backed securities or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any
of the following: Federa Farm Credit Banks, Federd Home Loan Bank System;
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Export-Import Bank of the United States, Federal Land Banks; Fannie Mae (excluding
“interest only” mortgage strip securities, and excluding other mortgage strip securities
which are valued greater than par); Farmers Home Administration; Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation (including participation certificates only if they guarantee timely
payment of principal and interest); Government National Mortgage Association
(excluding “interest only” mortgage strip securities, and excluding other mortgage strip
securities which are valued greater than par); Federal Financing Bank; or Federal
Housing Administration; or any other agency or instrumentality of the United States of
America (created by an Act of Congress) substantially similar to the foregoing in its legal
relationship to the United States of America;

(c) Repurchase agreements, collateralized by Investment Securities
described in clause (@) or clause (b) of this definition, with any institution, any registered
broker/dealer subject to the Securities Investors Protection Corporation jurisdiction or
any commercia bank rated by each Rating Agency rating the Class | Bonds sufficiently
high to maintain the then current rating on such Bonds by such Rating Agency, and
collateralized in such manner to meet al requirements for collateralized repurchase
agreements of each Rating Agency rating the Class | Bonds in order to maintain the then
current rating on such Bonds by such Rating Agency;

(d) Genera obligations or revenue obligations (including bonds, notes
or participation certificates) of, or “private activity bonds’ (within the meaning of the
Code) issued by any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision
thereof, or any agency or instrumentality of any state of the United States of America or
any political subdivision thereof, which obligations are rated by each Rating Agency then
rating the Class | Bonds sufficiently high to maintain the then current rating on such
Bonds by such Rating Agency, or any money market or short term investment fund
investing substantially in or consisting substantially of and secured by obligations
described above in this item (d), which fund is rated by each Rating Agency then rating
the Class | Bonds sufficiently high to maintain the then current rating on such Bonds by
such Rating Agency and which fund, if the income from such investment is intended to
be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, is included in the
definition of “tax-exempt bond” set forth in Treasury Regulation 8§ 1.150-1(b);

(e Genera obligations of Investment Providers under investment
agreements approved in a Series Indenture or other investment agreements having
substantially similar terms;

()] Certificates of deposit, interest-bearing time deposits, or other
similar banking arrangements with a bank or banks (i) rated by each Rating Agency
rating the Class | Bonds sufficiently high to maintain the then current rating on such
Bonds by such Rating Agency or (ii) collateralized in such manner to meet all
requirements for collateralized agreements of each Rating Agency rating the Class |
Bonds in order to maintain the then current rating on such Bonds by such Rating Agency;
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(9 Commercia paper rated by each Rating Agency rating the Class |
Bonds sufficiently high to maintain the then current rating on such Bonds by such Rating
Agency;

(h) Shares in the statutory law trust known as the Colorado Loca
Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST), created pursuant to part 7 of article 75
of title 24, Colorado Revised Statutes; and

(1) Units of a money market fund or a money market mutual fund
which has a rating from each Rating Agency then rating the Class | Bonds sufficiently
high to maintain the then current rating on such Bonds by such Rating Agency;

provided, that it is expressly understood that the definition of Investment Securities shall be, and
be deemed to be, expanded, or new definitions and related provisions shall be added to the
Indenture, thus permitting investments with different characteristics from those listed above
which the Authority deems from time to time to be in the interest of the Authority to include as
Investment Securities if at the time of inclusion the Trustee shall have received written
confirmation from the Rating Agencies that such inclusion will not, in and of itself, impair, or
cause any of the Bonds to fail to retain, the then existing rating assigned to them by the Rating
Agencies.

“Liquidity Facility” means a letter of credit, standby bond purchase agreement, security
bond, reimbursement agreement or other agreement between the Authority and a Liquidity
Facility Provider with respect to specified Bonds issued under this Master Indenture.

“Liquidity Facility Provider” means a Person that is a party to a Liquidity Facility with
the Authority with respect to specified Bonds and whose credit rating by each nationally
recognized Rating Agency then rating the Class | Bonds is sufficiently high to maintain the then
current rating on such Bonds by such Rating Agency or the equivalent of such rating by virtue of
guarantees or insurance arrangements.

“Loan Recycling Account” means the Account so designated, which is created and
established in the Program Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“MBS’ means, collectively, the Ginnie Mae Certificates, the Fannie Mae Certificates and
the Freddie Mac Certificates. In the event that only a portion of or interest in an MBS is
acquired under the Indenture, references herein to such MBS shall be interpreted and applied to
relate to such portion or interest.

“Mortgage” means a mortgage, deed of trust or other instrument constituting a valid lien
on real property in the State and improvements constructed or to be constructed thereon or on a
leasehold under a lease having a remaining term, at the time such instrument is acquired by the
Authority, of not less than the term for repayment of the Mortgage Loan secured by such
instrument.
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“Mortgage Lender” means a “lender” as defined in the Act and which has been approved
by the Authority pursuant to the Rules and Regulations.

“Mortgage Loan” means a permanent loan secured by a Mortgage for the purchase or
rehabilitation of Residential Housing made to a Borrower either by the Authority or by an
originating Mortgage Lender which is purchased by the Authority pursuant to a Mortgage
Purchase Agreement and which loan satisfies the requirements of Section 6.7 of this Master
Indenture. In the event that only a portion of or interest in a Mortgage Loan is purchased under
the Indenture, references herein to such Mortgage Loan shall be interpreted and applied to relate
to such portion or interest.

“Mortgage Purchase Agreement” means a written agreement between a Mortgage Lender
and the Authority providing for the purchase of a Mortgage Loan by the Authority, including any
related invitations to Lenders and commitment agreements, and any documents incorporated by
reference therein.

“Mortgage Repayments’ means, with respect to any Mortgage Loan or the related MBS,
the amounts received by or for the account of the Authority as scheduled payments of principal
of and interest (if any) on such Mortgage Loan or related MBS by or on behalf of the Borrower
to or for the account of the Authority and does not include Prepayments, Servicing Fees or
Escrow Payments.

“Mortgage Revenues’ means all Revenues other than Investment Revenues and Interest
Rate Contract Revenues.

“Notice Parties’ means the Authority, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and the Paying
Agent.

“Outstanding” means, when used with respect to al Bonds as of any date, all Bonds
theretofore authenticated and delivered under the Indenture except:

@ any Bond cancelled or delivered to the Bond Registrar for
cancellation on or before such date;

(b) any Bond (or any portion thereof) (i) for the payment or
redemption of which there shall be held in trust under the Indenture and set aside for such
payment or redemption, moneys and/or Defeasance Securities maturing or redeemable at
the option of the holder thereof not later than such maturity or redemption date which,
together with income to be earned on such Defeasance Securities prior to such maturity
or redemption date, will be sufficient to pay the principal or Redemption Price thereof, as
the case may be, together with interest thereon to the date of maturity or redemption, and
(ii) in the case of any such Bond (or any portion thereof) to be redeemed prior to
maturity, notice of the redemption of which shall have been given in accordance with the
Indenture or provided for in amanner satisfactory to the Bond Registrar;
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(c) any Bond in lieu of or in exchange for which another Bond shall
have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to the Indenture; and

(d) any Bond deemed to have been paid as provided in Section 12.2 of
this Master Indenture;

and, with respect to any Auxiliary Obligations, means Auxiliary Obligations which have not
been paid or otherwise satisfied.

“Participant” means a broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution from time to time
for which the Securities Depository effects book-entry transfers and pledges of securities
deposited with the Securities Depository.

“Pass-Through Rate” means the rate of interest on an MBS reported by the Authority to
the Trustee upon the acquisition of such MBS, equal to the rate of interest on the Mortgage
Loans underlying such MBS less authorized Servicing Fees (including the guarantee fee charged
by Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, as applicable).

“Paying Agent” means the bank, trust company or national banking association,
appointed as Paying Agent under Section 9.1 of this Master Indenture and having the duties,
responsibilities and rights provided for in the Indenture and its successor or successors, and any
other corporation or association at any time substituted in its place as Paying Agent pursuant to
the Indenture.

“Payment Date” means for each Bond, each date on which interest or a Principal
Installment or both are payable on such Bond; and for each Auxiliary Obligation, each date on
which an amount is payable with respect to such Auxiliary Obligation, and unless limited, means
all such dates.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust or unincorporated
organization or a government or any agency, instrumentality, program, account, fund, political
subdivision or corporation thereof.

“Prepayment” means any moneys received or recovered by or for the account of the
Authority from any unscheduled payment of or with respect to principal (including any penalty,
fee, premium or other additional charge for prepayment of principal which may be provided by
the terms of a Mortgage Loan or MBS, but excluding any Servicing Fees with respect to the
collection of such moneys) on any Mortgage Loan or MBS prior to the scheduled payments of
principal called for by such Mortgage Loan or MBS, whether (a) by voluntary prepayment made
by the Borrower or (b) as a consequence of the damage, destruction or condemnation of the
mortgaged premises or any part thereof or (c) by the sale, assignment, endorsement or other
disposition of such Mortgage Loan or MBS by the Authority or (d) in the event of a default
thereon by the Borrower, by the acceleration, sale, assignment, endorsement or other disposition
of such Mortgage Loan or MBS by the Authority or by any other proceedings taken by the
Authority.
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“Principal Installment” means, as of any date of calculation, and for any Payment Date,
(a) the principal amount or Accreted Value of al Bonds due and payable on such date, plus (b)
any Class|, Class 1, Class I, and Class IV Sinking Fund Installments due and payable on such
date.

“Program” means the Authority’s Single Family Mortgage Program pursuant to which
the Authority has determined to purchase Mortgage Loans in accordance with the Act, the Rules
and Regulations and the Indenture.

“Program Expenses’ means all the Authority’s expenses of administering the Program
under the Indenture and the Act and shal include without limiting the generality of the
foregoing; salaries, supplies, utilities, labor, materials, office rent, maintenance, furnishings,
equipment, machinery and apparatus, including information processing equipment; software,
insurance premiums, credit enhancement fees, legal, accounting, management, consulting and
banking services and expenses; Fiduciary Expenses; remarketing fees; Costs of Issuance not paid
from proceeds of Bonds; and payments to pension, retirement, health and hospitalization funds;
and any other expenses required or permitted to be paid by the Authority.

“Program Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and established by
Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Qualified Mortgage Loan Mortgage Backed Securities’ means Investment Securities
which constitute collateralized mortgage obligations issued by Fannie Mae, the Government
National Mortgage Association or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, the underlying
mortgages of which would constitute Mortgage Loans for purposes of the Indenture if acquired
by the Trustee from money in the Acquisition Account.

“Qualified Surety Bond” means any surety bond, letter of credit, insurance policy or
other instrument which has liquidity features equivalent to aletter of credit, deposited in the Debt
Service Reserve Fund in lieu of or in partial substitution for moneys on deposit therein, which
shall have no adverse impact on the rating assigned to any Bonds by any Rating Agency.

“Rating Agency” means, at any particular time, any nationally recognized credit rating
service designated by the Authority, if and to the extent such service has at the time one or more
outstanding ratings of Bonds. The Authority shall at all times have designated at least one such
service as a Rating Agency hereunder.

“Rebate Fund” means the Account so designated, which is created and established in the
Revenue Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Rebate Requirement” means the amount of arbitrage profits earned from the investment
of gross proceeds of Tax-exempt Bonds in nonpurpose investments described in Section
148(f)(2) of the Code and defined as “Rebate Amount” in Section 1.148-3 of the Treasury
Regulations, which is payable to the United States at the times and in the amounts specified in
such provisions.
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“Record Date,” means, except as otherwise provided in a Series Indenture, with respect to
each Payment Date, with respect to Bonds which are not Adjustable Rate Bonds, the Bond
Registrar's close of business on the fifteenth day of the month immediately preceding such
Payment Date or, if such date is not a Business Day, the next preceding day which is a Business
Day and with respect to Adjustable Rate Bonds, the Bond Registrar’s close of business on the
Business Day immediately preceding such Payment Date; and, in the case of each redemption,
such Record Date as shall be specified by the Bond Registrar in the notice of redemption,
provided that such Record Date shall not be less than fifteen (15) calendar days before the
transmission of such notice of redemption.

“Redemption Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and established by
Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Redemption Price’” means, when used with respect to a Bond or portion thereof to be
redeemed, the principal amount or Accreted Value of such Bond or such portion thereof plus the
applicable premium, if any, payable upon redemption thereof as determined by the Series
Indenture authorizing the Series of Bonds.

“Refunding Bonds” means Bonds authenticated and delivered pursuant to Section 2.3 of
this Master Indenture.

“Related” (whether capitalized or not) means, with respect to any particular Bond, Class,
Series, Series Indenture, Supplemental Indenture, Cash Flow Statement, Fund, Account,
Mortgage Loan (or portion thereof), Auxiliary Agreement, MBS (or portion thereof), moneys,
Investment Securities, Mortgage Repayment or Prepayment, having been created in connection
with the issuance of, or having been derived from the proceeds of, or having been reallocated to,
or concerning, the same Series, as the case may be.

“Residential Housing” or “Residence” means a single-family, owner-occupied dwelling
located within the State that qualifies for financing by the Authority within the meaning of the
Act, the Rules and Regulations, the Code and related regulations.

“Revenue Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and established by
Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Revenues’ means (a) al Mortgage Repayments, Prepayments and, except insofar as
such payments may constitute Servicing Fees, any penalty payments on account of overdue
Mortgage Repayments, (b) Investment Revenues, (c) Interest Rate Contract Revenues and (d) all
other payments and receipts received by the Authority with respect to Mortgage Loans and MBS,
but shall not include (i) Escrow Payments, (ii) Servicing Fees, unless such fees are specifically
pledged to the Trustee, (iii) any commitment, reservation, extension, or application fees charged
by the Authority in connection with a Mortgage Loan or Mortgage Purchase Agreement, (iv) any
commitment, reservation, extension or application fees charged by a Mortgage Lender in
connection with a Mortgage Loan or (v) accrued interest received in connection with the
purchase of any Investment Securities.
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“Rules and Regulations’” means the Authority’s Single Family Mortgage Program Rules
and Regulations adopted by the Authority pursuant to the Act, as the same may be amended and
supplemented from time to time.

"Second Mortgage" means a Mortgage constituting a second lien on real property.
"Second Mortgage Loan" means a Mortgage Loan secured by a Second Mortgage.

“Securities Depository” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York,
and its successors and assigns, or any additional or other securities depository designated in a
Series Indenture, or (i) if the then Securities Depository resigns from its functions as depository
of the Bonds, or (ii) if the Authority discontinues use of the Securities Depository pursuant to
Section 2.17 of this Master Indenture, then any other securities depository which agrees to follow
the procedures required to be followed by a securities depository in connection with the Bonds
and which is selected by the Authority with the consent of the Trustee.

“Serial Bonds,” with respect to a Series of Bonds, shall have the meaning set forth in the
Related Series Indenture.

“Series’” means and refers to al of the Bonds designated as such in the Related Series
Indenture and authenticated and delivered on origina issuance in a simultaneous transaction,
regardless of variations in Class, dated date, maturity, interest rate or other provisions, and any
Bond thereafter delivered in lieu of or substitution for any of such Bonds pursuant to this Master
Indenture and the Related Series Indenture.

“Series Indenture” means a Supplemental Indenture authorizing a Series of Bonds and
delivered pursuant to Section 10.1 of this Master Indenture.

“Servicer” means a state-chartered bank or national banking association, state or federa
savings and loan association or mortgage banking or other financia institution which has been
approved by the Authority as experienced and qualified to service Mortgage Loans, and any
successor thereto.

“Servicing Agreement” means a written agreement between the Authority and a Servicer
(other than the Authority) providing for the servicing of Mortgage Loans on behalf of the
Authority.

“Servicing Fees’ means (a) any fees paid to or retained by a Servicer in connection with
the servicing obligations undertaken by the Servicer in accordance with the Related Servicing
Agreement and (b) any fees and ancillary income retained by or expenses reimbursed to the
Authority with respect to Mortgage L oans serviced by the Authority.

“Short Term Bond Account” means the Account so designated, which is created and
established in the Program Fund by Section 5.1 of this Master Indenture.

“State” means the State of Colorado.
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“Supplemental Indenture” means any supplemental indenture (including a Series
Indenture) approved by the Authority in accordance with Article X of this Master Indenture
amending or supplementing the Indenture.

“Targeted Area’ means a“targeted area” within the meaning of Section 143 of the Code.

“Targeted Area Residence’” means a “targeted area residence” within the meaning of
Section 143 of the Code.

“Tax-exempt Bonds’ means Bonds the interest on which is intended to be excluded from
gross income of the owner thereof for federal income tax purposes.

“Term Bonds’ means Bonds for which Class I, Class I, Class Il or Class IV Sinking
Fund Installments have been established as provided in the Related Series Indenture.

“Trust Estate” means the property, rights, moneys, securities and other amounts pledged
and assigned to the Trustee pursuant to the Granting Clauses of this Master Indenture.

“Trustee” means the bank, trust company or national banking association, appointed as
trustee under Section 9.1 of this Master Indenture and having the duties, responsibilities and
rights provided for in the Indenture and its successor or successors, and any other corporation or
association at any time substituted in its place as Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.

“Unrelated” (whether capitalized or not) means not “Related,” within the meaning of that
term as defined in this Section.

“VA” means the Veterans Administration, an agency of the United States, or any
successors to its functions.

“VA Mortgage Loan” means a Mortgage Loan guaranteed by VA.
Section 1.2.  Construction. In the Indenture, unless the context otherwise requires:

@ Words importing the singular number shall mean and include the
plural number and vice versa.

(b) Any Fiduciary shall be deemed to have received delivery of and to
hold an Investment Security in which moneys are invested pursuant to the provisions of
the Indenture, even though such Investment Security is evidenced only by a book entry or
similar record of investment.

(c) References in the Indenture to particular sections of the Code, the
Act or any other legislation shall be deemed to refer also to any successor sections thereto
or other redesignations for codification purposes.

(d) The terms “receipt,” “received,” “recovery,” “recovered” and any
similar terms, when used in the Indenture with respect to moneys or payments due the
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Authority, shall be deemed to refer to the passage of physical possession and control of
such moneys and payments to the Authority, the Trustee, or the Paying Agent on its
behalf.

Section 1.3.  Indenture Constitutes a Contract; Obligation of Indenture and Bonds. In
consideration of the purchase and acceptance of any and all of the Bonds authorized to be issued
under the Indenture by those who shall own the same from time to time and in consideration for
the execution and delivery of Auxiliary Agreements by Auxiliary Agreement Providers. the
Indenture shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract among the Authority, the Trustee,
the Bond Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Auxiliary Agreement Providers and the Owners from
time to time of the Bonds; the pledge of certain Funds, Accounts, Revenues and other moneys,
rights and interests made in the Indenture and the covenants and agreements set forth in the
Indenture to be performed by and on behalf of the Authority shall be for the equal and ratable
benefit, protection and security of the Owners of any and al of the Bonds and Auxiliary
Agreement Providers, al of which regardless of the time or times of their issue or maturity shall
be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any of such Bonds or Auxiliary
Obligations over any other thereof, subject to the provisions respecting the priority of certain
Classes of Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations over other Classes of Bonds and Auxiliary
Obligations as set forth in Section 1.4 of this Master Indenture, and except as expressly provided
in or permitted by the Indenture. Unless otherwise specified in a Series Indenture (in which the
Authority may designate one or more Classes of Related Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations as
Genera Obligations) the Bonds and Auxiliary Obligations shall be special limited obligations of
the Authority payable solely from the moneys, rights and interest pledged therefor in this Master
Indenture. Except as provided herein and in Related Series Indentures with respect to General
Obligations, the Authority shall not be required to advance for any purpose of the Indenture any
moneys derived from any source other than the Revenues and other assets pledged under the
Indenture. Nevertheless, the Authority may, but shall not be required to, advance for such
purpose any moneys of the Authority which may be available for such purpose. Neither the
Class | Obligations, the Class Il Obligations, the Class Il Obligations nor the Class IV
Obligations shall be in any way a debt or liability or obligation of the State or any political
subdivision thereof (other than the Authority) nor constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability
of the State or of any such political subdivision (other than the Authority with respect to General
Obligation Bonds) or be or constitute a pledge of the faith and credit of the State or of any such
political subdivision.

Section 1.4. Pledge Effected by Indenture. The pledge and lien of the Indenture is
created and established in the following order of priority: first, to secure the payment of the
principa of and interest on the Class | Obligations in accordance with the terms and the
provisions of the Indenture, second, to secure the payment of the principa of and interest on the
Class Il Obligations in accordance with the terms and the provisions of the Indenture, third, to
secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the Class Il Obligations in accordance
with the terms and the provisions of the Indenture and fourth, to secure the payment of the
principa of and interest on the Class IV Obligations in accordance with the terms and provisions
of the Indenture; provided, however, that moneys and investments held in an Authority Payment
Account are pledged solely for the payment of Principa Installments, Redemption Price of,
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interest on and other amounts payable with respect to General Obligations of the Related Series
and Class with respect to which such account was created and are not pledged to pay principal,
Redemption Price of, interest on and other amounts payable with respect to any other Bonds or
Auxiliary Obligations and, provided, further, that moneys and securities held in a subaccount of
the Short Term Bond Account may be pledged by the Related Series Indenture solely, or as a
first priority, for the payment of the Related Series of Bonds or any portion thereof as set forth in
such Series Indenture.

(End of Article)
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ARTICLE 11

AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS

Section 2.1.  Authorization of Bonds. Upon satisfaction of the conditions contained in
Section 2.2 or Section 2.3 of this Master Indenture, Bonds may be issued hereunder, without
limitation as to amount except as may be provided herein or by law, from time to time, in one or
more Series pursuant to a Series Indenture or Indentures; provided, however, that such Bonds
may be issued only to provide funds to: (@) make deposits in amounts, if any, required or
authorized by the Series Indenture to be paid into Funds or Accounts established herein or in the
Series Indenture and (b) refund Bonds issued hereunder or other bonds or obligations of the
Authority. Auxiliary Agreements may only be executed and delivered by the Authority in
connection with the issuance and delivery of a Series of Bonds hereunder or in connection with
the renewal, substitution or extension of an existing Auxiliary Agreement which was so
delivered.

Except as otherwise stated in the Related Series Indenture, the Bonds shall be designated
as “Single Family Mortgage [Bonds] [Notes],” and in addition to the name “Single Family
Mortgage [Bonds] [Notes]” (inserting identification of the particular Class and of the particular
Series, including by year of issue and by Roman number and/or a phabetic and/or other reference
and inserting reference to “Taxable,” as applicable). In addition, each Series shall include such
further appropriate particular designation, added to or incorporated in such title, as the Authority
may determine. Each Bond shall bear upon its face the designation so determined for the Series
to which it belongs.

Section 2.2.  Conditions Precedent to Delivery of Bonds. The Bonds shall be executed
by the Authority for issuance and delivery to the Trustee and thereupon shall be authenticated by
the Trustee and delivered to the Authority upon its order, but only upon receipt by the Trustee of
the following:

@ An origina executed copy of the Series Indenture authorizing such
Bonds, which Series Indenture shall specify:

(1) the purpose or purposes for which such Series of Bonds is
being issued which shall be one or more of the purposes listed in Section 2.1
hereof;

(i)  the Series and Class designation or designations of such
Bonds, the date or dates, and the maturity date or dates, of such Bonds, each
of which maturity dates shall fall upon an Interest Payment Date;

(iii)  the amount of Class | Bonds, Class Il Bonds, Class IlI
Bonds and Class IV Bonds, respectively, and the amount of each maturity of
such Bonds;
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(iv)  the interest rate or rates of such Bonds or the manner of
determining such rate or rates and the Interest Payment Dates therefor, if any;

(v) the denomination of, and the manner of dating and
numbering such Bonds;

(vi)  the Record Dates, the place or places of payment of the
principal or Redemption Price or Prices, if any, and the manner of payment of
interest on, such Bonds;

(vii) the Redemption Price or Prices, if any, of and, subject to
the provisions of Article I11, the redemption order and terms for such Bonds;

(viii) the amount and due date of each Sinking Fund Payment, if
any, for such Bonds of like Class, tenor and maturity, but the due date of each
such Sinking Fund Payment shall fall upon an Interest Payment Date;

(ix)  the amounts to be deposited in the Funds and Accounts
created and established by this Master Indenture and the Series Indenture
authorizing such Bonds,

x) the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement applicable to
such Series of Bonds and the timing and method of funding such requirement;

(xi)  the amount available for Costs of Issuance with respect to
such Bonds;

(xii) limitations on Program Expenses with respect to such
Bonds,

(xiii) any limitations or requirements with respect to Mortgage
Loan interest rates, Mortgage Loan purchase prices and mortgage insurance;

(xiv) provisions relating to any Auxiliary Agreements, including
the extent to which any Related Auxiliary Obligations are Class | Obligations,
Class Il Obligations, Class Il Obligations or Class IV Obligations and
including provisions relating to the renewal, substitution and extension of any
such Auxiliary Agreements, and the identity of the Auxiliary Agreement
Providers;

(xv)  whether and the extent to which any particular Classes of
such Bonds or Auxiliary Obligations are to be Genera Obligations;

(xvi) if so determined by the Authority, provisions for the sale
and/or tender of such Bonds; and
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(xvii) any other provisions deemed advisable by the Authority
that are either (A) not in conflict with the provisions hereof or (B) necessary,
in the opinion of Bond Counsel, for such Bonds to be Tax-exempt Bonds;

(b) A written order as to the delivery of such Bonds, signed by an
Authorized Officer;

(© A certificate of an Authorized Officer stating that the Authority is
not in default in the performance of any of the covenants, conditions, agreements or
provisions contained in the Indenture;

(d) A Cash Flow Statement with respect to such Series of Bonds (and
any other Series to which it may be linked for Cash Flow Statement purposes) taking into
account the proposed issuance of such Bonds, the application of the proceeds thereof and
the execution and delivery of Related Auxiliary Agreements, if any; and

(e Such further documents and moneys, including investment
agreements, as are required by the provisions of the Related Series Indenture.

Section 2.3.  Conditions Precedent to Delivery of Refunding Bonds.

@ All Refunding Bonds shall be executed by the Authority for
issuance and delivered to the Trustee and thereupon shall be authenticated by the Trustee
and delivered to the Authority or upon its order, but only upon the receipt by the Trustee
of:

() The documents and moneys, if any, referred to in Section
2.2 of this Master Indenture;

(i) Irrevocable instructions to the Trustee to give due notice of
the payment or redemption of all the bonds or other obligations to be refunded
and the payment or redemption date or dates, if any, upon which such bonds
or other obligations are to be paid or redeemed,

(iii)  If the bonds or other obligations to be refunded are to be
redeemed after the next succeeding forty-five days, irrevocable instructions to
the Trustee to transmit notice of redemption of such bonds or other obligations
on a specified date prior to their redemption date;

(iv) If the obligations to be refunded are Bonds, either (A)
moneys (which may include all or a portion of the proceeds of the Refunding
Bonds to be issued) in an amount sufficient to effect payment or redemption at
the applicable redemption price of the bonds to be refunded, together with
accrued interest on such bonds to the due date or redemption date, or (B)
Defeasance Securities, the principal of and interest on which when due
(without reinvestment thereof), together with the moneys (which may include
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al or a portion of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds to be issued), if any,
contemporaneously deposited with the trustee or paying agent or escrow agent
for the bonds to be refunded will be sufficient to pay when due the applicable
principa or redemption price of the bonds to be refunded, together with
accrued interest on such bonds to the redemption date or redemption dates or
date of maturity thereof, which moneys or Defeasance Securities shall be held
by the trustee or paying agent or escrow agent for the bonds to be refunded in
a separate account irrevocably in trust for and assigned to the owners of the
bonds to be refunded; and

(v) Such further documents and moneys as are required by the
provisions of the Related Series Indenture.

(b) Neither Defeasance Securities nor moneys deposited with the
trustee or paying agent or escrow agent for the bonds to be refunded pursuant to
paragraph (a)(iv) of this Section nor principa or interest payments on any such
Defeasance Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than the payment
of the applicable principa or redemption price of the bonds to be refunded, together with
accrued interest on such bonds to the redemption date, and any cash received from such
principal or interest payments, if not needed for such purpose, may be applied to the
payment of any obligation issued to provide funds for the acquisition of such Defeasance
Securities, but otherwise shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in such Defeasance
Securities as are described in clause (B) of said paragraph maturing at times and in
amounts sufficient to pay when due the principal or applicable redemption price of such
bonds, together with such accrued interest.

Section 2.4. Ratings. Notwithstanding any other provision of Sections 2.2 and 2.3 of
this Master Indenture, so long as there are Outstanding Bonds rated by a Rating Agency, the
Authority will not issue any additional Bonds (including Bonds issued or to be issued on a
forward purchase basis) if such issuance would result in alowering, suspension or withdrawal of
the ratings then applicable to any Bonds.

Section 2.5. Rating Information. In order to facilitate ratings or the confirmation or
maintenance of ratings, the Authority agrees to provide each Rating Agency with whatever
information it reasonably requests on a timely basis, including, but not limited to, notice of
appointment of new Trustees, the substitution of providers of investment agreements, the
termination, expiration, renewal, substitution or extension of Auxiliary Agreements and Related
Auxiliary Obligations, the amendment or supplement of the Indenture and the delivery of
Supplemental Indentures. If the Trustee draws upon the Debt Service Reserve Fund to pay
Principal Installments or interest on the Bonds or if the amount in a subaccount of the Debt
Service Reserve Fund is reduced below the Related Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement, the
Authority will immediately notify each Rating Agency of such fact if the Bonds are then rated by
such Rating Agency.
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Section 2.6. Form of Bonds and Certificate of Authentication. The forms of Bonds and
the Bond Registrar’'s Certificate of Authentication shall be substantially as set forth in each
Series Indenture.

Section2.7. Legends. The Bonds may contain or have endorsed thereon such
provisions, specifications and descriptive words not inconsistent with the provisions of the
Indenture as may be necessary or desirable and as may be determined by the Authority prior to
their authentication and delivery.

Section 2.8.  Execution and Authentication.

@ The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the Authority by the
manual or facsimile signature of an Authorized Officer and its corporate seal (or a
facsimile thereof) shall be impressed, imprinted, engraved or otherwise reproduced
thereon and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any other
Authorized Officer, other than the officer executing the Bonds. In case any one or more
of the officers who shall have signed or sealed any of the Bonds shall cease to be such
officer before the Bonds so signed and sealed shall have been delivered by the Trustee,
such Bonds may, nevertheless, be delivered as herein provided and may be issued as if
the persons who signed or sealed such Bonds had not ceased to hold such offices. Any
Bond may be signed and sealed on behalf of the Authority by such persons as at the time
of the execution of such Bonds shall be duly authorized or hold the proper offices in the
Authority athough at the date borne by the Bonds such persons may not have been so
authorized or have held such offices.

(b) No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or shall be
entitled to any right or benefit under the Indenture unless there shall be endorsed on such
Bond a certificate of authentication in the form set forth in the Related Series Indenture,
duly executed by the Bond Registrar by the manual signature of an authorized officer
thereof and setting forth the date of authentication, and such certificate of the Bond
Registrar upon any Bond executed on behalf of the Authority shall be conclusive
evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly issued under the Indenture and that
the Owner thereof is entitled to the benefits of the Indenture.

Section 2.9. Interchangeability of Bonds. All Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the
Corporate Trust Office of the Bond Registrar with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to
the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered Owner or his duly authorized attorney, may
be exchanged, at the option of the registered Owner thereof, for an equal aggregate principal
amount of Bonds of the same interest rate, Series, Class, tenor and maturity of any other
authorized denominations.

Section 2.10. Negotiability, Transfer and Registry. All the Bonds issued under the
Indenture shall be negotiable, subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in
the Indenture and in the Bonds. So long as any of the Bonds shall remain Outstanding, the
Authority shall maintain and keep, at the Corporate Trust Office of the Bond Registrar, records
for the registration and transfer of Bonds, and, upon presentation thereof for such purpose at such
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Corporate Trust Office, the Authority shall register or cause to be registered therein, and permit
to be transferred thereon, under such reasonable regulations as it or the Bond Registrar may
prescribe, any Bond. Aslong as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, the Authority shall make
all necessary provisions to permit, the exchange of Bonds at the Corporate Trust Office of the
Bond Registrar.

Section 2.11. Transfer and Payment of Bonds.

@ Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the registration records
of the Bond Registrar, by the Owner thereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized
in writing, upon surrender thereof at the Corporate Trust Office of the Bond Registrar
together with a written instrument of transfer, satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly
executed by the registered Owner or his duly authorized attorney. Upon surrender for
transfer of any Bond, the Authority shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall
authenticate, specify the date of authentication and deliver, in the name of the transferee,
one or more new Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount, Series, Class, tenor,
maturity and rate of interest as the surrendered Bond.

(b) The Authority, the Trustee, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar
and any remarketing agent appointed pursuant to a Series Indenture may treat the
registered Owner of any Bond as the absolute owner thereof, whether such Bond shall be
overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal,
Redemption Price of and interest on such Bond and for al other purposes whatsoever,
and payment of the principal, Redemption Price of and interest on any such Bond shall be
made only to, or upon the order of, such registered Owner. All such payments to such
registered Owner shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability of the
Authority upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the
Authority, the Trustee, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar nor any such remarketing
agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Section 2.12. Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers. All Bonds
surrendered in any exchanges or transfers shall be cancelled forthwith by the Bond Registrar.
For every such exchange or transfer of Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, the Authority or
the Bond Registrar shall make a charge sufficient to reimburse it or them for their reasonable
fees and expenses in connection with such exchange or transfer and any tax, fee or other
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or
sums shall be paid by the Owner requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to
the exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer. Except for costs incurred in
connection with theinitial delivery of Bonds, the Authority or the Bond Registrar may charge for
the cogt, if any, of preparing any new Bond upon such exchange or transfer and may charge
reasonable fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar. Neither the Authority nor the Bond
Registrar shall be obligated to issue, exchange or transfer any Bond during a period beginning at
the opening of business on any Record Date next preceding an Interest Payment Date and ending
a the close of business on such Interest Payment Date, issue, exchange or transfer any Bond
during a period beginning at the opening of business on the Record Date next preceding any
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selection of Bonds to be redeemed and ending on the date of the transmission of notice of such
redemption, or transfer or exchange any Bonds called or being called for redemption in whole or
in part.

Section 2.13. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Bonds.

@ If (i) any mutilated Bond is surrendered at the Corporate Trust
Office of the Bond Registrar, or the Bond Registrar and the Authority receive evidence to
their satisfaction of the destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (ii) there is delivered to
the Bond Registrar and the Authority such security or indemnity as may be required by
them to save each of them harmless, then (in the absence of notice to the Bond Registrar
or the Authority that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser for value
without notice) the Authority shall execute, and upon Authority Request, the Bond
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for any such mutilated Bond, or in
lieu of any such destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of like original principa
amount, interest rate, Series, Class, tenor and maturity, bearing a number not previously
assigned to a Bond of the Related Series. The Bond Registrar thereupon shall cancel any
such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond. In case any such mutilated, destroyed,
lost or stolen Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Authority in
its discretion and instead of issuing a new Bond, may direct the Paying Agent to pay such
Bond. The Trustee, Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall notify the Authority as soon
as practicable upon learning of any mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond.

(b) As a condition precedent to the issuance of any new Bond under
this Section 2.13, the Authority or the Bond Registrar may require the payment of a sum
sufficient to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be imposed in
relation thereto, and any other expenses, including counsel fees and costs of preparing a
new Bond, of the Authority or the Bond Registrar incurred in connection therewith.

(© Each new Bond issued pursuant to this Section 2.13 in lieu of any
destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, shall constitute an additional contractual obligation of the
Authority, and shal be entitled to al the benefits of the Indenture equally and
proportionately with any and all other Bonds duly issued under the Indenture unless the
Bond alleged to have been destroyed, lost or stolen shall be at any time enforceable by a
bona fide purchaser for value without notice. In the event the Bond alleged to have been
destroyed, lost or stolen shall be enforceable by anyone, the Authority may recover the
substitute Bond from the Bondowner to whom it was issued or from anyone taking under
the Bondowner except a bonafide purchaser for value without notice. All Bonds shall be
held and owned upon the express condition that the provisions of this Section 2.13 are
exclusive with respect to the replacement or payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or
stolen Bonds, and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) any and all other rights or
remedies with respect to the replacement or payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or
stolen Bonds, notwithstanding any law or statute existing or hereafter enacted to the
contrary with respect to the replacement or payment of negotiable instruments or other
securities without their surrender.
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Section 2.14. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds. The Bond Registrar shall destroy
all Bonds surrendered to it for cancellation and shall deliver a certificate to that effect to the
Authority. No such Bonds shall be deemed Outstanding under the Indenture, and no Bonds shall
be issued in lieu thereof.

Section 2.15. Payments Due on other than Business Days. In any case where the date of
maturity of interest on or Principa Installments of any Bond or the date fixed for redemption of
any Bonds is not a Business Day, then payment of interest on or Principa Installments or
Redemption Price of the Bonds need not be made on such date but may be made on the next
succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on the date of maturity or the
date fixed for redemption, and no interest shall accrue for the period after such date.

Section 2.16. Authorization and Preparation of Temporary Bonds.

@ Until definitive Bonds are prepared, the Authority may execute
and, upon Authority Request, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver temporary
Bonds (which may be typewritten, printed or otherwise reproduced) in lieu of definitive
Bonds subject to the same provisions, limitations and conditions as definitive Bonds.
The temporary Bonds shall be dated as of the initial date of such definitive Bonds, shall
be in such denomination or denominations and shall be numbered as prepared and
executed by the Authority, shall be substantially of the tenor of such definitive Bonds, but
with such omissions, insertions and variations as the officer executing the same in his
discretion may determine, and may be issued in the form of asingle Bond.

(b) Without unreasonable delay after the issuance of temporary Bonds,
if any, the Authority shall cause definitive Bonds to be prepared, executed and delivered
to the Bond Registrar. Temporary Bonds shall be exchangeable for definitive Bonds upon
surrender to the Bond Registrar at its Corporate Trust Office (or any additiona location
designated by the Bond Registrar) of any such temporary Bond or Bonds, and upon such
surrender, the Authority shall execute and, upon Authority Request, the Bond Registrar
shall authenticate and deliver to the Owner of the temporary Bonds or Bonds, in
exchange therefor, a like principal amount of definitive Bonds in authorized
denominations or maturity payment amounts and forms. Until so exchanged, the
temporary Bonds shall be entitled in all respects to the same benefits as definitive Bonds
authenticated and issued pursuant to the Indenture.

(© All temporary Bonds surrendered in exchange for a definitive
Bond or Bonds forthwith shall be canceled by the Bond Registrar.
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Section 2.17. Book-Entry System.

@ Unless otherwise determined in the Related Series Indenture
authorizing the issuance of a Series, the registered Owner of all Bonds of such Series
shall be a Securities Depository and such Bonds shall be registered in the name of the
nominee for the Securities Depository. The “Bonds’ referred to in this Section 2.17 shall
refer to the Bonds registered in the name of the Securities Depository.

(b) The Bonds shall be initialy issued in the form of separate, single,
authenticated fully-registered Bonds in the amount of each separate maturity of the
Bonds. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such Bond shall be registered in the
registration records kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of the nominee of the
Securities Depository. The Bond Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Trustee and the
Authority may treat the Securities Depository (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive
owner of the Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of (1) payment of the principal
or Redemption Price of or interest on the Bonds, (2) selecting the Bonds or portions
thereof to be redeemed, (3) giving any notice permitted or required to be given to Owners
under this Master Indenture, (4) registering the transfer of Bonds, and (5) obtaining any
consent or other action to be taken by Owners and for all other purposes whatsoever, and
neither the Bond Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Trustee nor the Authority shall be
affected by any notice to the contrary (except as provided in paragraph (c) below).
Neither Bond Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Trustee nor the Authority shall have any
responsibility or obligation to any Participant, any beneficia owner or any other Person
claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds under or through the Securities
Depository or any Participant, or any other Person which is not shown on the registration
records of the Bond Registrar as being an Owner, with respect to the accuracy of any
records maintained by the Securities Depository or any Participant, the payment to the
Securities Depository of any amount in respect of the principal or Redemption Price of or
interest on the Bonds; any notice which is permitted or required to be given to Owners
under this Master Indenture; the selection by the Securities Depository or any Participant
of any Person to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Bonds; or
any consent given or other action taken by the Securities Depository as Owner. The
Paying Agent shall pay all principal and Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds
only to or upon the order of the Securities Depository, and all such payments shall be
valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Authority’ s obligations with respect
to the principal, purchase price or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds to the
extent of the sum or sums so paid. Except as provided in (c) below, no Person other than
the Securities Depository shall receive an authenticated Bond for each separate maturity
evidencing the obligation of the Authority to make payments of principal or Redemption
Price and interest pursuant to this Master Indenture. Upon delivery by the Securities
Depository to the Bond Registrar of written notice to the effect that the Securities
Depository has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of the preceding
nominee, the Bonds will be transferable to such new nominee in accordance with
paragraph (d) below.
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(c) In the event the Authority determines that it is in the best interest
of the Authority not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that the interest of
the Owners might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of transfer is continued,
the Authority may notify the Securities Depository and the Trustee, whereupon the
Securities Depository will notify the Participants, of the availability through the
Securities Depository of Bond certificates. In such event, the Trustee shall authenticate,
transfer and exchange Bond certificates as requested by the Securities Depository in
appropriate amounts in accordance with paragraph (d) below. The Securities Depository
may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any time
by giving notice to the Authority and the Trustee and discharging its responsibilities with
respect thereto under applicable law, or the Authority may determine that the Securities
Depository is incapable of discharging its responsibilities and may so advise the
Securities Depository. In either such event, the Authority shall either establish its own
book-entry system or use reasonable efforts to locate another securities depository.
Under such circumstances (if there is no successor Securities Depository), the Authority
and the Trustee shall be obligated to deliver Bond certificates as described in this Master
Indenture and in accordance with paragraph (d) below. In the event Bond certificates are
issued, the provisions of this Master Indenture shall apply to such Bond certificates in all
respects, including, among other things, the transfer and exchange of such certificates and
the method of payment of principal or Redemption Price of and interest on such
certificates. Whenever the Securities Depository requests the Authority and the Trustee
to do so, the Trustee and the Authority will cooperate with the Securities Depository in
taking appropriate action after reasonable notice (A) to make available one or more
separate certificates evidencing the Bonds to any Participant having Bonds credited to its
account with the Securities Depository or (B) to arrange for another securities depository
to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Bonds.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Master Indenture to
the contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of the nominee of the
Securities Depository, all payments with respect to the principal or Redemption Price of
and interest on such Bond and al notices with respect to such Bond shall be made and
given, respectively, to the Securities Depository as provided in its representation letter.

(e In connection with any notice or other communication to be
provided to Owners pursuant to this Master Indenture by the Authority or the Trustee or
with respect to any consent or other action to be taken by Owners, the Authority or the
Trustee, as the case may be, shall establish a record date for such consent or other action
and give the Securities Depository notice of such record date not less than fifteen
calendar days in advance of such record date to the extent possible. Such notice to the
Securities Depository shall be given only when the Securities Depository is the sole
Owner.

()] In the event that any transfer or exchange of Bonds is permitted
under paragraph (b) or (c) of this Section 2.17, such transfer or exchange shal be
accomplished upon receipt by the Trustee from the registered Owner thereof of the Bonds
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to be transferred or exchanged and appropriate instruments of transfer to the permitted
transferee, al in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Master Indenture. In
the event Bond certificates are issued to Owners other than the nominee of the Securities
Depository, or another securities depository as Owner of al the Bonds, the provisions of
this Master Indenture shall aso apply to, among other things, the printing of such
certificates and the methods of payment of principal or Redemption Price of and interest
on such certificates.

(End of Article Il)



ARTICLE I

REDEMPTION AND TENDER OF BONDS

Section 3.1. Authorization of Redemption and Tender. Bonds are subject to
redemption prior to maturity, upon notice as provided in this Article 111, at such times, at such
Redemption Prices and upon such other terms as may be specified in this Master Indenture and
in the Related Series Indenture authorizing such Bonds. Bonds may be subject to mandatory a